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ABOUT US 

Bay Bank was formed to serve the 

needs of the local community with 

exceptional personal attention and 

thoughtful financial solutions. We are 

a team of experienced bankers with 

the ability to listen, the agility to make 

decisions, and the resolve to follow 

through on behalf of our customers. 

At Bay Bank you will receive the 

responsive, personal service of a local 

bank combined with the strength and 

resources of a larger institution. But 

most importantly, you'll find a bank 

where bankers and customers know 

one another, and products, services, 

and resources are focused on achiev

ing your financial goals. 

As we grow, Bay Bank will continue to 

be a relationship-based banking team 

dedicated to excellence, professionalism 

and high standards of integrity. We 

believe in the simple and straightforward 

concept that the customer experience 

is our number one priority. And, we 

understand that our success will be 

the result of your success. 

Our commitment is to exceed expec

tations, one customer at a time. And 

that's what makes Bay Bank unique-

just like the customers we serve. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

PERFORMANCE: 

Net Income 
Net Interest Margin 
Return on Average Assets 
Return on Average Equity 
Nonperforming Assets to Total Assets 

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE: 
Basic 
Diluted 

BALANCE SHEET DATA: 
Total Assets 
Total Loans 
Total Deposits 
Shareholders' Equily 

CAPITAL: 
Book Value per Common Share 
Market Value per Common Share (Closing) 
Leverage Ratio 
Tier-1 Risk-Based Capifal Ratio 

Year ended 
December 31, 2013 
(dollars In thousands— 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

except EPS) 

3,241 
5.33% 
0.90% 
6.68% 
2.29% 

0.39 
0.39 

419,089 
320,680 
360,993 
54,554 

5.82 
4.92 

11.41% 
14.42% 



LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS 

"The best way to predict your future is to create it : * f f 

-Abraham Lincoln 

Dear Fellow Shareholders: 

We are very happy to present to you the 

2013 Bay Bancorp, Inc, Annuai Report, 

We would like to highlight in this letter 

the transformation of the company that 

took place during 2013 and the enthu

siasm we have for the future growth 

prospects of our company, in keeping 

with Abraham Lincoln's quote from 

above, we are creating our,future in, 

an effort to better predict it. 

In April 2013, we closed on our trans

action merging Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. 

into Carrollton Bancorp and retaining 

the Carrollton Bancorp name. At the 

same time we merged the two oper

ating banks, Carrollton Bank and 

Bay Bank into a single, stronger institu

tion trading as Bay Bank, FSB, In 

November 2013, we changed the name 

of the hoiding company from Carrollton 

Bancorp to Bay Bancorp, inc, and 

adopted a new stock symbol "BYBK." 

Over the past eight months, we have 

rebranded all of our branches, consoli

dated our operating systems, merged 

our teams and set on a path to build a 

great culture within the combined insti

tution. While most people focus on the 

physical attributes of combining the 

institutions, the most important part of 

merging the two institutions has been 

the development of a new unified cor

porate culture. During this process, we 

have been very pleased with the loyalty 

and support we have received from our 

core base of long-term customers. 

At year-end 2013, Bay Bank had 

approximately $419,1 million in total 

assets, $320.7 million in total loans 

and $361,0 million in totai deposits. 

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 

2013, we achieved a 0,9096 return on 

average assets and a 6,68% return on 

average equity, which we believe are 

reasonabie. The Bank's capital ratios 

are very strong, maintaining a Tier 1 

Leverage Ratio of over 11,4%, 

Looking forward, we are now the 6th 

largest community bank based in 

Baltimore and have an experienced 

local board and management team. 

The Bank has a branch network that 

extends across its vibrant high-growth 

primary market in the greater Baltimore-

Washington corridor. The company has 

a balanced business model with strong 

commercial and retail banking opera

tions and fee-based products in the 

mortgage banking operation and elec

tronic banking. 

The enhanced scale of the company has 

enabled us to add new client-facing 

team members, broader product offer

ings for customers, and an increased 

legal lending limit to meet the needs of 

borrowers. Profitability remains a core 

focus of the team going forward and 

we have plans to both increase our 

revenue and streamline our operating 

costs. The strong balance sheet with 

4-10%'Tier 1 capital and a moderate 

classified assets-to-capital ratio puts 

the company in a position to grow 

organically and through acquisition 

to become $1-3 billion in assets. 

"Our commitment is to 

exoeed expectations, 

one customer at a time, 

And ttiat's wtiat mai<es 

Bay Banf( unique—just iitre 

tfie customers we serve." 



Bay Bank remains committed to an environment ot superior service, higti-quaiity 

employees and financial stewardship as we move into 2014 and beyond. 

As we go forward, we remain commit

ted to our three founding operating 

principles that continue to guide us as 

we grow and expand: 

Superior Service—The Bank fun

damentally believes that superior 

service levels will differentiate the 

Bank in the markets. Customers are 

looking for a better banking experi

ence in the market today and a 

well-run, local bank can deliver the 

service they are seeking, 

High-Quality Employees—The 

Bank seeks to hire very high-quality 

employees who are known in the 

market and have a reputation which 

will shine a favorable light on the 

Bank, The Bank seeks experienced 

bankers who know the market and 

know the customers. 

Financial Stewardship—The Bank 

takes a long-term view of its financial 

profile and is committed to safety 

and soundness in all of its business 

decisions. The Bank has developed 

a very strong credit culture and is 

committed to maintaining a solid 

risk profile. 

While we believe that the Bank is well-

positioned for the future, there contin

ues to be significant challenges in the 

banking market and the economy as 

a whole. The future brings with it a 

changing landscape in financial ser

vices with uncertainty about interest 

rates and the economy, staggering 

levels of new federal regulation in 

the industry, intensity of competition 

among incumbent banks, and threats 

of new entrants and on-line business 

models. We believe that we are well-

positioned for success in this environ

ment, but we continue to watch the 

markets very closely for changes and 

the need for corrections. 

We remain committed to an environ

ment of superior service, high-quality 

employees and financial stewardship 

as we move into 2014 and beyond. 

We will continue to work for you, the 

shareholders, to deliver a high-quality 

bank with meaningful financial results. 

Thank you for your support. 

Sincerely, 

Joseph J. Thomas 

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD 

Kevin B. Cashen 

PRESIDENT & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 



BAY BANCORP. INC. 
2328 West Joppa Road, Suite 325 

Lutherville, Maryland 21093 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL JS4EETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 
TO BE HELD ON MAY 14, 2014 

To the Stockholders of Bay Bancorp, Inc.: 
The Annual Meeting (the "Annual Meeting") of Stockholders of Bay Bancorp, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the "Company"), 
will be held at 7151 Columbia Gateway Drive, Suite A, Columbia, Maryland 21046, on May 14, 2014, at 10:00 a.m., prevailing 
local time, for the following purposes: 

1. To elect the nine nominees named in the attached Proxy Statement and proxy card to serve on the Company's Board of 
Directors for one-year terms and until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified; 

2. To ratify the appointment of McGladrey LLP as the Company's independent registered pubUc accounting firm for 
2014; 

3. To adopt a non-binding advisory resolution approving the compensation paid to the Company's named executive 
officers for 2013; and 

4. To transact such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting or any adjoumment thereof. 

The close of business on March 31, 2014 has been fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company as the record date for 
determining Stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjoumment thereof 

Your attention is directed to the enclosed Proxy Statement and Annual Report of the Company for the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2013. 

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON, YOU ARE URGED TO PROMPTLY 
VOTE YOUR SHARES BY SIGNING, DATING AND MAILING THE ENCLOSED PROXY. THE ENCLOSED 
ENVELOPE REQUIRES NO POSTAGE IF MAILED IN THE U.S.A. OR CANADA. STOCKHOLDERS ATTENDING 
THE MEETING MAY REVOKE THEIR PROXIES AND PERSONALLY VOTE ON ALL MATTERS THAT ARE 
CONSIDERED. IT IS IMPORTANT THAT YOUR SHARES BE VOTED. 

By Order ofthe Board ofDirectors 

Bill Weller 
Secretary 

Lutherville, Maryland 
April 11,2014 
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BAY BANCORP, INC. 
2328 West Joppa Road, Suite 325 

Lutherville, Maryland 21093 
410-494-2580 

PROXY STATEMENT 
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON MAY 14,2014 

SOLICITATION, VOTING AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES 

This Proxy Statement (the "Proxy Statement") and the enclosed proxy has been fimiished on or about April 11, 2014, to the stockholders of 
Bay Bancorp, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the "Company", "we", "us" and "our"), as ofthe close ofbusiness on March 31, 2014, in connection 
with the solicitation of proxies by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company (the "Board" or "Board ofDirectors") to be voted at the 2014 Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") to be held on May 14, 2014, at 10:00 a.m., prevailing local time, and any adjoumments thereof 
The Annual Meeting will be held at our Operations Center which is located at 7151 Columbia Gateway Drive, Suite A, Columbia, Maryland 
21046. 

The Board of Directors has selected Robert Aumiller, Mark Caplan and Harold Hackerman to act as proxies with full power of substitution. A 
proxy may be revoked at any time prior to its exercise by (i) giving written notice of revocation to the Company, (ii) executing and delivering a 
proxy to the Company bearing a later date, or (iii) attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. The presence of a stockholder at the 
Annual Meeting will not automatically revoke such stockholder's proxy. 

Please complete, date, and sign the accompanying proxy card and retum it to us promptly in the enclosed envelope. If a proxy card is properly 
executed and retumed in time for voting, the shares represented thereby will be voted as indicated thereon. 

We do not know of any matter to be presented at the Annual Meeting except as described herein. If any other matters are properly brought 
before the Annual Meeting, the persons named in the enclosed proxy card intend to vote the proxies granted to them according to their best 
judgment. 

The Company will bear the cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to the solicitation of proxies by mail, we also may solicit proxies personally or 
by telephone through our directors, officers, and regular employees. The Company also will request persons, firms, and corporations holding 
shares in their names or in the name of nominees that are beneficially owned by others to send proxy materials to and obtain proxies from those 
beneficial owners and will reimburse the holders for their reasonable expenses in doing so. 

A separate notice of our intention to use the householding mles promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") is 
included with this mailing and is described below in the section entitled, "Delivery of Documents to Stockholders Sharing an Address". Please 
note that ifyou own shares ofthe Company's common stock, par value Sl.OO per share (the "Common Stock"), through a nominee (such as bank 
or broker), information regarding householding should be forwarded to you by the nominee. 

Effective April 19, 2013, as discussed in more detail below in the section entitled, "Change in Control", the Company, then known as 
Carrollton Bancorp, merged with Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. ("Jefferson") in a reverse merger transaction, with the Company as the surviving 
corporation (the "Merger"). In connection with the Merger, Carrollton Bank, then a bank subsidiary of Carrollton Bancorp, merged with and into 
Bay Bank, F.S.B. (the "Bank"), then a bank subsidiary of Jefferson, with the Bank as the surviving bank subsidiary of the Company. On 
November 1, 2013, the Company changed its name fi-om Carrollton Bancorp to Bay Bancorp, Inc. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS 
FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD MAY 14, 2014 

The Company's Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and the Company's Annual Report for the year ended December 
31, 2013, are available at: http://www.baybankmd.com/AboutUs/InvestorRelations/PROXYMATERIALS.aspx 

QUORUM REQUIREMENT 

Consistent with the Maryland General Corporation Law and the Company's Bylaws, the presence, in person or by proxy, of stockholders 
entitled to cast a majority of all ofthe votes entitled to be cast at the Annual Meeting is necessary to constitute a quomm at the Annual Meeting. 
Persons appointed by the Company to act as election inspectors for the meeting will count votes cast by proxy or in person at the Annual 
Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes (as defined below) will be counted toward the presence ofa quomm. 

VOTING PROCEDURES 

A stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share owned. Stockholder votes will be tabulated by the Company's designee, Broadridge 
Financial Solutions. 

A proxy card that is properly executed, delivered and not revoked will be voted in accordance with the voting instmctions made on such proxy. 
Except as discussed below with respect to shares held in street name, properly executed, unrevoked proxies received by the Company on which 
no voting specification has been made by the stockholder will be voted FOR the election ofthe nine director nominees named in Proposal 1, FOR 
the ratification ofthe appointment of McGladrey, LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for 2014, as described in 
Proposal 2, FOR the adoption of the non-binding advisory resolution (the "Say-on-Pay Vote") approving the compensation paid to the 
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Company's named executive officers for 2013, as described in Proposal 3, and in the discretion ofthe proxies with respect to any other matter 
that may properly come before the meeting or any adjoumments or postponements thereof pursuant to Proposal 4. 

Please note that if you hold your shares in a stock brokerage account or if your shares of Common Stock are held by a bank or other nominee 
(that is, in street name), you may not vote those shares by retuming a proxy card directly to the Company or by voting in person at the Annual 
Meeting unless you provide a "legal proxy", which you must obtain from your bank, broker or nominee. In addition, your broker, bank or other 
nominee will not vote those shares (a "broker non-vote") on any non-routine or contested matter unless you provide voting instmctions to your 
broker, bank or other nominee. The matters to be voted on pursuant to Proposal 1 and Proposal 3 are non-routine items. Proposal 2 is a routine 
item. Thus, if your broker or other street name holder of record signs and retums a proxy card on your behalf but does not indicate how the 
Common Stock should be voted, then the shares represented by the proxy card will be voted FOR in Proposal 2, but will not be voted on any 
other proposal. Accordingly, you should instmct your broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares by following the instructions provided 
by the broker, bank or nominee when it sends this Proxy Statement to you. 

VOTING SECURITIES; RECORD DATE 

The Board ofDirectors has fixed the close ofbusiness on March 31, 2014 as the record date for determining those stockholders who are 
entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. 

As ofthe record date, there were 9,379,753 shares ofthe Common Stock outstanding. 

THE ELECTION OF NINE DIRECTORS T O SERVE UNTIL THE 2015 ANNUAL M E E T I N G (PROPOSAL 1) 

At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked to elect Robert J. Aumiller, Steven K. Breeden, Kevin G. Byrnes, Mark M. Caplan, Kevin 
B. Cashen, Harold I. Hackerman, Eric D. Hovde, Charles L. Maskell, Jr., and Joseph J. Thomas to the Board ofDirectors for one-year terms and 
until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified. Biographical and other information regarding each of the nominees is set forth 
below in the section ofthis Proxy Statement entitled, "Information Regarding Directors and Director Nominees". 

All ofthe nominees are current directors ofthe Company and its bank subsidiary. Bay Bank, F.S.B. (the "Bank"), and, with the exception of 
Mr. Hovde, were elected to the Board by stockholders at the 2013 Annual Meeting. Mr. Hovde was elected by the Board on September 25,2013 
to fill the vacancy created when Shaun E. Murphy resigned fi-om the Board. Each nominee has consented to serve as a director if elected. 

VOTE REQUIRED 

A plurality of the shares voted at the Annual Meeting, assuming a quomm is present, is necessary to elect a nominee as a director. In other 
words, the nominee who receives the greatest number of votes cast for that directorship position, up to the number of nominees up for election, 
will be elected. Withheld votes and broker non-votes ifany, will have no effect on the outcome ofthe vote for the election of directors. 

BOARD RECOMMENDATION 

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the election of each of the nominees as directors of the Company. 

In the event that any of the nominees should be unable to serve on the Board of Directors, the persons named in the proxy will vote for such 
substitute nominee or nominees as they, in their sole discretion, shall determine. The Board of Directors has no reason to believe that any 
nominee named herein will be unable to serve. Altematively, the Board of Directors may elect to further reduce the size of the Board of 
Directors. 

INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR NOMINEES 

This section ofthe Proxy Statement provides, as ofApril 11, 2014, the names and ages of all nominees, their principal occupations and 
business experience during at least five years, and their qualifications for service as directors. 

Robert J. Aumiller, 66. Mr. Aumiller is the President of Mackenzie Commercial Real Estate Services, LLC, a commercial real estate 
brokerage where he has been for over 30 years. Mr. Aumiller acts as Project Team Leader and oversees and participates in all facets of the 
operation of the company. Mr. Aumiller is broker of record for the company and has been a licensed real estate broker for more than 25 
years. Mr. Aumiller also has significant commercial development experience, having been involved in build-to-suit projects and equity 
participations and acquisitions, as well as services relating to site selection, marketing and feasibility analysis, building design and constmction, 
financing, and management of various industrial, medical and office facilities. Mr. Aumiller is also an attomey who, prior to joining Mackenzie 
in 1983, was engaged in private practice representing various real estate investors and developers. Prior to that time, Mr. Aumiller was an 
Assistant Attomey General for the State of Maryland and, among other clients, represented the Maryland Real Estate and Banking Commissions 
and served as counsel to the Maryland State Department of Assessments and Taxation. Mr. Aumiller is past president ofthe Maryland Chapter of 
NAIOP and has lectured both locally and nationally on build-to-suit development and the development process. Mr. Aumiller is also a 
stockholder and serves as Executive Vice President of Mackenzie Ventures, LLC, the holding company that ovras and operates all ofthe various 
Mackenzie Compames. Mr. Aumiller, who serves on the Executive and Compensation Committees, has served as a director of the Company 
since 2001 and of Bay Bank, F.S.B. since April 19, 2013. Between 2001 and April 19, 2013, he served as a director of Carrollton Bank. 

The Board ofDirectors believes that Mr. Aumiller's quaUfications for serving as a director include his experience as both a commercial and 
residential developer, which gives him valuable insight into the sector in which we originate a large portion of our loans, as well as his 
entrepreneurial, financial and operational expertise. 

Steven K. Breeden*, 54. Mr. Breeden is a principal in Security Development Corporation, a diversified real estate development company 
located in Howard County, Maryland. Mr. Breeden has been with Security Development for more than 32 years, where his work has involved 
financial analysis of commercial real estate projects, economic modeling and daily project monitoring. He is responsible for the company's 
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banking relationships. Mr. Breeden holds a Master's degree in Finance. Mr. Breeden, who serves on the Audit and Compensation Committees, 
has served as a director ofthe Company since 1995 and of Bay Bank, F.S.B. since April 19, 2013. Between 1995 and April 19, 2013, he served 
as a director of Carrollton Bank. 

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Breeden's qualifications for serving as a director include his knowledge of the Bank's business and 
operations as a result of his years of service as a director of the Company and the Bank and his involvement for more than 30 years in most 
aspects of real estate development, with a concentration in complex financing, of thousands of residential lots, and dozens of strip centers and 
apartments throughout the Baltimore area, with a concentration in Howard County. This experience has allowed him to develop an extensive 
understanding of the real estate industry and market conditions in one of the areas in which we originate mortgage loans. With continuing 
ownership interests in many real estate product types, Mr. Breeden brings his financial and real estate expertise to the Board as he is in touch with 
the financial and housing markets daily. 

Kevin G. Byrnes*, 67. Mr. Byrnes has served in various leadership positions in the banking industry over the last 40 years. Mr. Byrnes was 
most recently the President and Chief Operating Officer of Provident Bank, a $6.5 billion, 150 branch commercial bank located in Baltimore, 
Maryland. The core of Mr. Bymes's executive level experience is focused on the greater Baltimore/Washington, D.C. market. Mr. Byrnes was 
with Chase Manhattan Bank for twenty-five years, holding various executive management positions, including Regional Executive for the Long 
Island, N.Y. market, the upstate N.Y. "six-city" market, and CEO of Chase Bank of Maryland, Mr. Bymes, who serves on the Executive and 
Compensation Committees and was Chairman of the Nominating/Corporate Govemance Committee, has served as a director of the Company 
since April 19, 2013 and of Bay Bank, F.S.B. since July 2010. Mr. Bymes serves on the board of Medifast, a NYSE company and is Chairman 
ofthe Board of Stevenson University, Stevenson Maryland. 

Mr. Bymes is an experienced executive with proven success in growing market share and profitability in the highly-competitive retail and 
commercial banking industries. He is particularly skilled in identifying emerging market opportunities and quickly developing an end-to-end 
business strategy to capture them. He also possesses the objectivity and political courage necessary to rapidly tum around under-performing 
operations and refocus management's attention towards the bottom line. His reputation for breaking down communications "silos" within 
organizations and developing fixture leaders by providing them with clear and consistent goals and the tools necessary to execute make him an apt 
choice to serve on the Board ofDirectors. 

Mark M. Caplan*, 55. Mr. Caplan is a Baltimore native who has been very active in real estate investment and management as well as 
equipment and vehicle financing in the region. He is the President and CEO of the Time Group, a real estate equity firm where he has worked 
since 1980. Time Group has interests in approximately 6,000 units in multi-family, manufactured housing, and senior living. He is also a 
foimder and is currently the Chairman of the WPM Real Estate Group, a manager of multi-family properties as well as other property types 
currently comprising in excess of 17,000 units. In addition to his real estate activities, Mr. Caplan is President of Madison Capital, an 
independent vehicle and equipment financing firm he founded in 1984. Mr. Caplan was previously on the Board of Sterling Bank & Tmst which 
was sold to Carroll Coimty Bank & Tmst in the late 1990s. Mr. Caplan is active in the non-for-profit coinmunity in Baltimore, having served on 
the Boards of The Walters Art Museum, The Bryn Mawr School, The Gilman School, Center Stage and St. Ignatius Loyola Academy. Mr. 
Caplan is a graduate of Johns Hopkins University where he received his Bachelor of Arts degree in Social & Behavioral Sciences and received 
his Master of Business Administration from the Columbia Business School. Mr. Caplan, who serves as Chairman of the Compensation 
Committee and on the Nominating & Corporate Govemance Committee ofthe Company's Board and has served on the Audit Committee, has 
served as a director ofthe Company since April 19, 2013 and of Bay Bank, F.S.B since April 2012. 

The Board ofDirectors believes that Mr. Caplan's qualifications for serving as a director include his experience investing in real estate, general 
management experience, as well jis credit experience lending to businesses in the mid-Atlantic region. 

Kevin B. Cashen, 52. Mr. Cashen has over 29 years of experience in community banking in Virginia and Maryland. He began his career at 
Loyola Federal Savings & Loan in 1984, moving to Signet Banking Corp. in 1985 where he led several initiatives within the real estate lending 
division in the Baltimore and Washington, D.C. area. Mr. Cashen then joined Consumer Finance Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of Chevy 
Chase Bank, in 1995 as President. He was responsible for transforming the company from a regional operation in two states to a national 
operation in sixteen states. Mr. Cashen was in charge of 360 employees in areas of loan origination, credit administration, collections, and risk 
management. Mr. Cashen then joined Chevy Chase Bank in Bethesda, Maryland in 2000, as a Senior Vice President in the Commercial Banking 
Division. Mr. Cashen co-managed the bank's $2.6 bilhon commercial loan book and was responsible for the division's marketing, business 
development, operations, and compliance from 2000 through 2009. In the nine years Mr. Cashen spent in Chevy Chase Bank's Commercial 
Division, he helped grow the loan portfolio fi-om $838 million to $1.5 billion and deposit balances fi'om $270 million to $1.3 billion. Upon 
leaving Chevy Chase Bank in 2009, Mr. Cashen was a consultant until joining Bay Bank in July 2010. Mr. Cashen, who serves on Executive 
Committee ofthe Company's Board, has served as a director of Bay Bancorp, Inc. since April 19, 2013 and of Bay Bank, FSB since July 2010. 
Between July 2010 and April 19,2013, he served as a director of Jefferson. 

The Board ofDirectors believes that Mr. Cashen's qualifications for serving as a director include (i) his extensive background in all aspects 
of banking including his strategic and operational knowledge, (ii) his experience in building and managing businesses within the banks where 
he worked , (iii) his experience as a director of numerous organizations, and (iv) his knowledge of the business community as an active and 
involved business leader and native ofthe Baltimore market, which assists the Bank in its marketing efforts. 

Harold "Ha l " Hackerman*, 61. Mr. Hackerman is a director in the Audit, Accounting, and Consulting Department of Ellin & Tucker, 
Chartered, a regional accounting firm headquartered in Baltimore. Mr. Hackerman has been with Ellin & Tucker since 1984. During his 
accounting career, he has had responsibility for both publicly traded and closely held businesses. His industry expertise includes wholesale 
distribution, manufacturing, not-for-profit, fast-food, brokerage, real estate, and constmction organizations. In addition, Mr. Hackerman has 
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions, assisting companies in financially troubled situations and bankmptcies representing debtors, 
unsecured creditors, and secured lenders. He is a graduate of Fairleigh Dickinson University where he eamed a Bachelor of Science degree. Mr. 
Hackerman, who serves as Chairman on the Nominating & Corporate Govemance Committee and on the Audit Committee of the Company's 
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Board, has been a director ofthe Company since 2002 and of Bay Bank, F.S.B. since April 19, 2013. Between 2002 and April 19, 2013, he 
served as a director of Carrollton Bank. 

The Board ofDirectors believes that Mr. Hackerman's extensive public accounting experience, which has given him a thorough understanding 
of financial regulations applicable to the Company and the Bank, and his valuable insight as to accounting-related matters, such as intemal 
controls, makes him an appropriate choice to serve as a director. 

Eric D. Hovde, age 50, has started and managed numerous business enterprises, which have provided him with an expertise in the financial 
services and real estate-related industries. He is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Hovde Private Equity Advisors LLC, a private 
equity firm, and of Hovde Capital Advisors LLC, an asset management firm. Both firms are focused exclusively on the financial services sector. 
Mr. Hovde is also ChiefExecutive Officer of Hovde Properties LLC, a third generation family company that purchases, develops and manages 
real estate in the southem Wisconsin area, Mr. Hovde oversees the management ofthis company and also serves on its Board ofDirectors. Prior 
to the formation ofthe private equity fund, Mr. Hovde led the firm's affiliated merchant banking activities, using the firm's proprietary capital to 
acquire ten controlling interests in community banks, thrifis and other nonbank financial services companies. He was a founder of Hovde 
Financial, a business which he established and developed into a top-tier investment bank in the community bank and thrift industry. As a long
time community banker, Mr. Hovde has also served as a director on numerous community bank and thrift boards. As a controlling shareholder, 
he currently serves as the Chairman of Sunwest Bank in Califomia. Additionally, Mr. Hovde is a significant stockholder and board member of 
ePlus, Inc., a leading value-added reseller and lessor of technology products and services. He eamed his degrees in Economics and Intemational 
Relations at the University of Wisconsin. Mr. Hovde, who serves on the Board's Nominating & Corporate Govemance Committee and on the 
Bank's ALCO Committee, has served as a director ofthe Company and the Bank since September 25, 2013. 

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Hovde's qualifications for serving as a director include his experience and background in managing 
diverse financial organizations and serving on the boards of these organizations. Mr. Hovde is also knowledgeable in the area of mergers and 
acquisitions, providing valuable insight to the Company on related activities. 

Charles L. Maskell Jr.*, CPA, 54. Mr. Maskell began his career as a CPA in a public accounting firm in 1982 and for over 15 years has been 
Managing Director and Partner for accounting, audit and consuhing services firms. He is a founder and the Managing Director of Chesapeake 
Corporate Advisors, LLC, a corporate advisory and management consultant firm, a position he has held since December 2005. In this role Mr. 
Maskell provides emerging and middle market compames with business strategy, valuations, and mergers and acquisitions services. He also 
provides clients with litigation support in connection with commercial litigation in matters of valuation, lost-profits, stockholder disputes and 
other matters. Mr. Maskell regularly consults with clients regarding divestitures, acquisitions and mergers conducting both strategic and fair 
market value engagements. From January 1998 through November 2005, Mr. Maskell was Managing Director - Consulting Services with 
McGladrey LLP, a national business consulting, accounting and tax firm with focus on middle market companies. Mr. Maskell is a Certified 
Business Appraiser through The Institute of Business Appraisers and is certified in Mergers and Acquisitions through the Alliance ofMerger and 
Acquisition Advisors. He also served as Chairman and Member of Accounting Advisory Board for Loyola University of Maryland and is a 
member ofthe Sellinger School of Business Board of Sponsors. Mr. Maskell, who serves as Chairman ofthe Audit Committee as well as on the 
Executive and Nominating & Corporate Govemance Committees ofthe Board ofDirectors, has served as a director ofthe Company since April 
19, 2013 and of Bay Bank, F.S.B. since May 2012. Between September 2011 and April 19, 2013, he served as a director of Jefferson. 

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Maskell's qualifications for serving as a director include his experience in public accounting and 
corporate advisory work, which gives him informed insight into lending the small and middle market businesses as well as experience in the 
financial reporting and corporate govemance required by the Bank. 

Joseph J. Thomas, 50. Mr. Thomas is Managing Director of Hovde Private Equity Advisors LLC, a private equity investment firm. Mr. 
Thomas has overall responsibility for leading the day-to-day operations of Financial Services Partners Fund, LLC (a private equity fimd and 
majority stockholder of Carrollton Bancorp), sourcing and underwriting investments, and formulating business strategies for companies in which 
the fimd invests. Before joining Hovde in 2006, Mr. Thomas enjoyed a distinguished 20-year career with Wachovia Corporation and was most 
recently Managing Director and Head of Financial Institutions Investment Banking. Over the course of his career at Wachovia, Mr. Thomas held 
a range of corporate finance, capital markets and investment management positions. Mr. Thomas serves as a Director of FirstAtlantic Financial 
Holdings, Inc., a community bank in Jacksonville, FL, and now serves as a director of Middlefield Banc Corp, a community bank in Middlefield, 
Ohio. Mr. Thomas holds a Masters of Business Administration degree from the Fuqua School of Business at Duke University and a Bachelor of 
Arts degree from the University of Virginia. In addition, Mr. Thomas is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of the CFA Society of 
Washington, DC. He is a National Association of Corporate Directors Govemance Fellow. Mr. Thomas also serves as a Tmstee of the Saint 
Stephens and Saint Agnes School Foundation and is an Emeritus Tmstee of the College of Arts and Sciences Foundation at the University of 
Virginia. Mr. Thomas, who serves on the Executive Committee and as the Executive Chairman of the Company and the Bank, has served as a 
director of Bay Bancorp, Inc. since April 19, 2013 and of Bay Bank, F.S.B. since July 2010. Between 2010 and April 19, 2013, he served as a 
director of Jefferson. 

The Board of Directors believes that Mr. Thomas's quaUfications for serving as a director include his experience in the banking industry for 
nearly 30 years in a variety of capacities. He has achieved various designations as a financial services industry expert, serving on several 
community bank boards, and was the founding Chairman of Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. in 2010. 

* Denotes a director that the Board ofDirectors has determined to be an "independent director" as defined under the listing standards of 
the NASDAQ Stock Market Rules (the "Listing Standards"). 

FAMILY R E L A T I O N S H I P S 

There are no family relationships between our directors and our executive officers. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

BOARD LEADERSHIP, OVERSIGHT OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

The position of Chairman of the Board of Directors and the position of Chief Executive Officer are not held by the same person. The Board 
believes that it is important to maintain Board leadership that is separate from management, because this stracture allows the Chairman to focus 
on leading the Board and the ChiefExecutive Officer to focus on managing the Company. In addition, the Board believes that a Chairman who 
does not also serve as the ChiefExecutive Officer facilitates discussion among directors regarding the performance of management, including the 
ChiefExecutive Officer. In Febraary 2014, the Board established the position of Executive Chairman and appointed Joseph J. Thomas to that 
position. As the Executive Chairman, Mr. Thomas is tasked with, among other things, (i) establishing the strategic direction ofthe Company and 
the Bank with the Board and management, (ii) leading corporate development, mergers and acquisitions, and non-bank business line expansion, 
(iii) coordinating capital planning and investor relations, and (iv) leading talent development and enterprise risk management. The foregoing 
stracture is not mandated by any provision of law or the Company's Charter or Bylaws, but the Board ofDirectors believes that this stracture 
provides the best balance of authority between management and the Board. We do not believe that this stracture has any impact on the Board's 
oversight of risk management. 

The Board of Directors, together with the Audit, Executive, Nominating/Corporate Govemance, Asset Liability, Loan and Compensation 
Committees of the Board, coordinate with each other to provide enterprise-wide oversight of our management and handling of risk. These 
committees report regularly to the entire Board of Directors for both the Company or the Bank on risk-related matters within their areas of 
oversight, which provides the Board of Directors with integrated insight about our management of strategic, credit, interest rate, financial 
reporting, technology, liquidity, compliance, operational and reputational risks. 

In addition, the consolidation of the management of our securities portfolio, loan review, intemal audit, compliance and asset liability/liquidity 
management at the holding company level provides additional risk oversight which ftirther mitigates overall risk to the Company. While we have 
not developed an enterprise-wide risk statement, the Board of Directors believes that sound credit underwriting to manage credit risk and a 
conservative investment portfolio to manage liquidity and interest rate risk contribute to an effective oversight ofthe Company's risk. 

At meetings ofthe Board ofDirectors and its committees, directors receive regular updates from management regarding risk management. The 
chief credit officer and chief financial officer, who are responsible for instituting risk management practices that are consistent with our overall 
business strategy and risk tolerance, report directly to Mr. Cashen, as our President and Chief Executive Officer, and lead management's risk 
discussions at Board and committee meetings. Outside of formal meetings, the Board, its committees, and individual Board members have 
regular access to senior executives, including the chief credit officer and chief financial officer. 

We do not beHeve that the Board's role in risk management has any impact on its leadership stmcture as discussed above. 

DIRECTOR I N D E P E N D E N C E 

The Company's Board ofDirectors has determined that each of Steven K. Breeden, Kevin G. Bymes, Mark M. Caplan, Harold I. Hackerman, 
and Charles L. Maskell, Jr. is an "independent director" as defined in the NASDAQ Stock Market Listing Standards (the "Listing Standards") 
Rule 5605(a)(2), and these independent directors constitute a majority ofthe Company's Board ofDirectors. 

Each member of the Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee other than Eric D. Hovde is an "independent director", and each 
member of the Compensation Committee other than Robert J. Aumiller is an "independent director". Until his resignation on September 25, 
2013, Shaun E. Murphy served on the Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee but was not considered an "independent director". 
Each member ofthe Audit Committee satisfies the independence requirements of Listing Standards Rule 5605(c)(2)(A). 

In appointing Mr. Hovde to the Nominating and Corporation Govemance Committee, Mr. Aumiller to the Compensation Committee, and Mr. 
Murphy to the Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee, the Board relied on the "controlled company" exemption provided in Listing 
Standards Rule 5615. This rule provides that, among other things, the members of a confrolled company's nominating committee and 
compensation committee need not be "independent directors". The Company is a "controlled company" because more than 50% of the 
Company's voting power for the election ofdlrcctors is held by a single stockholder. 

During a portion of 2013, Mark M. Caplan, Charles E. Moore, Jr., Harold I. Hackerman, William L. Hermann, Howard S. Klein and Bonnie 
L. Phipps served on the Audit Committee and, during their periods of service, satisfied the independence requirements of Listing Standards Rule 
5605(c)(2)(A). During a portion of 2013, Bonnie L. Phipps, Harold I. Hackerman, William L. Hermann and David P. Hessler served on the 
Compensation Committee and, during their periods of service, satisfied the independence requirements of Listing Standards Rule 5605(a)(2). 
During a portion of 2013, Steven K. Breeden, Kevin G. Bymes, David P. Hessler, Charles E. Moore, Jr., and Shaun E. Murphy served on the 
Nominating Committee and, during their periods of service, satisfied the independence requirements of Listing Standards Rule 5605(a)(2). 

In making its determination with respect to the independence of each director, the Board did not consider any transaction that was approved 
under our guidelines with respect to credit relationships as more fiilly described in the section of this Proxy Statement entitled, "Certain 
Relationships and Related Transactions", unless such transaction resulted in a per se independence disqualification under the Listing Standards. 
There were no fransactions considered by the Board of Directors in determining the independence of directors that are not discussed in such 
section. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors has a standing Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, a Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee, 
and an Executive Committee. Bay Bank also has a number of standing committees, including the Asset'Liability and Investment Committee atnd 
Loan Committee. The Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee, and the Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee are 
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discussed below. The Company has adopted a charter for each ofthe Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Nominating and 
Coiporate Govemance Committee, copies of which are available on the Company's website at vinvw.baybankmd.com under the "About Bay 
Bank" section. 

The Audit Committee, established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
"Exchange Acf), is composed of Charles L. Maskell, Jr., Chairman, Steven K. Breeden, and Harold I. Hackerman. The Audit Committee is 
appointed by the Board to assist the Board in monitoring the integrity ofthe financial statements and of financial reporting, including the proper 
operation of intemal and disclosure controls and procedures in accordance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, compliance with legal and 
regulatory requirements and the independence and performance of intemal and extemal auditors. The Audit Committee reviews the Company's 
periodic reports flled under the Exchange Act prior to filing. Members ofthe audit committee meet all applicable requirements ofthe Exchange 
Act, the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and related regulations, and the Listing Standards for financial, accounting or related expertise. The 
Board ofDirectors has determined that Mr. Harold 1. Hackerman qualifies as an "audit committee fmancial expert" as defined in Item 407(d)(5) 
ofthe SEC's Regulation S-K. During 2013, the Audit Committee held 11 meetings. The Audit Committee also approves all insider loans.' The 
Audit Committee may also examine and consider other matters relating to the financial affairs ofthe Company as it determines appropriate. 

The Compensation Committee is composed of Mark M. Caplan, Chairman, Robert J. Aumiller, Steven K. Breeden and Kevin G. Bymes. The 
purpose ofthe Compensation Committee is to review and approve major compensation and benefit policies ofthe Company and the Bank. The 
Compensation Committee reviews the current industry practices regarding compensation packages provided to executive management and the 
Board of Directors, including salary, bonus, stock options and other perquisites. Based on recommendations from the President and CEO, the 
Compensation Committee approves compensation provided to members of executive management, excluding the President and CEO, and 
presents the recommendations for compensation to the Board of Directors for approval. The Compensation Committee also evaluates and 
recommends to the Board ofDirectors fees for non-employee directors and conducts an annual review ofthe CEO's performance. The CEO's 
performance review is generally based on objective criteria including Company performance, accomplishment of sttategic objectives, 
development of management, and other measures of performance. Any changes in CEO compensation would be recommended by the 
Compensation Committee to the fiill Board. 

The Compensation Committee also administers the Carrollton Bancorp 2007 Equity Plan (the "2007 Equity Plan"), the Carrollton Bancorp 
1998 Long Term Incentive Plan, as amended (the "1998 Plan"), and the Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. 2010 Stock Option Plan (the "Jefferson Plan"). 
No new grants will be made under the 1998 Plan or the Jefferson Plan. 

During 2013, the Compensation Committee held three meetings. 

The Compensation Coinmittee has the authority and resources necessary to engage its ovm consultants and, from time to time it has engaged a 
compensation consultant to provide assistance direction with respect to executive compensation and benefits. 

In 2013, the Compensation Committee directly engaged the compensation consulting firm Chase Compensation Consultants ('CCC') to 
provide advice and information to facilitate the Committee's deliberations regarding executive compensation. CCC was purposed with: (i) 
confirming/vafidating the appropriateness of the Corporation's executive and director compensation as compared to the market and the 
Corporation's performance; (ii) providing a market-based framework for managing compensation and benefits prospectively; and (iii) providing 
feedback and guidance with respect to the Compensation Committee's discussions about potential pay/benefit decisions and/or changes to the 
current compensation stracture for 2014. The last full review ofthe Corporation's executive and director compensation was conducted in 2012, 
also conducted by CCC. Among other things, CCC provided the Compensation Committee with a compensation survey of peer banks in 
Maryland, Pennsylvania, Virginia and West Virginia with assets of between one-half to two times the assets ofthe Corporation. CCC conducted 
a high level update ofthis survey in 2013. The Compensation Committee has concluded that CCC's engagement did not raise any conflict of 
interest. 

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is composed of Harold 1. Hackerman, Chairman, Mark M. Caplan, Charles L. 
Maskell, Jr., and Eric D. Hovde. The purposes ofthe Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee are (i) to assist the Board by identifying 
individuals qualified to become Board members and to recommend to the Board nominees for the next Annual Meeting of stockholders, (ii) to 
recommend to the Board the corporate govemance principles applicable to us, (iii) to lead the Board in its annual review of its performance, and 
(iv) to recommend to the Board members the chairpersons of each committee. The Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee met one 
time in 2013. 

C O D E O F ETHICS 

The Company has a Code of Ethics that applies to all of its employees and directors with a specific code applicable to the Chief Executive 
Officer and the ChiefFinancial Officer. The codes of ethics are posted on the Company's website at www.baybankmd.com. The Company 
intends to disclose on its web site the nature of any ftiture amendments to and waivers of the Code of Ethics that apply to the Chief Executive 
Officer, the ChiefFinancial Officer, the Controller and persons performing similar fiinctions. 

A T T E I V D A N C E AT BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL MEETINGS 

The Board of Directors of the Company met 11 times during the year ended December 31, 2013. The Bank's board of directors meets 
regularly 10 times each year. No director attended fewer than 75% ofthe aggregate of (i) the total number of meetings ofthe Board ofDirectors 
(held during the period served) and (ii) the total number of meetings held by all committees of the Board on which that person served (held 
durmg the period served). The Company expects, but does not require, directors to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The 2013 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders was attended by all persons who were then serving as directors ofthe Company. 
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STOCKHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE BOARD 

Stockholders may send communications to the Board by mailing the same addressed to: Board of Directors, Carrollton Bancorp, 2328 West 
Joppa Road, Suite 325, Lutherville, Maryland 21093. Mail sent to directors at this address is forwarded to the appHcable director(s) by the 
Corporate Secretary. 

DIRECTOR NOMINATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Nominating Committee is responsible for assembling and maintaining a list of qualified candidates to fill vacancies on the Board. The 
Nominating Committee periodically reviews this list and researches the talent, skills, expertise, and general background of these candidates. 

To identify potential nominees for the Board, the Nominating Committee first evaluates the current members ofthe Board willing to continue 
in service. Current members ofthe Board are considered for re-nomination, balancing the value oftheir continued service with that of obtaining 
new perspectives and in view ofour developing needs. If necessary, the Nominating Committee then solicits ideas for possible candidates from a 
number of sources, which can include other Board members, senior management, and individuals personally known to members of the Board. 
The Nominating Committee may also retain a third party to assist it in identifying potential nominees; however, the committee has not done so in 
the past. The Nominating Cominittee will review potential nominees to ensure that the nominee possesses appropriate skills and characteristics 
that are complementary to the then current make-up ofthe Board and the needs ofthe Company. This assessment includes the following factors: 
diversity that the potential nominee will bring to the Board (including diversity of skills, background and experience); age; business or 
professional background; financial literacy and expertise; availability and commitment; independence; and other criteria that the Nominating or 
the full Board finds to be relevant. It is the practice of the Nominating/Committee to consider these factors when screening and evaluating 
candidates for nomination to the Board of Directors. Additionally, the Nominating Committee believes that it is important for candidates 
recommended for nomination to have the ability to attract business to the Company, live or work within the communities in which the Company 
operates, and possess the skills and expertise necessary to provide leadership to the Company, and considers these factors when evaluating 
potential director candidates. In addition, a candidate will not be considered for nomination unless he or she (i) is of good character, (ii) is a 
citizen ofthe United States, and (iii) satisfies all other requirements imposed under applicable law. 

In nominating candidates for election, the Nominating Committee will consider candidates recommended by the Company's stockholders. A 
stockholder recommendation must be timely delivered in vtriting to the Secretary ofthe Company prior to the meeting. To be timely, the notice 
must be delivered within the time period required for nomination ofdlrcctors by stockholders set forth in Section 7 of Article I ofthe Company's 
Bylaws, which requires, generally, that such notice be delivered not less than 60 days nor more than 90 days prior to the date of the Annual 
Meeting. The notice must include: 

• information regarding the stockholder making the nomination, including name, address, and the number of shares of our stock 
beneficially owned by the stockholder; and 

• the name, age, principal occupation or employment and residence and business address ofthe person(s) being nominated and such other 
information regarding each nominee that would be required in a Proxy Statement filed pursuant to the proxy rales adopted by the SEC 
ifthe person had been nominated for election by or at the direction ofthe Board ofDirectors. 

It must be noted that a stockholder recommendation is not a nomination, and there is no guaranty that a person recommended by a stockholder 
will be nominated for election. In addition to any other applicable requirements for nominations for election to the Board ofDirectors outside of 
the procedures established by the Nominating Committee for consideration by the committee for candidates as Board nominees for directors, and 
even if the nomination is not to be included in the Proxy Statement, a stockholder who is entitled to vote for the election of directors and who 
desires to nominate a candidate for election to be voted on at an Annual Meeting of stockholders may do so only in accordance with Section 7 of 
Article I ofthe Company's Bylaws. A stockholder's notice shall be delivered to, or mailed to and received at, the principal executive offices of 
the Company not less than 60 days nor more than 90 days prior to the date ofthe Annual Meeting, as established pursuant to Section 1 of Article 
I ofthe Bylaws, regardless of postponements, deferrals, or adjoumments of that meeting to a later date; provided, however, that if less than 70 
days' notice or prior public disclosure ofthe date ofthe scheduled Annual Meeting is given or made, then notice by the stockholder to be timely 
must be so delivered or received not later than the close ofbusiness on the 10th day following the earlier ofthe day on which such notice ofthe 
date ofthe scheduled Annual Meeting was mailed or the day on which such public disclosure was made. A stockholder's notice shall set forth (i) 
as to each person whom the stockholder proposes to nominate for election or re-election as a director and as to the stockholder giving the notice 
(a) the name, age, business address and residence address of such person, (b) the principal occupation or employment of such person, (c) the class 
and number of shares ofthe Company's capital stock which are beneficially owned by such person on the date of such stockholder notice, and (d) 
any other information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies with respect to nominees for election as 
directors, pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act; and (ii) as to the stockholder giving the notice, (a) the name and address, as they 
appear on the Company's books, of such stockholder and any other stockholders knovra by such stockholder to be supporting such nominees and 
(b) the class and number of shares of the Company's capital stock which are beneficially ovraed by such stockholder on the date of such 
stockholder notice and by any other stockholders known by such stockholder to be supporting such nominees on the date of such stockholder 
notice. 
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 

The foUowing table sets forth the compensation paid to or earaed by each person who served as a director of the Company during the year 
ended December 31, 2013 and who are not named executive officers. Information regarding compensation paid to or eamed by 
directors who are also named executive officers is presented in the Summary Compensation Table that appears in the section 
entitled, "Executive Compensation". 

Fees earned or Stock Option All other 
Name paid in cash awards awards compensation Total 

m ($) ($H5) ($) ($) 
Robert J. AumiUer 12,450 10,000 - - 22,450 
Steven K. Breeden 11,450 10,000 - - 21,450 
Kevin G. Bymes (1) 13,500 10,000 - - 23,500 
Mark M. Caplan (1) 8,100 10,000 - - 18,100 
Albert R. Counselman (2) 4,650 - - - 4,650 
Harold L Hackerman 13,050 10,000 - - 23,050 
WUIiam L.Hermann (2) 5,300 - - - 5,300 
David P. Hessler (2) 4,500 - - - 4,500 
Eric D. Hovde (3) 2,250 10,000 - - 12,250 
Howard S. Klein (2) 5,800 - - - 5,800 
Charles L.MaskeU, Jr. (1) 9,000 10,000 - - 19,000 
Charles E. Moore, Jr. (2) 5,000 - - - 5,000 
Shaun E. Murphy (4) 5,250 - - - 5,250 
Bonnie L. Phipps (2) 4,850 - - - 4,850 
John P. Rogers (2) 7,150 - - - 7,150 
W. Charles Rogers, m (2) 4,300 ' - - - 4,300 
Joseph J. Thomas (1) 8,100 10,000 : : 18,100 
(1) Amounts reflect compensation paid since election on April 19,2013. 
(2) Amounts reflect compensation paid untU resignation on April 19,2013. 
(3) Amounts reflect compensation paid since election on September 25, 2013. 
(4) Amounts reflect compensation paid between election on April 19, 2013 and resignation on September 25, 2013. 
(5) Outstanding stock options held by each director as of December 31, 2013 are disclosed in the table contained in the section of 

this Proxy Statement entitled, "Security Ownership of Management and Certain Security Holders". 

Commencing AprU 19, 2013, directors who were not employees ofthe Company or the Bank received a monthly retainer fee of $750. The 
Chairman of the Executive Committee as well as the Chairman of the Compensation Committee each received a monthly retainer fee of $900, 
while the Chairman ofthe Audit Committee received a monthly retainer fee of $1,000. The Chairman ofthe Bank received a monthly retainer 
of $1,500. Directors received compensation solely in their capacity as directors of the Bank and did not receive any additional fees for their 
service as directors of the Company. In addition, each non-employee Director annually receives a grant of resfricted shares of Common Stock 
under the 2007 Equity Plan, having a fair market value of $10,000 as ofthe grant date and subject to a three-year vesting agreement, provided 
that he or she is serving on the Board as of the date of the annual meeting of stockholders for that year. Each non-employee director who was 
serving on the Board as ofthe 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders received a grant of 1,957 shares of restricted Common Stock, although the 
shares granted to Mr. Murphy lapsed upon his resignation from the Board. In addition, Mr. Hovde was awarded a grant of 1,789 shares of 
restticted Common Stock during 2013. 
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS 

The following table sets forth, as ofMarch 31, 2014, certain information conceming shares ofthe Common Stock beneficially owned by: (i) 
each ofthe "named executive officers" ofthe Company as defined in the section ofthis Proxy Statement entitied "Executive Compensation"; (ii) 
each ofthe current directors and director nominees ofthe Company; (iii) all directors and executive officers ofthe Company as a group; and (iv) 
each other person that we believe owns in excess of 5% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. Generally, a person "beneficially owns" 
shares if he or she has or shares with others the right to vote those shares or to invest (or dispose of) those shares, or if he or she has the right to 
acquire such voting or investment rights, within 60 days (such as by exercising stock options or similar rights). Except as otherwise noted, the 
address of each person named below is the address ofthe Corporation. 

Amount and Nature of 
Beneficial Ownership 

1,436 
15,728 
41,109 
28,353 
38,328 

160,851 
12,214 

7,818,168 
6,400 
1,957 

46,211 
46,211 
15,000 

(1) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 
(5) 
(6) 
(7) 
(8) 
(9) 

(10) 
(11) 
(12) 

Percent 
of Class 

* 

* 
* 
* 
* 

1.7% 
* 

83.4% 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

Directors, Director Nominees and Named Executive Offlcers 
Robert A. Altieri 
Robert J. Aumiller 
Steven K. Breeden 
Kevin G. Bymes 
Mark M. Caplan 
Kevin B. Cashen 

, Harold I. Hackerman 
Eric D. Hovde 
Charles L. Maskell, Jr. 
Joseph J. Thomas 
King Corbett 
Les Patrick 
Gary Jewell 

All Officers and Directors as a Group (13 persons) 415,589 4.4% 

Persons Who Beneficially Own More Than 5% of Class 
Financial Services Partners Fund I, LLC ("FSPF") 7,816,379 (13) 83.3% 
* Less than 1% 
(I) Includes 1,232 shares ovmed jointly by Mr. Altieri and his wife, 204 shares Mr. Altieri holds as trastee for minor 

children under the Maryland Uniform Gifts to Minors Act. 
. .. (2) Includes 13,733 shares owned jointly by Mr. Aumiller and his wife and 1890 shares subject to fiilly vested and 

exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(3) Includes 31,618 shares ovraed jointiy by Mr. Breeden and his wife and 1,890 shares subject to fully vested and 

exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(4) Includes 13,330 shares subject to fully vested and exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(5) Includes 6,665 shares subject to fully vested and exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(6) Includes 138,634 shares subject to fully vested and exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(7) Includes 9,861 shares owned jointly by Mr. Hackerman and his wife, and 1,890 shares subject to fully vested and 

exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(8) Amount includes the 7,816,379 shares reported below for Financial Services Partners I, LLC, as Mr. Hovde shares 

voting and investment discretion with respect to such shares. 
(9) Includes 4,443 shares subject to fully vested and exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(10) Includes 46,211 shares subject to fully vested and exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(II) Includes 46,211 shares subject to fully vested and exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(12) Includes 15,000 shares subject to fiilly vested and exercisable options to purchase shares. 
(13) Hovde Acquisition I LLC ("Hovde") is the managing member of FSPF and, in such capacity, has sole investment and 

voting discretion with respect to the securities ovraed by FSPF. Hovde's voting and investment powers are exercised by 
Eric D. Hovde. FSPF's address is 1826 Jefferson Place NW, Washington, D.C. 20036. The shares reported in this row 
are also included in the amount shown for Mr. Hovde. 

CHANGE IN CONTROL 

On April 19, 2013, pursuant to the terms of that certain Agreement and Plan ofMerger, dated as ofApril 8, 2012 (the "Merger Agreement"), by 
and among the Company, Jefferson and FSPF, the Company merged with Jefferson in a reverse-merger transaction, with the Company as the 
surviving corporation. The Merger Agreement was approved by the Company's stockholders. 

Prior to the completion ofthe Merger, on April 18, 2013, FSPF purchased from Jefferson 918,197 shares of its common stock at a per share 
price of $ 11.98, for an aggregate cash consideration of $ 11 million (the "Investment"). 
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Upon the closing ofthe Merger, each outstanding share of Jefferson common stock, other than shares held by the Company, Jefferson or any of 
their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries and other than shares owned in a fiduciary capacity or as a resuh of debts previously contracted, was 
converted into the right to receive 2.2217 shares of Common Stock. As a result ofthe Merger, the Company issued approximately 7.9 million 
shares of Common Stock to Jefferson's stockholders in the aggregate. Pursuant to the terms and conditions ofthe Merger Agreement, the holders 
of the Common Stock elected to tender approximately 42%> of the shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the Investment for 
cash at a value of $6.20 per share (the "Cash Election"). As a result of the Merger and after giving effect to the Cash Election, FSPF owns 
approximately 84%o ofthe outstanding shares of Common Stock, and those persons who were stockholders ofthe Company immediately prior to 
the Investment ovm approximately 16% ofthe outstanding shares of Common Stock. 

On April 19, 2013, in connection with the closing ofthe Merger, the Company entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with FSPF, which 
sets forth the right of FSPF to have the shares of common stock of the Company received by FSPF in the Merger registered with the SEC for 
public resale under certain conditions. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES 

Certain information regarding executive officers and significant employees ofthe Company and Bank other than those previously mentioned is 
set forth below: 

Joseph J. Thomas - Mr. Thomas, age 50, has been Executive Chairman ofthe Company and the Bank since Febraary 2014. 

Kevin B. Cashen ~ Mr. Cashen, age 52, has been President and ChiefExecutive Officer ofthe Company since the Merger on April 19, 2013. 
Mr. Cashen has served as the President and ChiefExecutive Officer ofthe Bank since July 2010, and, between July 2010 and the Merger, he also 
served as the President and ChiefExecutive Officer of Jefferson. Between 2009 and his appointment with the Bank, Mr. Cashen served as a 
consultant for a wealth management firm. Prior to that, since 2001, he served as Senior Vice President in the Commercial Banking Division of 
Chevy Chase Bank in Bethesda, Maryland, where Mr. Cashen co-managed the bank's $2.6 billion commercial loan book and was responsible for 
the division's marketing, business development, operations, and compliance from 2000 through 2009. In the nine years Mr. Cashen spent at 
Chevy Chase Bank, he grew loans from $838 million to $1.5 billion and deposit balances from $270 million to $1.3 billion. 

Larry D. Pickett - Mr. Picket, age 53, has been Executive Vice President - Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the Bank since 
January 2, 2014. Between August 2008 and his appointment by the Bank and the Company, Mr. Pickett served as the Vice President of Financial 
Planning, Profitability and Analysis for Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc., located in Lititz, Pennsylvania. In this position, Mr. Pickett was 
responsible for the fmancial operations of the $18 billion regional banking organization. His responsibilities included strategic planning, 
budgeting, forecasting, balance sheet management, evaluation of bank and branch acquisition opportunities and monthly/quarterly narration of 
bank financial performance and projected performance. He was also responsible for supplying divisional, regional, business line, customer and 
officer profitability and was a member of the Corporate Asset Liability Committee. Prior to that, between March 2006 and August 2008, Mr. 
Pickett was the ChiefFinancial and Chief Risk Officer of Susquehanna Bank in Hunt Valley, Maryland, a $3 billion community bank, where he 
was responsible for budgeting, forecasting and strategic planning, oversaw the bank's credit division, was a voting member of loan committee, 
and served as the chairman of the bank's ALCO, Audit and Pricing Committees. He was also responsible for the implementation and ongoing 
management of Susquehanna Bank's Sarbanes-Oxley Act compUance program. 

H. King Corbett - Mr. Corbett, age 62, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer of the Bank since August 
2010. Mr. Corbett began his career with Maryland National Bank in 1974, where he completed their branch management training program and 
became active with their commercial branch management program. After eight years at Maryland National Bank, Mr. Corbett joined Sovran 
Bank in the commercial middle market area in the Baltimore market. In 1987, he joined First National Bank of Maryland (now M & T Bank) as 
the manager oftheir Northem Baltimore Middle Market Commercial Banking Unit. Mr. Corbett spent the next 13 years at First National actively 
engaged in middle market commercial banking and capital markets for the bank. Mr. Corbett joined SunTrast Bank in 2000 where he was an 
Executive Vice President managing the commercial middle market activities in the Maryland region for the bank. 

H. Les Patr ick- Mr. Patrick, age 57, joined the Bank in September 2010 from Bank of America where he was managing Special Assets in the 
mid-Atiantic region. He started his career in 1975 at National Bank of Washington where he completed their training program. He also spent 
time at American Security Bank, Equitable Bank and Maryland National Bank in the real estate, commercial and credit groups. Prior to Bank of 
America, he was most recently with Provident Bank in Baltimore where he served as the Chief Credit Officer from 2000 to 2006 and later as the 
Head of Real Estate Banking. As head of Real Estate Banking, he managed a staff of 30 with a portfolio of $1.4B. He left Provident in 2009 
with the purchase by M & T Bank. 

Gary M. Jewell - Mr. Jewell, age 67, has been Senior Vice President - Electronic Banking ofthe Bank since July 1998. He was previously 
Senior Vice President and Retail Delivery Group Manager from March 1996 to July 1998. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Jewell was Director of 
Product Management and Point of Sale Services for the MOST EFT network in Reston, Virginia from March 1995 to March 1996. 

Russ McAtee - Mr. McAfee, age 55, has been Executive Vice President - Chief Retail Banking Officer ofthe Bank since January 2, 2014. He 
served as the Chief Operating Officer of Andrews Federal Credit Union in Suitiand, Maryland, between 2010 and his appointment by the Bank, 
where he oversaw marketing, lending, retail, operations and human resources. Mr. McAtee was also responsible for systems upgrades and other 
process improvement initiatives that drove significant productivity improvements and reductions in expenses. Prior to joining Andrews Federal 
Credit Union, from 2008 to 2010, Mr. McAtee served as a Senior Vice President for Mortgage Banking at Chevy Chase Bank (later Capital One 
Financial) in McLean, Virginia. From 1996 to 2008, Mr. McAtee served as the Senior Vice President for Consumer & Retail Lending for Chevy 
Chase Bank, where he had fuU profit and loss responsibUity for the division and led efforts to grow the division to a point where it was 
generating 30%) the bank's managed assets. In this capacity, Mr. McAtee oversaw marketing, business development, sales, credit poHcy, 
risk/financial management, IT, operations, compliance, servicing and collections. 
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

This section contains information about compensation received from the Company that was awarded to, eamed by, or paid to the following 
persons: (i) the Company's principal executive officer; (ii) any other person who served as the Company's principal executive officer at any time 
during 2013, (iii) the Company's two most highly compensated executive officers other than the principal executive officer who were serving as 
such as of December 31, 2013 and whose total compensation for 2013 (excluding above-market and preferential eamings on nonquaUfied 
deferred compensation) exceeded $100,000, and (iv) up to two additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided pursuant to 
the foregoing item (iii) had they been serving as executive officers ofthe Company as of December 31, 2013 (aU ofthe foregoing persons are 
referred to as the "named executive officers"). 

For purposes ofthis Proxy Statement, the named executive officers are: (i) Kevin B. Cashen, who is the current President and ChiefExecutive 
Officer of the Company and the Bank; (ii) Robert A. Ahieri, who served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and 
Carrollton Bank until April 19, 2013; (iii) Gary M. Jewell, the Executive VP for Elecfronic Banking; and (iv) H. King Corbett, ChiefLending 
Officer for the Bank. 

OVERVIEW OF COMPENSATION PROGRAM 

The Company's executive compensation program is designed to: 

• Align the financial interests ofthe executive officers with the long-term interests ofthe Company's stockholders; 

• Attract and retain high performing executive officers to lead the Company to greater levels of profitability; and 

» Motivate and incent executive officers to attain the Company's earnings and performance goals. 

The compensation program for the Company's executive officers has four primary components: 

• base salary; 

• annual cash incentive awards; 

• long-term equity-based awards; and 

e employee benefits and perquisites. 

The Compensation Committee has the authority to obtain the advice and assistance of legal or independent compensation consulting firms as it 
deems desirable or appropriate. In developing the compensation program for 2013, the Compensation Committee conducted a review ofthe 
executive compensation program. 

Our compensation philosophy is to pay conservatively competitive base salaries based on individual experience, Company and individual 
performance, and personal contributions to the organization and its goals. Short-term incentives, generally payable in cash, and long-term 
incentives, generally provided through equity -based awards, are targeted to be competitive but depend more heavily upon Company performance 
than does base pay. Total compensation and accountability are intended to increase with poshion and responsibUity. 

The Company recognizes that executives have significant influence on the overall financial results of the Company and aUgns the financial 
interests of the executive officers with the long-term interests of the stockholders by using equity-based awards that increase in value as 
Stockholder value increases and by choosing financial measures and goals for cash incentive compensation that are based on the key 
measures that drive the fmancial performance ofthe Company. 

Base Salary 

We believe that competitive base salaries are necessary to attract and retain high performing executive officers. In determining base salaries, 
the Compensation Committee considers the executive's qualifications and experience, scope of responsibUities and future potential, the goals and 
objectives established for the executive and the executive's past performance, as well as competitive salary practices at other financial 
institutions. 

Annual Incentive Plan 

All of our named executive officers participated in our bonus plan. The bonus plan encourages executive officers to work together as a team to 
achieve specific annual financial goals. The bonus plan is designed to motivate our executive officers to achieve strategic goals, strengthen links 
between pay and the performance ofthe Company and align management's interests more closely with the interests ofthe stockholders. 

The plan is designed to pay out a cash reward based on pre-established key performance criteria that must be met before payouts may be 
made. The key performance indicators are: 

» Growth as measured by gross loans 

• Expense management 

• Pre-tax Net Income 

• Overall risk management performance 

• Other individual personal performance 

Incentives are calculated based on budget and business plan goals as measured by the key performance indicators. The 2013 budget was 
approved by the Board ofDirectors at the May 2013 meeting and was the basis for the 2013 incentive plan goals. 
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Equity Plans 

The Company and the Bank try to closely align the financial interests ofthe executive officers with the long-term interests ofour stockholders 
through, among other things, long-term compensation arrangements, which take the form of equity-based awards under the 2007 Equity 
Plan. The 2007 Equity Plan was approved by stockholders at the 2007 Annual Meeting. The Company imposes vesting schedules that are 
intended to encourage officer retention. The 2007 Equity Plan provides for a variety of award types, such as stock options, restricted stock, stock 
appreciation rights, restricted performance stock, unrestricted stock and performance unit awards, all of which increase in value as the value of 
the Common Stock increases. The Compensation Committee recommends, in its discretion, the form and number of equity-based awards and the 
full Board of Directors approves the awards. The 2007 Equity Plan prescribes that, upon a change in control, all outstanding awards 
automatically vest, all restrictions, if any, with respect to such awards lapse, and all performance criteria, if any, with respect to such awards will 
be deemed satisfied. Prior to the Merger, Jefferson granted options to purchase shares of its common stock under the Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. 
2010 Stock Option Plan (the "Jefferson Plan"), which was assumed by the Company in connection with the Merger. Each option granted under 
the Jefferson Plan that was outstanding at the time of the Merger was also assumed by the Company and was converted into an option to 
purchase that number of shares ofthe Company's common stock equal to the product ofthe shares of Jefferson common stock subject to the 
option and 2.2217, which was the exchange ratio in the Merger. Except for a change in the administrator ofthe Jefferson Plan (from Jefferson's 
Compensation Committee to the Company's Compensation Committee), all such options remain subject to the same terms and conditions, 
including vesting, that apphed under the Jefferson Plan immediately prior to the Merger. 

All ofthe named executive officers were eligible to receive equity awards under the 2007 Equity Plan during 2013. Effective on October 28, 
2013, the Board ofDirectors approved the granting ofstock options to each of Mr. Cashen and Mr. Corbett. As of December 31, 2013, there 
were 118,120 outstanding awards under the 2007 Equity Plan and 126,859 outstanding awards under the 2010 Stock Option Plan. 

401(k)Plan 

The Company has a contributory thrift plan ("Thrift Plan") qualifying under Section 401(k) ofthe Code. Employees with three months of 
service are eligible for participation in the Thrift Plan. Prior to June 2011, participants that had been employed at the Company for one year 
received a Company contribution of 3% ofthe employee's salary to the Thrift Plan forthe employee's benefit. Also, the Company matched 50%) 
ofthe employee's 401(k) contribution up to 6% ofthe employee's compensation. These Company contributions were suspended effective June 1, 
2011. 

IMPACT O F PARTICIPATION IN TROUBLED ASSET RELIEF PROGRAM 

On Febmary 13, 2009, the Company issued 9,201 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase 205,379 shares ofcommon 
stock to U.S. Department ofthe Treasury pursuant to its Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program ("TARP"). On April 19, 2013, 
the Company repaid its financial obligations under TARP. 

The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, as amended by the America Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ("EESA"), imposed 
significant new requirements for and restrictions relating to the compensation arrangement of financial instimtions that received govemment 
fiinds through TARP. The restrictions apply until a participant repays the fiinds received through TARP. These restrictions include: (i) a 
requirement that the Company recover any bonus payments made to senior executive officers, as defined in applicable Treasury regulations 
("SEOs"), and the next 20 most highly compensated employees if the bonus payment is based on materially inaccurate financial statements or 
any other materially inaccurate financial metric criteria; (ii) a prohibition on the Company making any payment to SEOs and the next five most 
highly-compensated employees in connection with a departure from the Company for any reason (a "golden parachute paymenf) (except for 
payments for services performed or benefits accraed); (iii) a prohibition on the payment or accraing of bonuses, retention awards or incentive 
compensation to the Company's highest compensated employee, with an exception for long-term restricted stock that does not fully vest while 
Treasury holds an interest in the Company and has a value not exceeding 1/3 of the employee's annual compensation, other than payments 
pursuant to a written employment agreement executed on or before Febraary 11, 2009; and (iv) a requirement that the Company adopt, post on its 
website and provide to Treasury and the Company's regulators a company-wide excessive or luxury expenditures poUcy. During the period that 
the Company participated in TARP, it was in compUance with all of these requirements. 

In addition, the Compensation Committee was required to conduct a risk assessment of the Company's SEO compensation plans at least every 
six months, and to annually provide to Treasury and the Company's primary regulator certification that it has taken all reasonable efforts to limit 
unnecessary risks posed by such plans and an explanation of how the compensation plans do not encourage unnecessary and excessive risks that 
threaten our value. During its participation in TARP, the Company provided these certifications and explanations as required. 
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SUMMARY OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The following table sets forth, for 2013 and 2012, the compensation eamed by or awarded to the Company's named executive officers. 

Summary Compensation Table 

Name and Position 

Kevin B. Cashen 
President/CEO (4) 

Robert A. Altieri 
Former President/CEO (5) 

Gary M. Jewell 
Senior Vice President 

H. King Corbett 
ChiefLending Officer (4) 

Year 

2013 
2012 

2013 
2012 

2013 
2012 

2013 
2012 

Salary 
($) 
141,667 

85,959 
233,415 

180,000 
165,000 

127,500 

Bonus 
($) 

-

85,000 

-

Option 
awards 

($)(1) 
74,999 

-

-

35,999 

Non-equity 
incentive plan 
compensation 

($)(2) 
42,500 

-

109,950 
57,750 

33,750 

All other 
compensation 

($)(3) 
26,789 

31,908 
6,985 

2,210 
8,092 

1,980 

Total 

($) 
285,955 

202,867 
240,400 

292,160 
230,842 

189,229 

(1) 

(2) 
(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

The amounts reflect the aggregate grant date fair value of option awards computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards 
Board Accounting Standard Codification Topic 718, "Accounting for Stock Compensation" ("ASC 718"). See Note 10 to the consolidated 
audited financial statements contained in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 regarding 
assumptions underlying valuation of equity awards. 
The amounts reflect awards paid under the Annual Incentive Plan. 
The amount shown for Mr. Cashen in 2013 includes $26,099 as country club dues and $690 as compensation attributed to the portion ofthe 
premium paid by the Bank for group term life insurance policy for coverage in excess of $50,000. The amount shown for Mr. Altieri in 
2013 includes $3,421 in car allowance and $28,487 compensation for the fair market value ofthe vehicle that was awarded to him at the 
time of his departure from the Bank. 
Messrs. Cashen and Corbett were previously employed by Jefferson and were hired by the Company upon the Merger on April 19, 2013. 
The amounts shown for Messrs. Cashen and Corbett reflect the amounts paid by the Company and the Bank following the Merger. For 
2012 and prior to the Merger, the annual base salaries payable to Messrs. Cashen and Corbett were $200,000 and $170,000, respectively. In 
April 2013, prior to the Merger, Mr. King received a base salary increase to $180,000 and in June 2013, Mr. Cashen received a base salary 
increase to $250,000. In 2012, Mr. Cashen received an incentive plan bonus of $50,000, option awards having an aggregate grant date fair 
value of $450,060, and $73,077 in additional compensation, all of which were paid by Jefferson and/or the pre-Merger Bay Bank, F.S.B. In 
2012, Mr. Corbett received a incentive plan bonus of $24,000 and option awards having an aggregate grant date fair value of $150,020, all 
of which were paid by Jefferson and/or the pre-Merger Bay Bank, F.S.B. During the period of January 1, 2013 till April 19, 2013, Messrs. 
Cashen and Corbett continued to be compensated by Jefferson and/or the pre-Merger Bay Bank, F.S.B. Within this period Mr. Cashen 
received a base salary of $58,333 and Mr. Corbett received a base salary of $49,583. 
Mr. Altieri served as President and ChiefExecutive Officer ofthe Company and the Bank untU the Merger on April 19, 2013. 
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The following table shows all outstanding option awards held by the named executive officers as of December 31, 2013. 

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2013 Fiscal Year-End 

Name 

Number of securities 
underlying 

unexercised options 
(#) 

exercisable 

Number of securities 
underlying 

unexercised options 
(#) 

unexercisable 

Option exercise 
price 

($) 
S4.50 
$5.18 

$7.21 
$6.52 
$7.72 

$4.50 
$5.18 

Option expiration 
date 

07/08/2020 
10/28/2023 

07/22/2014 
12/15/2015 
12/31/2016 

08/23/2020 
10/28/2023 

Kevin B. Cashen 

Gary M. Jewell 

H. King Corbett 

138,634 

5,000 
5,000 
5,000 

46,211 

34,659 (1) 
41,436 (2) 

11,553 (3) 
19,889 (4) 

(1) The unexercisable portion ofthe option will vest on July 9, 2014. 
(2) One-third ofthe option vested at grant, one-third will vest on October 28, 2014 and the final one-third will vest on October 28, 2016. 
(3) The unexercisable portion ofthe option will vest on August 23, 2014. 
(4) One-third ofthe option will vest on each anniversary ofthe grant date - October 28, 2014; October 28, 2015; and October 28, 2016. 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS 

Kevin B. Cashen 

On June 30, 2010, the Bank entered into an employment agreement with Kevin B. Cashen which was deemed to commence on the date that 
Jefferson consummated its acquisition of Bay National Bank from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The employment agreement 
outlines Mr. Cashen's duties with the company as well as the terms of his employment. The agreement provides Mr. Cashen with a three-year 
term that is automatically extended for one-year terms at the expiration of the initial term and each anniversary thereafter provided that such 
extension is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors. The agreement contains standard clauses relating to base salary ($200,000 per 
year), benefits, expense reimbursement and confidentiality. If, during a term ofthe agreement, Mr. Cashen is terminated for "cause" (as defined 
in the agreement), then he will be due no additional compensation. If Mr. Cashen is terminated without cause, then he will be due a payment 
equal to all of his unused vacation time and one year's base salary plus his prior year's bonus. Ifa "change of control" occurs and the Bank (i) 
terminates the agreement, (ii) reduces his base salary, (iii) reduces any performance based compensation by more than 10%), (iv) changes his title, 
(v) changes his primary duties, (vi) without consent, changes the primary location of his office by more than 60 miles or (vii) without consent, 
requires him to report to someone other than the Board of Directors, then, upon proper notice, Mr. Cashen will be due a payment equal to two 
times his base salary plus the prior year's bonus. The agreement also provides that ifthe agreement is terminated, then, for a period of one year, 
Mr. Cashen, may not compete against the Bank within a 60-mile radius ofthe Bank's headquarters or solicit employees ofthe Bank for hire. ~ ' 

Effective Febraary 26, 2014, Mr. Cashen and the Bank replaced his agreement with a new employment agreement. The new agreement 
provides for an initial three-year term, with successive one-year renewal terms unless either party provides the other party with 90 days' prior 
written notice of its intention not to renew the agreement. The new agreement sets Mr. Cashen's annual base salary level at $250,000, subject to 
periodic review, and provides that he wiU be eUgible to participate in the Company's equity plans and to eam a performance bonus for each year, 
with the amount thereof, performance mefrics therefor, timing of payment and medium of payment (e.g., payable as stock options, stock awards, 
etc.) to be determined by the Bank's board of directors or its compensation committee. The agreement provides that, upon the termination of Mr. 
Cashen's employment for any reason, he will be entitied to receive all unpaid compensation and benefits that have accraed through the date of 
termination. If his employment terminates during a term due to his death or disability, then the agreement provides that Mr. Cashen will be 
entitied to also receive the cash value of any unused vacation and a payment representing any pro-rated performance bonus that he would have 
eamed for the year of termination had his employment not ended, which will be paid on April 15"' ofthe year following the year in which the 
tennination occurs. If, during a term, Mr. Cashen is terminated without "cause" (as defined in the agreement) or if Mr. Cashen terminates his 
employment for "good reason" (as defined in the agreement), then (i) he will receive the cash value ofany unused vacation, (ii) he will receive a 
severance payment in an amount equal to his "final pay" {i.e., the sum of his then-current annual base salary plus the average ofthe cash bonuses 
eamed for the three calendar years immediately preceding the year of termination) to be paid in 12 equal monthly installments, (iii) he will have 
the right to continue his participation in the Bank's health and insurance benefit plans during the period that the severance is paid, and (iv) any 
unvested equity awards that he holds will immediately vest and become exercisable pursuant to their terms. If, however, a termination without 
"cause" or for "good reason" occurs within 12 months following a "change in control" (as defined in the agreement), then, in lieu of the 
severance described in item (ii) ofthe preceding sentence (but in addition to the other benefits described above), Mr. Cashen will be entitied to a 
lump sum payment equal to 2.99 times his "final pay". This change in control severance payment will be reduced ifthe Bank determines that the 
aggregate present value of that portion of the payment that is considered "contingent payments" (as defined in the agreement) and all other 
"contingent payments" payable to Mr. Cashen exceeds 2.99 times his "base amounf (as defined in the agreement), such that the excise tax under 
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Section 4999 ofthe Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), would otherwise be triggered. In that case, the change in control 
severance payment will be reduced to the extent necessary to avoid the imposition of that excise tax. If Mr. Cashen's employment ends because 
the Bank chooses not to renew the agreement for an additional term, then Mr. Cashen will be entitled to receive continued base salary payments 
for 12 months following the date of termination. Except for the accrued but unpaid compensation and beneflts payable in the case of any 
termination, the cash value of unused vacation payable in the event of Mr. Cashen's death or disability and the pro-rated bonus payable upon Mr. 
Cashen's death, the payment of all the foregoing amounts is conditioned on Mr. Cashen's execution, delivery and non-revocation ofa general 
release in favor of the Bank and, in certain cases, on his compliance with certain notice and other requirements. The new agreement provides 
that, for 12 months following the termination of his employment for any reason, Mr. Cashen may not, directly or indirectly, compete with the 
Bank or its affiUates within a 60-mile radius ofany office maintained by the Bank during the most recent term of employment, solicit the Bank's 
business relationships, or soUcit, engage or hire any ofthe Bank's independent contractors or employees. 

Robert Altieri - former ChiefExecutive Officer 

Mr. Altieri was not a party to an employment agreement with the Company or CarroUton Bank. On March 5, 2013, CarroUton Bank entered 
into Retention Bonus Agreement (the "Retention Agreement") with Mr. Altieri that entitled him to receive a retention bonus of $85,000 (the 
"Retention Bonus") within five business days ofthe earlier to occur of (i) the closing ofthe transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement 
and (ii) April 30, 2013 (the 'Trigger Date"). In each case, the receipt ofthe Retention Bonus was subject to Mr. Altieri's continuous employment 
with the Bank through the date on which the Retention Bonus became payable; provided, however, that if the Bank were to terminate Mr. 
Altieri's employment, other than for "Cause" as defined in the Retention Agreement, or if Mr. AUieri were to terminate his employment with the 
Bank due to his death or disability prior to the Trigger Date, then Mr. Altieri was entitied to receive the full Retention Bonus. If Mr. Altieri's 
employment were to be terminated by the Bank for "Cause" or by Mr. Altieri for any reason (other than due to his death or disability) prior to the 
Trigger Date, then Mr. Altieri was not enthled to receive any portion ofthe Retention Bonus. 

Kins Corbett 

On April 11, 2013, Bay Bank entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Corbett as Chief Lending Officer. The employment agreement 
outlines Mr. Corbett's duties with the Bank as well as the terms of his employment. The agreement provides Mr. Corbett with a one year term 
that is automatically extended for one-year terms at the expiration ofthe initial term and each anniversary thereafter, provided that such extension 
is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors. The agreement contains standard clauses relating to base salary ($ 180,000 per year), 
benefits, expense reimbursement and confidentiality. If during the term of agreement, Mr. Corbett is terminated for "cause" (as defined in the 
agreement), he is due no additional compensation. If Mr. Corbett is terminated without cause, he is due a payment equal to all of his unused 
vacation time and twelve months of his current salary. If a "change of control" (as defined in the agreement) occurs and the Bank (i) terminates 
the agreement, (ii) reduces his base salary, (iii) reduces any performance based compensation by more than 10%, (iv) changes his title, (v) 
changes his primary duties, (vi) without consent, changes his primary location of his office by more than 60 miles, or, (vii) without consent, 
requires him to report to someone other than the Board ofDirectors or ChiefExecutive Officer, upon proper notice, Mr. Corbett is due a payment 
equal to 100% of his base salary. The agreement also includes a provision that provides that, ifthe agreement is terminated, Mr. Corbett, for a 
period ofsix months, may not compete against Bay Bank within a 60 mile radius ofthe headquarters or solicit employees of Bay Bank for hire 
during this period. 

Gary Jewell 

On November 23, 2013, the Bank entered into an amended and restated employment agreement with Gary M, Jewell, Senior Vice President, 
Electronic Banking. The term of the agreement is considered to have begun on June 8, 2007, the effective date of Mr. Jewell's original 
emplbyment agreement, and terminates on December 31, 2013. The agreement provides for an annual base salary of $180,000, subject to annual 
review and increase by the Board of Directors, and Mr. Jewell may also receive a cash or non-cash bonus to be determined by the Board of 
Directors. In addition, Mr. Jewell will receive a cash bonus ifthe Bank's annual Point of Sale revenue during the calendar year based on the 
following tiered schedule: 

Tier 1: Gross Point of Sale Revenue of $1,000,000 to $1,500,000 an incentive payment of 20% of Base Salary 

Tier 2: Gross Point of Sale Revenue of $1,500,001 to $1,750,000 an incentive payment of 25% of Base Salary 

Tier 3: Gross Point of Sale Revenue of $1,750,001 to $2,000,000 an incentive payment of 30% of Base Salary 

Tier 4: Gross Point of Sale Revenue of $2,000,001 to $2,500,000 an incentive payment of 40% of Base Salary 

Tier 5: Gross Point of Sale Revenue of $2,500,001 or greater an incentive payment of 50% of Base Salary 

The agreement terminates upon Mr. Jewell's death or by mutual written agreement, or upon Mr. Jewell's permanent disability, as described in 
the agreement. In addition, Mr. Jewell may terminate the agreement for any reason with 90 days' notice, and the Bank can terminate the 
agreement for "cause" (as defined in the agreement) or without cause upon 90 days' notice. The agreement contains standard clauses relating to 
base salary, benefits, expense reimbursement and confidentiality. If during the term of agreement, Mr. Jewell is terminated for "cause" (as 
defined in the agreement), he is due no additional compensation. Ifthe Bank terminates Mr. JeweU without cause, he is due a payment equal to 
all of his unused vacation time and an amount equal to six months of his then current base salary, payable in six equal monthly payments 
commencing two weeks after the date that the Release becomes effective and irrevocable. Ifa "change of control" (as defined in the agreement) 
occurs and the Bank terminates the agreement, Mr. Jewell is due a payment equal to 100%) of his base salary. The agreement also includes 
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confidentiality, non-compete and non-solicitation provisions. Mr. Jewell is also required to conduct a search for an additional person to be hired 
by the Bank who Mr. Jewell believes can succeed him and to train such person during the term ofthe agreement. 

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT AS OF DECEMBER 3 1 , 2013 

The table below represents the lump sum maximum amounts that the named executive officers would have been eligible to receive under their 
respective employment agreements upon a change in control or if their employment were to be terminated under one of the various scenarios 
described below as of December 31, 2013. Benefits payable under the Company's defined benefit/pension plan or 401(k) Plan are not included. 

Name 

Kevin B, Cashen 
H. King Corbett 
Gary M. Jewell 

Quit/Termination 
for Cause 

($) 
-
-
-

Termination 
Due to Death or 

Disability 
($) 

-
-

Termination Without 
Cause 

Reason 
in 

or For Good 
- No Change 
Control 

($) 
292,500 
123,750 
90,000 

Termination 
Without Cause or 
For Good Reason 
Following Change 

in Control 
($) 

790,000 
213,750 
180,000 

Non-Renewal of 
Employment by 

Bank 
($) 

250,000 
-
-

T A X AND ACCOUNTING IMPLICATIONS 

Section 162(m) of the Code generally disallows a tax deduction by publicly held companies for compensation paid to the Chief Executive 
Officer and the four most highly compensated executive officers other than the Chief Executive Officer, to the extent that total compensation 
exceeds $1 miUion per covered officer in any taxable year. A provision of EESA and Treasury Department regulations now limit a TARP 
participant's tax deduction for compensation paid to any SEO to $500,000 annually. The $1 million UmUation previously applied only to 
compensation which was not considered to be performance-based compensation. Subject to the application of EESA, compensation deemed paid 
by the Company in connection with disquaUfying dispositions of incentive stock option shares or exercises of non-qualified stock options and 
stock appreciation rights granted under its equity plans qualifies as performance-based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m) ifthe grants 
were made by a committee of "outside directors" as defined under Section 162(m). During 2013, none ofthe Company's SEOs received total 
compensation in excess of $500,000 and accordingly, all compensation paid to the Company's SEOs should be deductible by the Company 
without limitation under Section 162(m) ofthe Code. As noted above, the Company terminated its participation in TARP on April 19, 2013. 

Section 409 A ofthe Code imposes certain restrictions on the manner and timing of distributions to participants who are "key employees" ofthe 
Company under non-qualified deferred compensation plans and arrangements, including a prohibition against paying benefits to a key executive 
for six months foUowing his or her separation from service. If nonqualified deferred compensation subject to Section 409A does not comply 
with Section 409A, then the compensation is taxable in the first year that it is not subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. In such case, the 
employee is subject to regular federal income tax, interest and an additional federal income tax of 20%) ofthe compensation includible in income. 

As noted above, the Bank stractured the change in control severance payment that may be payable to Kevin B. Cashen so as to minimize the 
risk that the total compensation paid to him in connection with a change in control transaction would exceed the limit established pursuant to 
Section 280G ofthe Code. 

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

The following paragraphs discuss related party transactions that occurred during 2013 and 2012 and related party transactions that are 
contemplated during 2014 (other than compensation paid or awarded to the Company's directors, director nominees execulive officers that is 
required to be discussed, or is exempt from discussion, pursuant to the Company's proxy statements on Schedule 14A. For this purpose, the term 
"related party transaction" is generaUy defined as any transaction (or series of related transactions) in which (i) the Company or any of its 
subsidiaries is a participant, (ii) the amount involved exceeds the lesser of (a) $120,000 or (b) 1.0% ofthe Company's average total assets at year-
end for the last two completed fiscal years, and (iii) any director, director nominee or executive officer of the Company or any person who 
beneficially owns more than 5%o ofthe outstanding shares of Common Stock (and the immediate family members and affiliates ofthe foregoing) 
has a direct or indirect interest. The term includes most financial ttansactions and arrangements, such as loans, guarantees and sales of property, 
and remuneration for services rendered (as an employee, consultant or otherwise) to the Company and its subsidiaries. 

During 2013 and 2012, the Company, through the Bank and Carrollton Bank, had banking transactions in the ordinary course of its business 
with the Company's directors, director nominees, executive officers, 5% or greater stockholders and immediate family members and affiUates of 
the foregoing. All of these transactions were substantially the same terms, including interest rates, coUateral, and repayment terms on loans, as 
those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with persons unrelated to the Company and its subsidiaries. The extensions of 
credit to these persons by the Bank and Carrollton Bank have not had and do not currently involve more than the normal risk of collectability or 
present other unfavorable features. 

Robert J. Aumiller, a director of both the Company and the Bank, is President and General Counsel for Mackenzie Commercial Real Estate 
Services, a brokerage and real estate development firm, through which the Company and the Bank paid approximately $3,940 in 2013 and $2,385 
in 2012 for appraisal, constraction, brokerage and property management services. Management believes that the terms of these transactions were 
at least as favorable to the Company as could have been obtained elsewhere. The Company's wholly ovmed subsidiary. Bay Bank, leases the 
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offices housing its headquarters from Joppa Green II Limited Partnership, LLP, an entity owned by Mr. Aumiller. During 2013 and 2012, Bay 
Bank paid rent under this lease of $341,000 and $313,000, respectively. 

The Company uses the following guidelines to determine the impact of a credit relationship on a director's independence. We consider 
extensions of credit which comply with Federal Reserve Regulation O to be consistent with director independence. In other words, the Company 
does not consider normal, arm's-length credit relationships entered into in the ordinary course ofbusiness to negate a director's independence. 

Regulation O requires that loans to directors and executive officers be made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and 
collateral, and foUowing credit-underwriting procedures that are no less stringent than those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions by 
the Company with persons who are not related to the Company or the Bank. Such loans also may not involve more than the normal risk of 
repayment or present other unfavorable features. Additionally, no event of defauU may have occurred (that is, such loans are not disclosed as 
non-accraal, past due, restractured, or potential problems). The Audh Committee must review and approve any credU to a director or his or her 
related interests and submit such ttansaction to the fiill Board ofDirectors for approval. 

In addition, the Company does not consider as independent, for the purpose of voting on any such loans, any director who is also an executive 
officer of a company to which we have extended credit unless such credh meets the substantive requirements of Regulation O. Similarly, the 
Company does not consider independent any director who is an executive officer of a company that makes payments to, or receives payments 
from, the Company for property or services in an amount which, in any fiscal year, is greater than 2% of such director's company's consolidated 
gross revenues. 
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AUDIT C O M M I T T E E R E P O R T 

The Audit Committee ofthe Board ofDirectors has: (i) reviewed and discussed the Company's audited financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 with management and representatives of McGladrey LLP ("McGladrey"), the Company's independent registered public 
accounting firm; (ii) discussed with McGladrey all matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended 
(AICPA, Professional Standards, Vol. 1, AU Section 380), as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T; and 
(iii) received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from McGladrey required by applicable requirements of the Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board regarding McGladrey's communications with the Audit Coinmittee conceming independence and has discussed 
with McGladrey their independence. Based on these reviews and discussions, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that 
the Company's audited financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

By: AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Charles L. Maskell, Jr., Chairman 

Steven K. Breeden 

Harold I. Hackerman 

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE 

Pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act and the rales promulgated thereunder, the Company's executive ofBcers and directors and 
persons who beneficially own more than 10% ofthe outstanding shares of Conimon Stock are required to file certain reports regarding their 
ownership of Common Stock with the SEC. Based solely on a review of copies of such reports fiunished to the Company, or written 
representations that no reports were required, the Company believes that all such persons timely filed all reports required to be filed by Section 
16(a) during the year ended December 31, 2013. 

RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 
(PROPOSAL 2) 

The Audit Committee ofthe Board ofDirectors has appointed McGladrey to serve as the Company's independent registered public accounting 
firm for the year ending December 31, 2014. At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked to ratify this appointment. McGladrey audited 
the Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013. McGladrey has advised the Corporation that neither the accounting 
firm nor any of its members or associates has any direct financial interest in or any connection with the Company other than as independent 
public auditors. A representative of McGladrey will be present at the Annual Meeting and will be given the opportunity to make a statement, if he 
or she so desires, and to respond to appropriate questions. 

VOTE REQUIRED 

A majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting is required for approval of the ratification of the appointment of McGladrey as the 
Company's independent registered public accounting firm for 2013 as set forth in this Proposal 2. Abstentions and broker non-votes, ifany, will 
have no effect on the vote for this Proposal 4. 

Ifthe stockholders fail to ratify this appointment, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether to retain McGladrey and may retain that firm or 
another firm without resubmitting the matter to our stockholders. Even ifthe appointment is ratified, the Audit Committee may, in its discretion, 
direct the appointment of different independent public accountants at any time during the year if it determines that such change would be in the 
best interests ofthe Company and its stockholders. 

BOARD RECOMMENDATION 

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" ratification of the appointment of McGladrey LLP as the Company's 
independent registered public accounting firm for 2014. 

AUDIT FEES AND SERVICES 

As noted above, McGladrey audited the Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, and it audited Jefferson's 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012. Rowles & Company, LLP ("Rowles") audited the Company's financial statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2012. Because the shares of Common Stock issued to Jefferson's stockholders in the Merger exceeded 50% of 
the shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after the Merger, Jefferson was deemed to be the acquiring entify in the Merger for 
accounting purposes. As a result, the assets and liabilities and the historical operations that will be reflected in the Company's consolidated 
financial statements going forward will be those of Jefferson. The SEC has released guidance that unless the same accountant reported on the 
most recent financial statements of both the accounting acquirer and the legal successor, a reverse acquisition results in a change in accountants. 

On May 22, 2013, the AudU Committee dismissed Rowles as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm and appointed 
McGladrey to audU the Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

Rowles's report on the consoUdated financial statements ofthe Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 did not contain an 
adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and was not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principle. 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, and during the interim period from December 31, 2012 to May 22, 2013, the date on which Rowles 
was dismissed, there were no disagreements between the Company and Rowles on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial 
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statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of Rowles, would have caused 
Rowles to make reference to such disagreement in its report on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, there were no reportable events between the Company and Rowles. 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, and during the interim period from December 31, 2012 to May 22, 2013, the date on which 
McGladrey was appointed, the Company did not consuh with McGladrey regarding any of the matters described in Item 304(a)(2)(i) or Item 
304(a)(2)(ii) of Regulation S-K. 

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by McGladrey for the year ended December 31, 2013: 

2013 

Audit Fees S 167,817 
Audit - Related Fees 78,911 
Tax Fees 20,500 

Total S 267,228 

Audit Fees incurred in 2013 consisted of professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's annual consolidated financial 
statements included in the Company's Form 10-K and the review ofthe consolidated financial statements included in the Company's Quarterly 
Reports on Form 10-Q. 

Audit-Related Fees incurred in 2013 include charges related primarily to the acquisition of legacy Carrollton Bancorp as well as to audits ofthe 
Company's defined benefit plan audit and the Company's 401(K) plan. 

Tax Fees in 2013 represent tax services for preparation of annual tax retums, review of quarterly estimates, and services related to the 
acquisition of legacy Carrollton Bancorp. 

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by Rowles for the year ended December 31, 2012: 

2012 

Audit Fees S 85,805 
Audit - Related Fees 15,045 
Tax Fees 17,902 

Total $ 118,752 

Audit Fees incurred in 2012 consisted of professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's annual consolidated financial 
statements included in the Company's Form 10-K and the review ofthe consolidated financial statements included in the Company's Quarterly 
Reports on Form 10-Q. 

Audh-Related Fees incurred in 2012 include charges related to the Company's defined benefit plan audit and the Company's 401(K) plan audit. 

Tax Fees in 2012 represent tax services for tax compliance, tax advice, tax planning and income tax retum preparation. 

It is the AudU Committee's policy to pre-approve all audit services and permitted non-audit services (including the fees and terms thereof) to be 
performed for the Company by its independent registered public accounting firm, subject to the de minimis exceptions for non-audU services 
described in Section 10A(i)(l)(B) ofthe Exchange Act, which, when needed, are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the completion ofthe 
independent registered pubUc accounting firm's audit. All of the 2013 and 2012 services described above were pre-approved by the Audit 
Committee. 

ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION (PROPOSAL 3) 

At the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, pursuant to by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, the Board of 
Directors solicited a non-binding advisory vote as to the frequency with which stockholders should be asked to approve the compensation paid to 
the Company's named executive officers as disclosed by the Company pursuant to Item 402 ofthe SEC's Regulation S-K (frequently referred to 
as the "Say-on-Pay Vote"). After considering the outcome of that vote, the Board has decided to hold a Say-on-Pay Vote on an annual basis. 

The Company's goal for its executive compensation program is to attract, motivate and retain a talented team of executives who will provide 
leadership for the Company's success in dynamic and competitive markets. The section of this Proxy Statement entitled "Executive 
Compensation" contains the information required by Item 402 of Regulation S-K and discusses in detail the Company's executive compensation 
program and the compensation that was eamed by, awarded to or paid to the Company's named executive officers in 2013. 

The Board of Directors believes that the Company's compensation phUosophy and policies are reasonable in comparison both to similarly-
sized companies in our industry and to the Company's performance during 2013. The Board of Directors also believes that the Company's 
compensation program aligns executive officers with the interests of stockholders in the long-term value of the Company as well as the 
components that drive long-term value. 

At the Annual Meeting, stockholders will be asked to adopt the foUowing non-binding advisory resolution: 
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RESOLVED, that the compensation paid to the named executive officers of Bay Bancorp, Inc., as disclosed in its 
definitive Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K, including 
in the section entitled "Executive Compensation", is hereby approved. 

INTERESTS OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

Because this advisory vote relates to, and may impact, the Company's executive compensation policies and practices, the Company's executive 
officers, including its named executive officers, have an interest in the outcome ofthis vote. 

VOTE REQUIRED 

The adoption of the foregoing resolution requires the affirmative vote of the majority of the shares of Common Stock present in person or 
represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote thereon. 

Because your vote is advisory, ft will not be binding on the Board ofDirectors or Us Compensation Committee, overrale any decision made by 
the Board or its Compensation Committee, or create or imply any additional fiduciary duty by the Board or its Compensation Committee. The 
Board and its Compensation Committee may, however, take into account the outcome of the vote when considering fiiture executive 
compensation arrangements. 

BOARD R E C O M M E N D A T I O N 

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders vote FOR approval of the compensation of the Company's named 
executive officers, as disclosed in this Proxy Statement pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K. 

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR THE 2015 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 

A stockholder who desires to present a proposal pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act to be included in the Proxy Statement 
for and voted on at the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must submU such proposal in writing, including all supporting materials, to the 
Company at its executive offices no later than December 12, 2014 (i.e., 120 days prior to the date of mailing ofthe Proxy Statement for that 
meeting, based on this year's Proxy Statement mailing date) and meet all other requirements for inclusion in the Proxy Statement. Additionally, 
pursuant to Rule 14a-4(c)(l) under the Exchange Act, ifa stockholder intends to present a proposal for business to be considered at the 2015 
Annual Meeting of stockholders but does not seek inclusion of the proposal in the Company's Proxy Statement for that meeting, then the 
Company must receive the proposal by Febraary 25, 2015 (i.e., 45 days prior to the date of mailing ofthe Proxy Statement for that meeting, 
based on this year's Proxy Statement mailing date for it to be considered timely received. Rules 14a-8 and 14a-4(c)(l) provide additional time 
consfraints ifthe date ofthe 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is changed by more than 30 days. Ifnotice ofa stockholder proposal is not 
timely received as set forth above, then the proxies will be authorized to exercise discretionary authority with respect to the proposal. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A copy ofthe Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, which contains audited fmancial statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2013, accompanies this Proxy Statement. This Form 10-K may also be obtained without charge by visiting the 
Company's website (www.baybankmd.com) or upon written request to: Corporate Secretary, Bay Bancorp, Inc., 2328 West Joppa 
Road, Suite 325, Lutherville, Maryland 21093. 

DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS TO STOCKHOLDERS SHARING AN ADDRESS 

The SEC has adopted rales that allow us to deliver a single annual report. Proxy Statement, Proxy Statement combined with a prospectus, or 
any information statement to two or more stockholders sharing the same address by delivering a single Proxy Statement addressed to those 
stockholders. This is known as "householding." 

The Company is delivering only one Annual Report and Proxy Statement to stockholders sharing an address and who have the same last name 
or who we believe to be members ofthe same family, unless contrary instractions have been received from the affected stockholders. Most banks 
and brokers also are delivering only one copy ofthe Company's annual report and the Proxy Statement to consenting street-name stockholders 
(who own shares in the name of a bank, broker or other holder of record on our books maintained by our transfer agent) who share the same 
address. 

Once you have received notice from your broker or the Company that they are or the Company will be householding materials to your address, 
householding will continue until you are notified otherwise or until you revoke your consent. Therefore, if you share the same last name and 
address with one or more stockholders, from now on, imless the Company receives contrary instractions from you (or from one of these other 
stockholders), you and all other stockholders who have your last name and live at the same home address will receive only one copy ofany ofthe 
Company's annual report. Proxy Statement, and/or Proxy Statement combined with a prospectus or information statement. The Company will 
include with the household materials for its Annual Meetings, or any other stockholders' meeting, a separate Notice of Annual Meeting and 
proxy card for each registered stockholder who shares your last name and lives at your home address. 

If you do not wish to participate in the householding program and would prefer to receive separate proxy materials in the future, or if you 
currently receive multiple Proxy Statements and would prefer to participate in householding, please contact the Company's transfer agent, 
American Stock Transfer & Trast Company, or, if you hold your shares in street name, your bank, broker or other record holder. You may 
contact American Stock Transfer & Trast Company at 1-800-937-5449 or 6201 15* Avenue, 3'"'' Floor, Brooklyn, NY 11219 to "opt-out" or 
revoke your consent. Ifyou "opt-out" or revoke your consent to householding, each primary account holder residing at your address will receive 
individual copies ofthe Company's Proxy Statement, annual report and other future stockholder mailings. The Company will deliver promptly 

Bay Bancorp, Inc., Proxy Statement - Page 20 

http://www.baybankmd.com


upon oral or written request to our transfer agent a separate copy of its current annual report and this Proxy Statement to any security holder at a 
shared address to which a single copy of such documents was delivered in connection with the Annual Meeting. 

To View the Annual Report and Proxy Materials Online go to: 
http://www.baybankmd.com/AboutUs/InvestorRelations/PROXYMATERIALS.aspx 

O T H E R MATTERS 

The management ofthe Company knows of no matters to be presented for action at the meeting other than those mentioned above; however, if 
any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, it is intended that the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote on such 
other matters in accordance with their judgment ofthe best interest ofthe Company. 
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PARTI 

As used in this Annual Report, the term "the Company" refers to Bay Bancorp, Inc. and, unless the context clearly requires 
otherwise, the terms "we," "us," and "our," refer to Bay Bancorp, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A ofthe Securities 
Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Acf). All statements 
included or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, other than statements that are purely historical, are 
forward-looking statements. Statements that include the use of terminology such as "anticipates," "expects," "intends," "plans," 
"believes," "estimates," and similar expressions also identify forward-looking statements. The statements in this report with respect 
to, among other things, our plans and strategies; objectives and intentions and the anticipated results thereof; the impact ofthe recent 
merger; the impact of regulations on our business; our potential exposure to various types of market risks, such as interest rate risk and 
credit risk; anticipated funding of commitments to extend credit and unused lines of credit; potential losses from off-balance sheet 
arrangements, taking advantage of opportunities emerging as the business environment improves and leads to increased loan demand 
in the future; the recovery of fair value of available for sale securities; the allowance for loan losses; liquidity sources and the impact 
ofthe outcome of pending legal proceedings are forward-looking. These forward-looking statements are based on our current 
intentions, beliefs, and expectations. 

These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that are difficult 
to predict. Actual results may differ materially fi-om these forward-looking statements because of, among other things: 

• unexpected changes or fiarther deterioration in the housing market or in general economic conditions in our market area, or a 
slowing economic recovery; 

• unexpected changes in market interest rates or monetary policy; 
• the impact of new governmental regulations that might require changes in our business liiodel; 
• changes in laws, regulations, policies and guidelines impacting our ability to collect on outstanding loans or otherwise 

negatively impacting its business; 
• higher than anticipated loan losses or the insufficiency ofthe allowance for credit losses; 
• changes in consumer confidence, spending and savings habits relative to the services we provide; 
• continued relationships with major customers; 
• competition from other financial institutions in originating loans, attracting deposits, and providing various financial services 

that may affect our profitability; 
• the ability to continue to grow our business intemally and through acquisition and successfiil integration of bank entities 

while controlling our costs; and 
• changes in competitive, governmental, regulatory, accounting, technological and other factors that may affect us specifically 

or the banking industry generally, including as a result ofthe Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act 
of 2010 (the "Dodd-Frank Act"). 

Existing and prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which 
speak only as ofthe date ofthis Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to update or revise the information contained in this report 
whether as a resuh of new infonnation, fiiture events or circumstances, or otherwise. Past resuhs of operations may not be indicative 
of future results. 



ITEM L BUSINESS 

GENERAL 

Bay Bancorp, Inc., a Maryland corporation organized in 1990, is a savings and loan holding company headquartered in 
Lutherville, Maryland. Until November 1, 2013, the Company operated under the name Carrollton Bancorp. Effective November 1, 
2013, the Company's name was changed to Bay Bancorp, Inc. 

On April 19,2013, the Company completed its previously announced merger with Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. ("Jefferson") with 
the Company as the surviving corporation (the "Merger"). The Merger was accounted for as a reverse acquisition, which means that 
for accounting and financial reporting purposes, Jefferson is deemed to have acquired the Company in the Merger even though the 
Company was the legal successor in the Merger, and the historical financial statements of Jefferson have become the Company's 
historical financial statements. Consequently, the assets and liabilities and the operations that are reflected in the historical 
consolidated financial statements prior to the Merger are those of Jefferson, and the historical consolidated fmancial statements after 
the Merger include the assets and liabilities of Jefferson and the Company, historical operations of Jefferson and operations ofthe 
combined Company after April 19, 2013. 

Prior to the Merger, the Company had one bank subsidiary, Carrollton Bank, and Jefferson had one bank subsidiary. Bay 
Bank, FSB (the "Bank"). The Bank commenced operations on July 9, 2010. As part ofthe Merger, Carrollton Bank merged with and 
into the Bank, with the Bank as the surviving bank subsidiary ofthe Company. The Bank is a federal savings bank ("FSB") that 
provides a fiill range of financial services to individuals, businesses and organizations through its branch and loan origination offices 
and its automated teller machines. Deposits in the Bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC"). The 
Bank has five subsidiaries: Bay Financial Services, Inc. ("BFS"); Carrollton Community Development Corporation ("CCDC"); and 
three limited liability company subsidiaries. 

We are focused on providing superior financial and customer service to small and medium-sized commercial and retail 
businesses, owners of these businesses and their employees, to business professionals and to individual consumers located in the 
central Maryland region, through our network of twelve branch locations. We attract deposit customers fi-om the general pubhc and 
use such funds, together with other borrowed ftmds, to make loans. Our results of operations are primarily determined by the 
difference between interest income eamed on our interest-eaming assets, primarily interest and fee income on loans, and interest paid 
on our interest-bearing liabilities, including deposits and borrowings. 

Our mortgage division is in the business of originating residential mortgage loans and then selling them to investors. The 
mortgage banking business is stmctured to provide a source of fee income largely from the process of originating residential mortgage 
loans for sale in the secondary market. Mortgage banking products include Federal Housing Administration and Federal Veterans 
Administration loans, conventional and nonconforming first and second mortgages, and constmction and permanent financing. Loans 
originated by the mortgage division are generally sold into the secondary market but may be considered for retention by us as part of 
our balance sheet strategy. 

BFS provides brokerage services and a variety of fmancial planning and investment options to customers. Through 
December 31, 2013, these services were provided in partnership with INVEST Financial Corp. ("INVEST") pursuant to a service 
agreement and BFS recognized commission income as these services were provided. The investment options BFS offered through 
this arrangement included mutual ftinds, U.S. govemment bonds, tax-free municipal bonds, individual retirement accounts, long-term 
care, and health care insurance services. INVEST is a full-service broker/dealer, registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority ("FTNRA") and the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), a member of Securities Investor Protection 
Corporation ("SIPC"), and licensed with state insurance agencies in all 50 states. BFS referred clients to an INVEST representative 
for investment counseling prior to purchase of securities. Our service agreement with INVEST terminated on December 31,2013; 
therefore, we are currently not offering brokerage services to our customers. We expect to resume offering brokerage services during 
2014. 

The Bank's three limited liability company subsidiaries manage and dispose of real estate acquired through foreclosure. 

CCDC promotes, develops, and improves the housing and economic conditions of people in Maryland. We coordinate its 
efforts to identify opportunities with a local non-profit ministry whose mission and vision is to eliminate poverty housing in the region 
by building decent houses for affordable homeownership throughout the Baltimore metropolitan region. CCDC generates revenue 
through the origination of loans for the purchase of these homes. 

The Merger has strengthened our market position geographically, enhanced our retail delivery channel, allowed us to provide 
exfraordinary customer service while delivering a fiiller range of services and products, and lessened our dependence on net interest 
income by adding fee-based sources of revenue including a mortgage origination division, electronic banking division and a brokerage 
services subsidiary. 



AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION 

We make available through the Investor Relations area ofour website, at www.baybankmd.com, annual reports on Form 10-
K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and any amendments to those reports filed or fiimished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In general, we intend that these reports be available as soon as practicable after they are filed with 
or fiimished to the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). The SEC maintains a website (www.sec.gov) where these filings 
are also available through the SEC's EDGAR system. There is no charge for access to these filings through either our site or the 
SEC's site. 

MARKET AREA 

We consider our core markets to be the communities within the Baltimore Metropolitan Statistical Area, particularly 
Baltimore City and the Maryland counties of Baltimore, Anne Amndel, Howard, Carroll and Harford, as well as Wicomico and 
Somerset counties on the Eastem Shore of Maryland. Lending activities are broader, including the entire State of Maryland, and, to a 
limited extent, the surrounding states. All ofour revenue is generated within the United States. 

COMPETITION 

Our principal competitors for deposits are other fmancial institutions, including other savings institutions, commercial banks, 
credit unions, and local banks and branches or affiliates of other larger banks located in our primary market area. Competition among 
these institutions is based primarily on interest rates and other terms offered, service charges imposed on deposit accounts, the quality 
of services rendered, and the convenience of banking facilities. Additional competition for depositors' fiinds comes from mutual 
funds, U.S. Govemment securities, insurance companies and private issuers of debt obligations and suppliers of other investment 
altematives for depositors such as securities firms. Competition from credit unions has intensified in recent years as historical federal 
limits on membership have been relaxed. Because federal law subsidizes credit unions by giving them a general exemption from 
federal income taxes, credit unions have a sigmficant cost advantage over banks and savings associations, which are fully subject to 
federal income taxes. Credit unions may use this advantage to offer rates that are highly competitive with those offered by banks and 
thrifts. 

Current federal law allows the acquisition of banks by bank holding companies nationwide. Further, federal and Maryland 
law permit interstate banking. Recent legislation has broadened the extent to which financial services companies, such as investment 
banks and insurance companies, may control commercial banks. As a consequence of these developments, competition in our 
principal market may increase, and a fiirther consohdation of financial institutions in Maryland may occur. 

STRATEGY 

We operate on the premise that the consolidation activities in the banking industry have created an opportunity for a well-
capitalized community bank to satisfy banking needs that are no longer being adequately met in the local market. Large national and 
regional banks are catering to larger customers and provide an impersonal experience, and typical community banks, because oftheir 
limited capacity, are unable to meet the needs of many small-to-medium-sized businesses. Specifically, as a result of bank mergers in 
the 1990s, many banks in the Baltimore mefropolitan area became local branches of large regional and national banks. Although size 
gave the larger banks some advantages in competing for business from large corporations, including economies of scale and higher 
lending limits, we believe that these larger, national banks remain focused on a mass market approach which de-emphasizes personal 
contact and service. We also believe that the centralization of decision-making power at these large institutions has resulted in a lack 
of customer service. At many of these institutions, determinations are made at the out-of-state "home office" by individuals who lack 
personal contact with customers as well as an understanding ofthe customers' needs and scope ofthe relationship with the institution. 
We believe that this trend is ongoing, and continues to be particularly Irusfrating to owners of small and medium-sized businesses, 
business professionals and individual consumers who traditionally have been accustomed to dealing directly with a bank executive 
who had an understanding oftheir banking needs with the ability to deliver a prompt response. 

We attempt to differentiate ourselves from the compethion through personalized service, flexibility in meeting the needs of 
customers, prompt decision making and the availability of senior management to meet with customers and prospective customers. 

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

General 

Our primary market focus is on making loans to and gathering deposits from small and medium-sized businesses and their 
owners, professionals and executives, and individual consumers in our primary market area. We lend to customers throughout 
Maryland, with our core market the Baltimore MSA as well as Wicomico and Somerset counties. To a limited extent, we lend to 
customers in the surrounding states. Our lending activities consist generally of short to medium term commercial lending, commercial 
mortgage lending for both owner occupied and investor properties, residential mortgage lending and consumer lending, both secured 
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and unsecured. A substantial portion ofour loan portfolio consists of loans to businesses secured by real estate and/or other business 
assets. 

Lending Activities 

Credit Policies and Administration 

We have adopted a comprehensive lending policy, which includes stringent underwriting standards for all types of loans. 
Our lending staff follows pricing guidelines established periodically by our management team. All loan approvals require two 
signatures; no commercial loan authority is given to individual relationship managers. Loans to $750,000 must be approved by the 
ChiefLending Officer and Credit Administration or the CEO. Loans from $750,000 to $1,750,000 must be approved by the Chief 
Credit Officer and CEO. Loans from $1,750,000 to $3,250,000 must be approved by our Officers' Loan Committee. Loans greater 
than $3,250,000 must be approved by our Directors' Loan Committee with the prior approval ofthe Officers' Loan Committee. 
Under the leadership ofour executive management team, we believe that we employ experienced lending officers, secure appropriate 
collateral and carefully monitor the fmancial conditions ofour borrowers and the concentration of loans in our portfolio. 

In addition to the normal repayment risks, all loans in the portfolio are subject to the state ofthe economy and the related 
effects on the borrower and/or the real estate market. Generally, longer-term loans have periodic interest rate adjustments and/or call 
provisions. Senior management monitors the loan portfolio closely to ensure that we minimize past due loans and that we swiftly deal 
with potential problem loans. 

The Bank also retains an outside, independent firm to review the loan portfolio. This firm performs a detailed annual review. 
We use the resuhs ofthe firm's report primarily to validate the risk ratings applied to loans in the portfolio and identify any systemic 
weaknesses in underwriting, documentation or management ofthe portfolio. Results ofthe annual review are presented to executive 
management, the audit committee ofthe board and the full board ofdlrcctors and are available to and used by regulatory examiners 
when they review the Bank's asset quality. 

The Bank maintains the normal checks and balances on the loan portfolio not only through the underwriting process but 
through the utilization of an intemal credit administration group that both assists in the underwriting and serves as an additional 
reviewer of underwriting. The separately managed loan administration group also has oversight for documentation, compliance and 
timeliness of collection activities. Our outsourced intemal audit firm also reviews documentation, compliance and file management. 

Commercial Lending 

Our commercial lending consists of lines of credit, revolving credh facilities, accounts receivable and inventory financing, 
term loans, equipment loans, small business administration (SBA) loans, stand-by letters of credit and unsecured loans. We originate 
commercial loans for any business purpose, including the financing of leasehold improvements and equipment, the carrying of 
accounts receivable, general working capital, contract administration and acquisition activities. These loans typically have maturities 
often years or less. We have a diverse client base and we do not have a concentration of these types of loans in any specific industry 
segment. We generally secure commercial business loans with accounts receivable and inventory, equipment, indemnity deeds of 
tmst and other collateral such as marketable securities, cash value of life insurance, and time deposits at the Bank. Commercial 
business loans have a higher degree of risk than residential mortgage loans because the availability of funds for repayment generally 
depends on the success ofthe business. To help manage this risk, we establish parameters/covenants at the inception ofthe loan to 
provide early waming signals before payment defauh. We normally seek to obtain appropriate collateral and personal guarantees 
from the borrower's principal owners. We are able, given our business model, to proactively monitor the financial condhion ofthe 
business. 

Commercial Real Estate Lending 

We fmance commercial real estate for our clients, for both owner-occupied properties and investor properties (including 
residential properties). We generally will finance owner-occupied commercial real estate at a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 80% 
and investor commercial real estate at a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 75%. Our underwriting policies and processes focus on the 
underlying credit ofthe owner-occupied real estate and on the rental income stream (including rent terms and strength of tenants) for 
investor commercial real estate as well as an assessment ofthe underlying real estate. Risks inherent in managing a commercial real 
estate portfolio relate to vacancy rates/absorption rates for surrounding properties, sudden or gradual drops in property values as well 
as changes in the economic climate. We attempt to mitigate these risks by carefully underwriting loans ofthis type as well as by 
following appropriate loan-to-value standards. We are cash flow lenders and never rely solely on property valuations in reaching a 
lending decision. Personal guarantees are often required for commercial real estate loans as they are for other commercial loans. Most 
ofour real estate loans carry fixed interest rates and amortize over 20 - 25 years with five- to ten-year maturities. Properties securing 
our commercial real estate loans primarily include office buildings, office condominiums, distribution facilities, retail properties, and 
manufacturing plants. Substantially all ofour commercial real estate loans are secured by properties located in our primary market 
area. 



Commercial real estate loans generally carry higher interest rates and have shorter terms than one- to four-family residential 
mortgage loans. Commercial real estate loans, however, entail significant additional risks as compared with residential mortgage 
lending, as they typically involve larger loan balances concentrated with single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. In addition, 
the payment of loans secured by income producing properties typically depends on the successful operation ofthe property, as 
repayment ofthe loan generally is dependent, in large part, on sufficient income from the property to cover operating expenses and 
debt service. Changes in economic conditions that are not in the control ofthe borrower or lender could affect the value ofthe 
collateral for the loan or the future cash flow ofthe property. Additionally, any decline in real estate values may be more pronounced 
for commercial real estate than residential properties. 

Construction Lending 

Constmction lending can cover funding for land acquisition, land development and/or constmction of residential or 
commercial stmctures. Our construction loans generally bear a variable rate of interest and have terms of one to two years. Funds are 
advanced on a percentage-of-completion basis. These loans are generally repaid at the end ofthe development or construction phase, 
although loans for commercial constmction will often convert into a permanent commercial real estate loans at the end ofthe term of 
the loan. Loan to value parameters range from 65% ofthe value of raw land to 75% for developed land and 80% for commercial or 
multifamily constmction and residential constraction. These loan-to-value ratios represent the upper limit of advance rates to remain 
in compliance with Bank policy. Typically, loan-to-value ratios should be somewhat lower than these upper limits, requiring the 
borrower to provide significant equity at the inception ofthe loan. Our underwriting looks not only at the value ofthe property but the 
expected cash flows to be generated by sale ofthe parcels or completed constmction. The borrower must have solid experience in this 
type of construction and personal guarantees are required. 

Construction lending entails significant risks compared with residential mortgage lending. These risks involve larger loan 
balances concentrated with single borrowers with funds advanced upon the security ofthe land or the project under construction. The 
value ofthe project is estimated prior to the completion of construction. Thus, it is more difficult to evaluate accurately the total loan 
fiinds required to complete a project and related loan-to-value ratios. Ifthe estimate of construction or development cost proves to be 
inaccurate, we may be required to advance additional fiinds beyond the amount originally committed in order to protect the value of 
the property. Moreover, ifthe estimated value ofthe completed project proves to be inaccurate, the borrower may hold a property 
with a value that is insufficient to assure full repayment. To mitigate these risks, in addition to the underwriting considerations noted 
above, we maintain an in-house constmction monitoring unit that has oversight for the projects and we require both site visits and 
frequent reporting before fiinds are advanced. 

Residential Real Estate Lending 

We offer a variety of consumer-oriented residential real estate loans. Residential mortgage loans consist primarily of first 
mortgage loans to individuals, most of which have a loan-to-value not exceeding 80%. The remainder ofthis portion ofour portfolio 
consists of home equity lines of credit and fixed rate home equity loans. Our residential real estate loans are generally for owner-
occupied single family homes. These loans are generally for a primary residence although we will occasionally originate loans for a 
second home where the borrower has strong credit. Our residential real estate loans are generally either fixed rate loans with ten-year 
terms or five, seven, and ten-year adjustable rate mortgages with a thirty-year amortization. 

Our home equity loans and home equity lines of credit are primarily secured by a second mortgage on owner-occupied one-to 
four-family residences. Our home equity loans are originated at fixed or adjustable interest rates and with terms of between five and 
twenty years and are fully amortizing. Our home equity lines allow for the borrower to draw against the line for ten years, after which 
the outstanding balance is amortized over twenty years. Home equity lines of credit carry a variable rate of interest and are interest 
only during the draw period. Home equity loans and lines of credit are generally underwritten with a maximum combined loan-to-
value ratio of 80% although in some instances the combined loan-to-value ratio may reach 89.9%. We require appraisals or valuations 
on all real estate loans - both commercial and residential. At the time we close a home equity loan or line of credit, we record a 
mortgage to perfect our security interest in the underlying collateral. Home equity loans and lines of credh greater than $50,000 also 
require title insurance, and borrowers must obtain hazard insurance, and flood insurance ifapplicable. 

Home equity loans and lines of credit generally have greater risk than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. In these 
cases, we face the risk that collateral for a defaulted loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment ofthe outstanding loan 
balance. In particular, because home equity loans are secured by second mortgages, decreases in real estate values could adversely 
affect the value ofthe property serving as collateral for these loans. Thus, the recovery of such property could be insufficient to 
compensate us for the value of these loans. 

Our home equity loan portfolio gives us a diverse client base. Although most of these loans are in our primary market area, 
the diversity ofthe individual loans in the portfolio reduces our potential risk. 



Consumer Lending 

We offer various types of secured and unsecured consumer loans. Generally, our consumer loans are made for personal, 
family or household purposes as a convenience to our customer base. As a general guideline, a consumer's total debt service should 
not exceed 40% oftheir gross income. The underwriting standards for consumer loans include a determination ofthe applicant's 
payment history on other debts and an assessment of his or her ability to meet existing obligations and payments on the proposed loan. 

Consumer loans may present greater credh risk than residential real estate loans because many consumer loans are unsecured 
or are secured by rapidly depreciating assets. Repossessed collateral for a defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate 
source of repayment ofthe outstanding loan balance because ofthe greater likelihood of damage, loss or depreciation. Consumer loan 
collections also depend on the borrower's continuing financial stability. Ifa borrower suffers personal financial difficuhies, the loan 
may not be repaid. Also, various federal and state laws, including bankmptcy and insolvency laws, may limh the amount we can 
recover on such loans. 

Loan Originations. Purchases. Sales. Participations and Servicins 

All loans that we originate are underwritten pursuant to our policies and procedures, which incorporate standard underwriting 
guidelines. We originate both fixed and variable rate loans. Our loan origination activity may be adversely affected by a rising 
interest rate environment that typically resuhs in decreased loan demand. We occasionally sell participations in commercial loans to 
correspondent banks ifthe amount ofthe loan exceeds our intemal limhs. More rarely, we purchase loan participations from 
correspondent banks in the local market as well. Those loans are underwritten in-house with the same standards as loans directly 
originated. Our residential real estate loans originated for resale are discussed under "Mortgage Banking Activities" below. 

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority 

Our lending activities follow written, non-discriminatory underwriting standards and loan origination procedures established 
by our board of directors. The loan approval process is intended to assess the borrower's ability to repay the loan, the viability ofthe 
loan, and the adequacy ofthe value ofthe collateral that will secure the loan, ifapplicable. To assess a business borrower's ability to 
repay, we review and analyze, among other factors: current income, credh history including the Bank's prior experience with the 
borrower, cash flow, any secondary sources of repayment, other debt obligations in regards to the equity/net worth ofthe borrower 
and collateral available to the Bank to secure the loan. 

We require appraisals or valuations of all real property securing one- to four-family residential and coramercial real estate 
loans and home equity loans and lines of credh. All appraisers are state-licensed or state-certified appraisers, and a list of approved 
appraisers is maintained and updated on an annual basis. 

Deposit Activities 

Deposhs are the major source ofour funding. We offer a broad array ofconsumer and business deposit products that include 
demand, money market, savings and individual retirement accounts, as well as time deposits. We offer through key technology 
partnerships a competitive artay of commercial cash management products, which in combination with our in-house courier service 
and remote deposit/check imaging service, allow us to attract demand deposits. We believe that we pay competitive rates on our 
interest-bearing deposits. As a relationship-oriented organization, we generally seek to obtain deposh relationships with our loan 
clients. 

We offer Certificate of Deposh Registry Service ("CDARS") and Insured Cash Sweep ("ICS") deposits to our customers. 
These programs allow customers to deposh more than would normally be covered by FDIC insurance. CDARS and ICS are 
nationwide programs that allow participating banks to "swap" customer deposits so that no customer has greater than the insurable 
maximum in one bank, while allowing the customer the convenience of maintaining a relationship with only one bank. 

Mortgage Banking Activities 

We also originate residential mortgage loans for resale in the secondary mortgage market through our mortgage division. 
These loans are also underwritten pursuant to standard underwriting guidelines. While our intent is to sell all loans originated as loans 
held for sale, we occasionally are unable to sell a loan due to some undenvriting defect. These loans are transferred to the loan 
portfolio at the lower oftheir cost or fair value as ofthe date of transfer. Loans held for sale are sold with servicing rights released; 
gains or losses are recorded at the date of sale 

Brokerage Activities 

BFS provides full service brokerage services for stocks, bonds, mutual funds and annuities. For 2013, commission income 
totaled $471,810 and net income from brokerage activities was $98,258. Our service agreement with INVEST terminated on 
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December 31, 2013; therefore, we are curtently not offering brokerage services to our customers. We expect to resume offering 
brokerage services during 2014. 

Other Banking Products 

We offer our customers wire transfer services, ACH services, ATM and check cards, automated teller machines at most of 
our full-service branch locations, safe deposit boxes at some full-service locations and credit cards through a third party processor. In 
addition to ttaditional deposit services, we offer telephone banking services, mobile banking, intemet banking services and intemet 
bill paying services to our customers. We also offer remote deposit capture to our commercial customers and mobile capture to our 
business and consumer customers. ' 

EMPLOYEES 

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank had 145 full-time and 4 part-time employees. None ofour employees are represented by 
a union or covered under a collective bargaining agreement. Management considers its employee relations to be excellent. 

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION 

General 

The Company is a savings and loan holding company registered with the Board of Govemors ofthe Federal Reserve System 
(the "Federal Reserve") under the Home Owners Loan Act of 1933, as amended (the "HOL Acf), and, as such, is subject to the 
supervision, examination and reporting requirements ofthe HOL Act and the regulations ofthe Federal Reserve. As a publicly-fraded 
company whose common stock is registered under Section 12(b) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange 
Acf), and listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market, the Company is also subject to regulation and supervision by the SEC and The 
NASDAQ Stock Market, LLC ("NASDAQ"). 

The Bank is supervised and examined by the Office ofthe Comptroller ofthe Currency ("OCC") and is also subject to 
examination by the FDIC. This regulation and supervision establishes a comprehensive framework of activities in which an institution 
may engage and is intended primarily for the protection ofthe FDIC's deposit insurance ftinds and depositors, and not for the 
protection of stockholders. Under this system of federal regulation, financial institutions are periodically examined to ensure that they 
satisfy applicable standards with respect to their capital adequacy, assets, management, eamings, liquidity and sensitivity to market 
interest rates. The Bank also is a member of and owns stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, which is one ofthe twelve 
regional banks in the Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank also is regulated to a lesser extent by the Federal Reserve, which 
govems reserves to be maintained against deposhs and other matters. The OCC examines the Bank and prepares reports for the 
consideration of hs board ofdlrcctors on any operating deficiencies. The Bank's relationship with its depositors and borrowers also is 
regulated to a great extent by federal law and, to a much lesser extent, state law, especially in matters conceming the ownership of 
deposh accounts and the form and content ofthe Bank's loan documents. In addhion to the foregoing, there are a myriad of other 
federal and state laws and regulations that affect, impact or govem the business of banking, including consumer lending, deposit-
taking, and tmst operations. 

All non-bank subsidiaries ofthe Company are subject to examination by the Federal Reserve, and, as affihates ofthe Bank, 
are subject to examination by the OCC and the FDIC. 

Any change in these laws or regulations, whether by the FDIC, the OCC or Congress, could have a material adverse impact 
on the Company, the Bank and their operations. 

Certain ofthe regulatory requirements that are applicable to the Bank and Company are described below. This description of 
statutes and regulations is not intended to be a complete description of such statutes and regulations and their effects on the Company 
and the Bank, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual statutes and regulations. 

Recent Regulatory Reforms 

The Dodd-Frank Act, which was enacted in July 2010, significantly restmctures the fmancial regulatory regime in the United 
States. Although the Dodd-Frank Act's provisions that have received the most public attention generally have been those applying to 
or more likely to affect larger institutions such as banks and bank holding companies with total consolidated assets of $50 billion or 
more, it contains numerous other provisions that affect all financial institutions, including the Company and the Bank. The Dodd-
Frank Act contains a wide variety of provisions (many of which are not yet effective) affecting the regulation of savings and loan 
holding companies and depository institutions, including restrictions related to mortgage originations, risk retention requirements as to 
securitized loans, and the establishment ofa new financial consumer protection agency, known as the Consumer Financial Protection 
Bureau (the "CFPB"), that is empowered to promulgate and enforce new consumer protection regulations and revise and enforce 
existing regulations in many areas ofconsumer compliance. 
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Moreover, not only are the states' attomeys general entitled to enforce consumer protection mles issued by the CFPB, but 
states are permitted to adopt their own consumer protection laws that are more strict than those created under the Dodd-Frank Act. 
Recently, U.S. financial regulatory agencies have increasingly used general consumer protection statutes to address unethical or 
otherwise bad business practices that may not necessarily fall directly under the purview ofa specific banking or consumer finance 
law. Prior to the Dodd-Frank Act, there was little formal guidance as to the parameters for compliance with the federal "unfair or 
deceptive acts or practices" ("UDAP") laws. However, the UDAP provisions have been expanded under the Dodd-Frank Act to apply 
to "unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices", which has been delegated to the CFPB for supervision. 

The legislation also broadens the base for FDIC insurance assessments. Assessments will now be based on the average 
consolidated total assets less tangible equity caphal ofa financial institution. The Dodd-Frank Act also permanently increased the 
maximum amount of deposit insurance for banks, savings institutions and credit unions to $250,000 per depositor, retroactive to 
January 1, 2008. Lastly, the Dodd-Frank Act will increase stockholder influence over boards of directors by requiring companies to 
give stockholders the opportunity to approve or disapprove, by non-binding advisory votes, executive compensation and, in certain 
circumstances, so-called "golden parachute" payments. The legislation also directs the Federal Reserve to promulgate rales 
prohibiting excessive compensation paid to bank holding company executives, regardless of whether the company is publicly traded or 
not. 

During 2013, significant media attention was given to the Dodd-Frank Act's amendment ofthe Bank Holding Company Act 
of 1956 (the "BHC Acf) to require the U.S. financial regulatory agencies to adopt rales that prohibh banking institutions and their 
affiliates from engaging in proprietary trading and investing in and sponsoring certain unregistered investment companies (defmed as 
hedge fiinds and private equity funds). The statutory provision is commonly called the "Volcker Rule". The U.S. financial regulatory 
agencies adopted final rales implementing the Volcker Rule on December 10, 2013. The Volcker Rule became effective on July 21, 
2012 and the final rales have an effective date ofApril 1, 2014, but the U.S. financial regulatory agencies issued an order extending 
the period during which institutions have to conform their activities and investments to the requirements ofthe Volcker Rule to July 
21, 2015. Although we continue to evaluate the impact ofthe Volcker Rule and the final rales adopted thereunder, we do not 
anticipate that they will have a material effect on our operations, as we believe that we do not engage in the businesses prohibited by 
the Volcker Rule. We may incur costs related to the adoption of additional policies and systems to ensure compliance with the 
Volcker Rule, but we do not expect that such costs would be material. 

Many ofthe Dodd-Frank Act's provisions are subject to final ralemaking by the U.S. financial regulatory agencies, and the 
Dodd-Frank Act's impact on our business will depend to a large extent on how and when such rales are adopted and implemented by 
the primary U.S. financial regulatory agencies. We continue to analyze the impact of rules adopted under the Dodd-Frank Act on oiu-
business, but the full impact will not be known until the rales and related regulatory initiatives are finalized and their combined impact 
can be understood. We do anticipate that the Dodd-Frank Act will increase our regulatory compliance burdens and costs and may 
restrict the financial products and services that we offer to our customers in the future. In particular, the Dodd-Frank Act will require 
us to invest significant management attention and resources so that we can evaluate the impact of and ensure compliance with this law 
and its mles. 

Federal Banking Regulation 

Business Activities 

A federal savings bank derives its lending and investment powers from the HOL Act, and the regulations ofthe OCC. Under 
these laws and regulations, the Bank may invest in mortgage loans secured by residential and commercial real estate, commercial 
business and consumer loans, certain types of debt securities and certain other assets, subject to applicable limits. The Batik also may 
establish subsidiaries that may engage in activities not otherwise permissible for the Bank, including real estate investment and 
securities and insurance brokerage. 

Capital Requirements 

The federal regulatory authorities' current risk-based capital guidelines are based upon the 1988 capital accord ("Basel I") of 
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the "Basel Committee"). The Basel Committee is a committee of central banks and 
bank supervisors/regulators from the major industrialized countries that develops broad policy guidelines for use by each country's 
supervisors in determining the supervisory policies they apply. The requirements are intended to ensure that banking organizations 
have adequate capital given the risk levels of assets and off-balance sheet financial instraments. Under the requirements, most 
banking organizations, including FSBs, are required to maintain minimum ratios for Tier 1 capital and total capital to risk-weighted 
assets (including certain off-balance sheet items, such as letters of credit). For purposes of calculating the ratios, a banking 
organization's assets and some of its specified off-balance sheet commitments and obligations are assigned to various risk categories. 
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A depository institution's capital, in tum, is classified in one of two tiers, depending on type: 

• Core Capital (Tier 1). Tier 1 capital includes common equity, retained eamings, qualifying non-cumulative perpetual 
preferred stock, minority interests in equity accounts ofconsolidated subsidiaries (and, under existing standards, a limited 
amount of qualifying trast preferred securities and qualifying cumulative perpetual preferred stock at the holding company 
level), less goodwill, most intangible assets and certain other assets. 

• Supplementary Caphal (Tier 2). Tier 2 caphal includes, among other things, perpetual preferred stock and trast preferted 
securities not meeting the Tier 1 definition, qualifying mandatory convertible debt securities, qualifying subordinated debt, 
and allowances for loan and lease losses, subject to limitations. 

The risk-based capital standards applicable to the Bank require it to maintain Tier 1 (core) and total capital (which is defmed 
as core capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighted assets ofat least 4%, (3% for savings banks receiving the highest rating on 
the CAMELS rating system) and 8%, respectively. In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including certain off-
balance sheet assets, are multiplied by a risk-weight factor of 0% to 100%, assigned by the OCC, based on the risks beheved inherent 
in the type of asset. Core capital is defined as common stockholders' equity (including retained eamings), certain noncumulative 
perpetual preferred stock and related surplus and minority interests in equity accounts ofconsolidated subsidiaries, less intangibles 
other than certain mortgage servicing rights and credh card relationships. The components of supplementary caphal include 
cumulative preferred stock, long-term perpetual preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, subordinated debt and intermediate 
preferred stock, the allowance for loan and lease losses limited to a maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets and up to 45% of net 
unrealized gains on available-for-sale equity securities with readily determinable fair market values. Overall, the amount of 
supplementary capital included as part of total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital. Additionally, a savings bank that retains 
credit risk in connection with an asset sale may be required to maintain additional regulatory capital because ofthe purchaser's 
recourse against the savings bank. In assessing an institution's capital adequacy, the OCC takes into consideration not only these 
numeric factors but qualitative factors as well, and has the authority to establish higher capital requirements for individual associations 
where necessary. In addhion, the Bank is required to maintain a tangible capital ratio ofat least 1.5%. 

On July 2, 2013, the Federal Reserve approved final rales (the "Basel III Capital Rules") that substantially amend the 
regulatory risk-based capital rales applicable to the Company. The FDIC and the OCC have subsequently approved these rales, which 
will apply to the Bank. The Basel III Capital Rules were adopted following the issuance of proposed rales by the Federal Reserve in 
June 2012, and implement the "Basel III" regulatory capital reforms and changes required by the Dodd-Frank Act. Basel III refers to 
two consultative documents released by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in December 2009, the text ofthe Basel III 
Capital Rules released in December 2010, and loss absorbency rales issued in January 2011, which include significant changes to 
bank capital, leverage and liquidity requirements. 

The Basel III Capital Rules include new risk-based capital and leverage ratios that will apply to both the Company and the 
Bank, which will be phased in from 2015 to 2019, and which refine the definition of what constitutes "capital" for purposes of 
calculating those ratios. The new minimum capital level requirements applicable to the Company under the Basel III Capital Rules 
will be: (i) a new common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%; (ii) a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6% (increased from 4%); (iii) a total capital 
ratio of 8% (unchanged from current rales); and (iv) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 4% for all institutions. The final rales also establish a 
"capital conservation buffer" above the new regulatory minimum capital requirements, which must consist entirely ofcommon equity 
Tier 1 capital. The capital conservation buffer will be phased-in over four years beginning on January 1, 2016, as follows: the 
maximum buffer wih be 0.625% of risk-weighted assets for 2016, 1.25% for 2017, 1.875% for 2018, and 2.5% for 2019 and 
thereafter. This will result in the following minimum ratios beginning in 2019: (a) a conimon equity Tier I capital ratio of 7.0%, (b) a 
Tier 1 caphal ratio of 8.5%, and (c) a total capital ratio of 10.5%. Under the final rales, institutions are subject to limitations on 
paying dividends, engaging in share repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses if its capital level falls below the buffer amount. 
These limitations establish a maximum percentage of eligible retained income that could be utilized for such actions. 

The Basel III Capital Rules also implement revisions and clarifications consistent with Basel III regarding the various 
components of Tier 1 capital, including common equity, unrealized gains and losses, as well as certain instraments that will no longer 
qualify as Tier I capital, some of which will be phased out over time. Under the final rales, the effects of certain accumulated other 
comprehensive items are not excluded; however, banking organizations like the Company and the Bank that are not considered 
"advanced approaches" banking organizations may make a one-time permanent election to continue to exclude these items. The 
Company and the Bank expect to make this election in order to avoid significant variations in the level of capital depending upon the 
impact of interest rate fluctuations on the fair value ofthe Bank's available-for-sale securities portfolio. 

The Basel III Capital Rules also contain revisions to the prompt corrective action framework, which is designed to place 
restrictions on insured depository institutions if their capital levels begin to show signs of weakness. These revisions take effect 
January I, 2015. Under the prompt corrective action requirements, which are designed to complement the capital conservation buffer, 
insured depository institutions will be required to meet the following increased capital level requirements in order to qualify as "well 
capitalized": (i) a new common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 6.5%; (ii) a Tier 1 caphal ratio of 8% (increased from 6%); (iii) a total 
capital ratio of 10% (unchanged from current rules); and (iv) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 5% (increased from 4%). 
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The Basel III Capital Rules set forth certain changes for the calculation of risk-weighted assets, which we will be required to 
utilize beginning January 1, 2015. The standardized approach final rale utilizes an increased number of credh risk exposure categories 
and risk weights, and also addresses: (i) an alternative standard of creditworthiness consistent with Section 939A ofthe Dodd-Frank 
Act; (ii) revisions to recognition of credh risk mhigation; (iii) rales for risk weighting of equity exposures and past due loans; (iv) 
revised capital treatment for derivatives and repo-style transactions; and (v) disclosure requirements for top-tier banking organizations 
with $50 billion or more in total assets that are not subject to the "advance approach rales" that apply to banks with greater than $250 
billion in consolidated assets. We believe that we would be in compliance with the requirements as set forth in the final rales. 

Additional information about oitt capital ratios and requirements is contained in Item 7 of Part II ofthis annual report under 
the heading "Capital Resources". 

At December 31, 2013, the Bank's capital exceeded all applicable requirements. 

Loans-to-One Borrower 

Generally, a federal savings bank may not make a loan or extend credh to a single or related group of borrowers in excess of 
15% of unimpaired caphal and surplus. An addhional amount may be loaned, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus, ifthe 
loan is secured by readily marketable collateral, which generally does not include real estate. As of December 31, 2013, the Bank was 
in compliance with the loans-to-one borrower limitations. 

Qualified Thrift Lender Test 

As a federal savings bank, the Bank must satisfy the qualified thrift lender, or "QTL," test. Under the QTL test, the Bank 
must maintain at least 65% of its "portfolio assets" in "qualified thrift investments" (primarily residential mortgages and related 
investments, including mortgage-backed securities) in at least nine months ofthe most recent 12-month period. "Portfolio assets" 
generally means total assets ofa savings bank, less the sum of specified liquid assets up to 20% of total assets, goodwill and other 
intangible assets, and the value of property used in the conduct ofthe savings bank's business. 

The Bank also may satisfy the QTL test by qualifying as a "domestic building and loan association" as defined in the Intemal 
Revenue Code. 

A savings institution that fails the qualified thrift lender test must operate under specified restrictions. The Dodd-Frank Act 
made noncompliance with the QTL test also subject to agency enforcement action for a violation of law. 

The Bank was in compliance with the requirements ofthe QTL test prior to the merger with Carrollton Bank. Carrollton 
Bank was not previously subject to the QTL test because it was not chartered as a federal savings bank. Prior to the Merger, h was 
determined that the post-Merger Bank would not immediately pass the QTL test. As part ofthe merger application filed with the 
OCC, the Bank requested and the OCC granted a two-year waiver from the QTL test. The Bank must satisfy the test beginning no 
later than April 30, 2015. 

Capital Disfributions 

OCC regulations govern caphal distributions by a federal savings bank, which include cash dividends, stock repurchases and 
other transactions charged to the savings bank's capital account. A savings bank must file an application for approval ofa capital 
distribution ifi 

• the total capital distributions for the applicable calendar year exceed the sum ofthe savings bank's net income for that 
year to date plus the savings bank's retained net income for the preceding two years; 

• the savings bank would not be at least adequately caphalized following the disfribution; 
• the distribution would violate any applicable statute, regulation, agreement or OCC-imposed condhion; or 
• the savings bank is not eligible for expedited treatment of its filings. 

Even if an application is not otherwise required, every savings bank that is a subsidiary ofa holding company must still file a 
notice with the OCC at least 30 days before the board ofdlrcctors declares a dividend or approves a capital distribution. 

The OCC may disapprove a notice or application if 

• the savings bank would be undercapitalized following the distribution; 
• the proposed capital distribution raises safety and soundness concems; or the capital disttibution would violate a 

prohibition contained in any statute, regulation or agreement. 
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In addition, the Federal Deposh Insurance Act of 1991 (the "FDI Acf) provides that an insured depository institution shall 
not make any capital distribution, if after making such distribution the institution would be undercaphalized. A savings bank may not 
make a capital disttibution that would reduce hs regulatory caphal below the amount required for the liquidation account established 
in connection with its conversion to stock form. 

Liquidity 

A federal savings bank is required to maintain a sufficient amount of liquid assets to ensure its safe and sound operation. 
Historically, the regulation and monitoring of liquidity has been addressed as a supervisory matter, without required formulaic 
measures. The Basel III liquidity framework requires banks and their holding companies to measure their liquidity against specific 
liquidity tests that, although similar in some respects to liquidity measures historically applied by banks and regulators for 
management and supervisory purposes, going forward would be required by regulation. One test, referred to as the liquidity coverage 
ratio ("LCR"), is designed to ensure that the banking entity maintains an adequate level of unencumbered high-quality liquid assets 
equal to the entity's expected net cash outflow for a 30-day time horizon (or, if greater, 25% of its expected total cash outflow) under 
an acute liquidity sttess scenario. The other test, referred to as the net stable fimding ratio ("NSFR"), is designed to promote more 
medium- and long-term funding ofthe assets and activities of banking entities over a one-year time horizon. These requirements will 
incent banking entities to increase their holdings of U.S. Treasury securities and other sovereign debt as a component of assets and 
increase the use of long-term debt as a funding source. In October 2013, the federal banking agencies proposed rales implementing 
the LCR for advanced approaches banking organizations and a modified version ofthe LCR for savings and loan holding companies 
with at least $50 billion in total consolidated assets that are not advanced approach banking organizations, neither of which would 
apply to the Company or the Bank. The federal banking agencies have not yet proposed rales to implement the NSFR. 

Communitv Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Laws 

All savings banks have a responsibility under the Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA") and related regulations ofthe OCC 
to help meet the credh needs oftheir communities, including low- and moderate-income borrowers. In connection with its 
examination ofa federal savings bank, the OCC is required to assess the savings bank's record of compliance with the CRA. In 
addition, the Equal Credh Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act prohibit lenders from discriminating in their lending practices on 
the basis of characteristics specified in those statutes. A savings bank's failure to comply with the provisions ofthe CRA could, at a 
minimum, result in denial of certain corporate applications such as branches or mergers, or in restrictions on hs activities. The failure 
to comply with the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act could resuft in enforcement actions by the OCC, as well as 
other federal regulatory agencies and the Department of Justice. As of December 31, 2013, the Bank's CRA rating was 
"Satisfactory." All FDIC-insured institutions are required to make available to the public their most recent CRA performance 
evaluation. 

Transactions with Related Parties 

A federal savings bank's authority to engage in transactions with its affiliates is limited by OCC regulations and by Sections 
23 A and 23B ofthe Federal Reserve Act and its implementing Regulation W promulgated by the Federal Reserve. An afflliate is 
generally a company that controls, or is under common control with an insured depository institution such as the Bank. The Company 
is an affiliate ofthe Bank. In general, ttansactions between an insured depository institution and its affiliates are subject to certain 
quantitative and collateral requirements. In addition, OCC regulations prohibh a savings bank from lending to any of hs affiliates that 
are engaged in activhies that are not permissible for bank holding companies and from purchasing the securities ofany affiliate, other 
than a subsidiary. Finally, transactions with affiliates must be consistent with safe and soimd banking practices, not involve low-
quality assets and be on terms that are as favorable to the institution as comparable transactions with non-affiliates. The OCC requires 
savings banks to maintain detailed records of all transactions with affiliates. 

The Bank's authority to extend credh to hs directors, executive officers and 10% stockholders, as well as to enthies 
conttolled by such persons, is currently govemed by the requirements of Sections 22(g) and 22(h) ofthe Federal Reserve Act and 
Regulation O ofthe Federal Reserve. Among other things, these provisions require that extensions of credit to insiders: 

(i) be made on terms that are substantially the same as, and follow credit underwriting procedures that are not less 
stringent than, those prevailing for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons and that do not involve more 
than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features; and 

(ii) not exceed certain limitations on the amount of credh extended to such persons, individually and in the aggregate, 
which limits are based, in part, on the amount ofthe Bank's capital. 

In addition, extensions of credit in excess of certain limits must be approved by the Bank's board of directors. 

13 



Enforcement 

The OCC has primary enforcement responsibility over federal savings banks and has the authority to bring enforcement 
action against all "institution-affiliated parties," including directors, officers, stockholders, attomeys, appraisers and accountants who 
knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely to have an adverse effect on a federal savings bank. Formal enforcement 
action by the OCC may range from the issuance ofa capital directive or cease and desist order, to removal of officers and/or directors 
ofthe institution, and the appointment of a receiver or conservator. Civil penahies cover a wide range of violations and actions, and 
range up to $25,000 per day, unless a finding of reckless disregard is made, in which case penalties may be as high as $1 million per 
day. The FDIC also has the authority to terminate deposh insurance or to recommend to the OCC that enforcement action be taken 
with respect to a particular savings institution. If action is not taken by the OCC, the FDIC has authority to take action under specified 
circumstances. 

Standards for Safetv and Soundness 

Federal law requires each federal banking agency to prescribe certain standards for all insured depository institutions. These 
standards relate to, among other things, internal controls, information systems and audit systems, loan documentation, credit 
underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, asset growth, compensation, and other operational and managerial standards as the agency 
deems appropriate. Interagency guidelines set forth the safety and soundness standards that the federal banking agencies use to 
identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital becomes impaired. Ifthe appropriate federal banking 
agency determines that an instittition fails to meet any standard prescribed by the guidelines, the agency may requhe the instittition to 
submh to the agency an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard. If an institution fails to meet these standards, the 
appropriate federal banking agency may require the institiition to implement an acceptable compliance plan. Failure to implement 
such a plan can result in fiirther enforcement action, including the issuance ofa cease and desist order or the imposition of civil money 
penalties. 

Prompt Corrective Action Regulations 

The Federal Deposh Insurance Act (the "FDI Acf) requires, among other things, the federal banking agencies to take 
"prompt corrective action" in respect of depository institutions that do not raeet rainiraura capital requirements. The FDI Act includes 
the following five capital tiers: "well capitalized," "adequately capitalized," "undercaphalized," "significantly undercapitalized" and 
"critically undercapitalized." A depository institution's capital tier will depend upon how its caphal levels compare with various 
relevant caphal measures and certain other factors, as established by regulation. The relevant capital measures are the total capital 
ratio, the Tier 1 capital ratio and the leverage ratio. Generally, the OCC is required to appoint a receiver or conservator for a savings 
bank that is "critically undercapitalized" within specific tirae fraraes. 

A savings bank will be (i) "well capitalized" ifthe institution has a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% or greater, a Tier 1 
risk-based caphal ratio of 6.0% or greater, and a leverage ratio of 5.0% or greater, and is not subject to any order or written dfrective 
by any such regulatory authority to meet and raaintain a specific capital level for any capital measure, (ii) "adequately capitalized" if 
the institution has a total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or greater, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4.0% or greater, and a leverage 
ratio of 4.0% or greater and is not "well capitalized", (iii) "undercapitalized" ifthe institution has a total risk-based capital ratio that is 
less than 8.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio ofless than 4.0% or a leverage ratio ofless than 4.0%, (iv) "significantly 
undercapitalized" ifthe institution has a total risk-based caphal ratio ofless than 6.0%, a Tier I risk-based caphal ratio ofless than 
3.0% or a leverage ratio ofless than 3.0%, and (v) "crhically undercaphalized" ifthe institution's tangible equity is equal to or less 
than 2.0% of average quarterly tangible assets. An institution raay be downgraded to, or deemed to be in, a caphal category that is 
lower than indicated by hs caphal ratios if h is determined to be in an unsafe or unsound condition or if h receives an unsatisfactoi-y 
exaraination rating with respect to certain matters. A bank's capital category is determined solely for the purpose of applying prompt 
corrective action regulations, and the capital category may not constitute an accurate representation ofthe bank's overall financial 
condition or prospects for other purposes. 

"Undercaphalized" institutions are subject to growth limhations and are required to submh a capital restoration plan. The 
agencies raay not accept such a plan without deterraining, among other things, that the plan is based on realistic assuraptions and is 
likely to succeed in restoring the depository institution's capital. In addhion, for a capital restoration plan to be acceptable, the 
depository institution's parent holding company must guarantee that the institution will comply with such capital restoration plan. The 
holding company must also provide appropriate assurances of performance. The aggregate liability ofthe parent holding company is 
limited to the lesser of (i) an amount equal to 5.0% ofthe depository institution's total assets at the tirae h became undercapitalized 
and (ii) the araount which is necessary (or would have been necessary) to bring the institution into compliance with all capital 
standards applicable with respect to such institution as ofthe time h fails to coraply with the plan. Ifa deposhory institution fails to 
subrah an acceptable plan, h is treated as if it is "significantly undercaphalized." Significantly undercapitalized" depository 
institutions may be subject to a number of requireraents and restrictions, including orders to sell sufficient voting stock to becorae 
"adequately caphalized," requireraents to reduce total assets, and cessation of receipt of deposhs frora correspondent banks. 
"Critically undercapitalized" institutions are subject to the appointment ofa receiver or conservator. 
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The appropriate federal banking agency may, under certain circumstances, reclassify a well-capitalized insured depository 
institution as adequately capitalized. The FDI Act provides that an institution raay be reclassified ifthe appropriate federal banking 
agency determines (after notice and opportunity for hearing) that the institution is in an unsafe or unsound condition or deeras the 
institution to be engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice. 

At Deceraber 31, 2013, the Bank met the criteria for being considered "well-capitalized." 

The Basel III Capital Rules revise the current prompt corrective action requirements effective January 1, 2015 by (i) 
introducing a CETl ratio requirement at each level (other than critically undercaphalized), with the required CETl ratio being 6.5% 
for well-capitalized status; (ii) increasing the miniraura Tier 1 capital ratio requireraent for each category (other than critically 
undercapitalized), with the minimum Tier 1 capital ratio for well-capitalized status being 8% (as corapared to the curtent 6%); and (iii) 
eliminating the current provision that provides that a bank with a composite supervisory rating of 1 may have a 3% leverage ratio and 
still be adequately caphalized. The Basel III Caphal Rules do not change the total risk-based capital requireraent for any prorapt 
corrective action category. 

Insurance of Deposit Accounts 

The Dodd-Frank Act permanently increased the maximum amount of deposit insurance for banks, savings institutions and 
credh unions to $250,000 per deposhor, refroactive to January 1, 2008. 

Effective April 1, 2011, the FDIC implemented a requirement ofthe Dodd-Frank Act to revise its assessment system to base 
h on each institution's total assets less tangible capital instead of deposits. The FDIC also revised hs assessraent schedule so that it 
ranges from 2.5 basis points for the least risky institutions to 45 basis points for the riskiest. 

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound 
practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or 
regulatory condhion imposed in writing. We do not know ofany practice, condition or violation that might lead to termination of 
deposit insurance. 

Prohibitions Against Tying Arrangeraents 

Federal savings banks are prohibited, subject to some exceptions, from extending credit to or offering any other service, or 
fixing or varying the consideration for such extension of credit or service, on the condition that the custoraer obtain some additional 
service from the institution or its affiliates or not obtain services ofa competitor ofthe institution. 

Federal Home Loan Bank Systera 

The Bank is a raeraber ofthe Federal Horae Loan Bank Systera, which consists of 12 regional Federal Horae Loan Banks. 
The Federal Horae Loan Bank System provides a centtal credit facility priraarily for raember institutions as well as other enthies 
involved in home raortgage lending. As a raeraber ofthe Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, the Bank is required to acquire and 
hold shares of capital stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank. As of December 31, 2013, the Bank was in compliance with this 
requirement. 

Other Regulations 

Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by the Bank are subject to state usury laws and federal laws conceming 
interest rates. The Bank's operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such as the: 

Trath-In-Lending Act, goveming disclosures of credit terras to consumer borrowers; 
Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, requiring fmancial institutions to provide information to enable the public and public 
officials to determine whether a financial institution is fulfllling its obligation to help raeet the housing needs ofthe 
community it serves; 
Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other prohibited factors in 
extending credit; 
Fair Credh Reporting Act, goveming the use and provision of inforraation to credit reporting agencies; 
Fair Debt Collection Act, goveming the manner in which consuraer debts raay be collected by collection agencies; 

9 Truth in Savings Act; and 

• Rules and regulations ofthe various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of iraplementing such federal laws. 
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The operations ofthe Bank also are subject to the: 

• Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to raaintain confidentiality of constimer financial records and 
prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records; 

• Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E proraulgated thereunder, which govem automatic deposits to and 
withdrawals from deposh accounts and customers' rights and habilities arising from the use of automated teller machines 
and other electronic banking services; 

• Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act (also known as "Check 21"), which gives "substitute checks," such as digital 
check images and copies made frora that iraage, the sarae legal standing as the original paper check; 

• The USA PATRIOT Act, which requires savings banks to, araong other things, establish broadened anti-money 
laundering compliance programs, and due diligence policies and conttols to ensure the detection and reporting of money 
latmdering. Such required compliance programs are intended to supplement existing compliance requirements that also 
apply to fmancial institutions under the Bank Secrecy Act and the Office of Foreign Assets Control regulations; and 

• The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which places limitations on the sharing ofconsumer financial information by financial 
institutions with unaffiliated third parties. Specifically, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act requires all financial institutions 
offering financial products or services to retail custoraers to provide such customers with the financial institution's 
privacy policy and provide such customers the opportunity to "opt ouf ofthe sharing of certain personal financial 
information with unaffiliated third parties. 

Bank Secrecy Act 

Under the Bank Secrecy Act ("BSA"), a financial institution is required to have systeras in place to detect certain 
ttansactions, based on the size and nature ofthe transaction. Financial institutions are generally required to report cash transactions in 
excess of $10,000 to the United States Treasury. In addition, financial institutions are required to file suspicious activity reports for 
transactions in excess of $5,000 and which the fmancial institution knows, suspects, or has reason to suspect involves illegal funds, is 
designed to evade the requirements ofthe BSA, or has no lawfiil purpose. The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing 
Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstract Terrorisra Act, commonly referred to as the "USA Pattiot Act" or the "Patriot 
Acf, enacted prohibitions against specified financial transactions and account relationships, as weU as enhanced due dihgence 
standards intended to prevent the use ofthe United States financial systera for raoney laundering and terrorist financing activities. The 
Patriot Act requires banks and other depository institutions, brokers, dealers and certain other businesses involved in the transfer of 
money to establish anti-money laundering programs, including employee fraining and independent audit requirements meeting 
minimura standards specified by the act, to follow standards for customer identification and maintenance of custoraer identification 
records, and to compare custoraer lists against lists of suspected terrorists, terrorist organizations and money launderers. The Patriot 
Act also requires federal bank regulators to evaluate the effectiveness of an applicant in combating money laundering in determining 
whether to approve a proposed bank acquisition. 

Supervision and Regulation of Mortgage Banking Operations 

Our mortgage banking business is subject to the rales and regulations ofthe U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development ("HUD"), the Federal Housing Administration ("FHA"), the Veterans' Administration ("VA"), and Fannie Mae with 
respect to originating, processing, selling and servicing mortgage loans. Those rales and regulations, among other things, prohibit 
discrimination and establish underwriting guidelines, which include provisions for inspections and appraisals, require credit reports on 
prospective borrowers, and fix maximura loan amounts. Lenders such as us are required annually to submit audited financial 
statements to Fannie Mae, FHA and VA. Each of these regulatory entities has its own financial requirements. Our affairs are also 
subject to examination by the Federal Reserve, Faimie Mae, FHA and VA at all times to assure compliance with the applicable 
regulations, policies and procedures. Mortgage origination activities are subject to, among others, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, 
Federal Tmth-in-Lending Act, Fair Housing Act, Fair Credh Reporting Act, the National Flood Insurance Act and the Real Estate 
Settlement Procedures Act and related regulations that prohibh discrimination and require the disclosure of certain basic information 
to mortgagors concerning credit terras and settleraent costs. Our raortgage banking operations also are affected by various state and 
local laws and regulations and the requirements of various private mortgage investors. 

In January 2013, the CFPB issued eight final regulations governing mainly consumer mortgage lending. These regulations 
became effective in January 2014. 

One of these rales, effective on January 10, 2014, requires raortgage lenders to raake a reasonable and good faith 
determination based on verified and documented information that a consumer applying for a mortgage loan has a reasonable ability to 
repay the loan according to its terras. This rale also defines "qualified mortgages." In general, a "qualified mortgage" is a mortgage 
loan without negative amortization, interest-only payments, balloon payments, or a term exceeding 30 years, where the lender 
determines that the borrower has the ability to repay, and where the borrower's points and fees do not exceed 3% ofthe total loan 
amount. Qualified mortgages that that are not "higher-priced" are afforded a safe harbor presuraption of compliance with the ability 

16 



to repay rales. Qualified mortgages that are "higher-priced" gamer a rebuttable presumption of compliance with the ability to repay 
rales. 

The CFPB regulations also: (i) require that "higher-priced" mortgages must have escrow accounts for taxes and insurance 
and sirailar recurring expenses; (ii) expand the scope ofthe high-rate, high-cost mortgage provisions by, among otherprovisions, 
lowering the rates and fees that lead to coverage and including home equity lines of credh; (iii) revise rales for raortgage loan 
originator compensation; (iv) add prohibitions against mandatory arbitration provisions and financing single premium credit 
insurances; and (v) irapose a broader requirement for providing borrowers with copies of all appraisals on first-lien dwelling secured 
loans. 

Effective January 10, 2014, the CFPB's final Trath-in-Lending Act rales relating to mortgage servicing impose new 
obligations to credit payments and provide payoff stateraents within certain time periods and provide new notices prior to interest rate 
and payment adjustments. Effective on that same date, the CFPB's fmal Real Estate Settiement Procedures Act rales add new 
obligations on the servicer when a raortgage loan is in default. 

On Noveraber 20, 2013, the CFPB issued a final rale on integrated mortgage disclosures under the Trath-in-Lending Act and 
the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, for which compliance is required by August 1, 2015. We are evaluating these integrated 
mortgage disclosure rales for compliance by that deadline. 

Holding Company Regulation 

General 

The Company is a non-diversified savings and loan holding company within the meaning ofthe Home Owners' Loan Act. As 
such, the Company is registered with the Federal Reserve and is subject to Federal Reserve regulations, examinations and reporting 
requirements. In addition, the Federal Reserve has enforcement authority over the Company and its non-insured subsidiaries. Among 
other things, this authority permhs the Federal Reserve to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to be a serious risk to the 
subsidiary savings institution. 

Permissible Activities 

Under present law, the business activities ofthe Company are generally limited to those activities permissible for financial 
holding companies under Section 4(k) ofthe BHC Act or for multiple savings and loan holding companies. A financial holding 
company raay engage in activities that are financial in nature, including underwriting equity securities and insurance as well as 
activities that are incidental to financial activities or complementary to a financial activity. A raultiple savings and loan holding 
company is generally limited to activities permissible for bank holding companies under Section 4(c) (8) ofthe BHC Act, subject to 
the prior approval ofthe Federal Reserve, and certain additional activities authorized by Federal Reserve regulations. 

Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holding company, including ours, directly or indirectly, or through one or more 
subsidiaries, frora acquiring raore than 5% of another savings institution or holding corapany thereof, without prior written approval of 
the Federal Reserve. It also prohibits the acquisition or retention of, with certain exceptions, more than 5% of a nonsubsidiary 
company engaged in activities that are not closely related to banking or financial in nature, or acquiring or retaining control of an 
institution that is not federally insured. In evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire savings institutions, the Federal 
Reserve must consider the financial and raanagerial resources, future prospects ofthe company and institution involved, the effect of 
the acquisition on the risk to the federal deposit insurance fund, the convenience and needs ofthe community and competitive factors. 

The Federal Reserve is prohibited from approving any acquisition that would resuh in a muhiple savings and loan holding 
company confrolling savings institutions in more than one state, subject to two exceptions: 

(i) the approval of interstate supervisory acquishions by savings and loan holding companies; and 
(ii) the acquisition ofa savings institution in another state ifthe laws ofthe state ofthe target savings institution 

speciflcally permit such acquisition. 

The states vary in the extent to which they permh interstate savings and loan holding corapany acquisitions. 

Capital 

Prior to the enactraent ofthe Basel III Capital Rules, savings and loan holding companies were not subject to specific 
regulatory caphal requireraents. The Basel III Capital Rules radically changed the capital scheme and will generally apply to the 
Company to the sarae extent they apply to other depository institution holding companies. See the discussion ofthe Basel III Capital 
Rules above under the heading, "Federal Banking Regulation - Capital Requirements". 
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Dividends 

The Federal Reserve has issued policy guidance regarding the payment of dividends by bank holding companies that it has 
made applicable to savings and loan holding companies as well. In general, the Federal Reserve's policies provide that dividends 
should be paid only out of current eamings and only ifthe prospective rate ofeamings retention by the holding company appears 
consistent with the organization's capital needs asset quality and overall financial condition. Federal Reserve guidance provides for 
prior regulatory review of capital distributions in certain circumstances such as where the company's net income for the past four 
quarters, net of dividends previously paid over that period, is insufficient to fully fund the dividend or the corapany's overall rate of 
eamings retention is inconsistent with the corapany's caphal needs and overall financial condition. The ability ofa holding corapany 
to pay dividends may be restricted ifa subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. These regulatory policies could affect the ability of 
the Company to pay dividends or otherwise engage in capital distributions. 

Source of Strength 

The Dodd-Frank Act extended the "source of strength" doctrine to savings and loan holding corapanies. The regulatory 
agencies must issue regulations requiring that all bank and savings and loan holding corapanies serve as a source of strength to their 
subsidiary depository institutions by providing capital, liquidity and other support in tiraes of financial stress. 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 ("Sarbanes-Oxley") established a broad range of corporate govemance and accounting 
raeasures intended to increase corporate responsibility and protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of disclostu-es 
under federal securhies laws. We are subject to Sarbanes-Oxley because we are required to file periodic reports with the SEC under 
the Securhies Exchange Act of 1934. Among other things, Sarbanes-Oxley, hs implementing regulations and related NASDAQ Stock 
Market mles have established membership requirements and additional responsibilities for our audh committee, iraposed restrictions 
on the relationship between us and otû  outside auditors (including restrictions on the types of non-audit services our auditors may 
provide to us), iraposed additional financial statement certification responsibilities for our chief executive officer and chief financial 
officer, expanded the disclosure requirements for corporate insiders, and required raanagement to evaluate our disclosure conttols and 
procedures and our intemal control over financial reporting. 

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS 

We take on a certain amount of risk in every business decision or activity. The challenge of risk management is not to 
eliminate risk, but to identify and measure our risks and then to effectively manage those risks in order to optimize stockholder value. 
As a banking institution, our risks fall into five broad categories of risk: credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, and 
reputational risk. The foUowing discussion highhghts the most significant risk factors that could affect us. Additional risks and 
uncertainties that we either are not aware ofor do not believe to be raaterial could also adversely affect us. Ifany ofthe following risk 
factors were to occur, our business, financial condition, or resuhs of operations could be raaterially and adversely affected. Before 
raaking an investment decision, you should carefully consider the potential risks described below together with all ofthe other 
information included or incorporated by reference in this report. 

Risks Relating to the Company and its Affiliates 

We face intense competition in our target markets. 

The financial services industry, including comraercial banking, mortgage banking, consuraer lending and home equity 
lending, is highly competitive, and we will continue to encounter sttong competition for deposits, loans and other financial services in 
our target markets in each ofour lines ofbusiness. Our principal competitors in our target markets are other savings banks, 
commercial banks and credit unions. However, additional competition is and will continue to be provided by mutual funds, money 
market funds, finance companies, trast companies, insurers, leasing companies, credit unions and mortgage companies with respect to 
some ofour products and services. Many ofour non-bank competitors are not subject to the same degree of regulation as us and thus 
have advantages over us in providing certain services. Many ofour bank and credit union competitors are significantly larger than us 
and have greater access to capital and other resources, higher lending liraits and larger branch networks. These competitive factors 
may have a material adverse effect on the profitability ofour lending and deposit operations. 

We may be adversely affected by conditions in the national and local market where we operate. 

Our business activities are concentrated in the greater Bahimore metropolitan area of Maryland. As a resuh, our financial 
condition and results of operations are sensitive to changes in local economic and business conditions. In addition, a significant 
decline in general economic conditions nationally caused by inflation, recession, acts of terrorism, outbreak of hostilhies or other 
intemational or domestic occurrences, unemployment, changes in securities markets, declines in the housing market, a tightening 
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credit environment or other factors could impact these local economic conditions and, in tum, have an adverse effect on our financial 
condition and resuhs of operations. 

Although economic conditions have improved since the economic recession ended in Jtme 2009, certain sectors, such as real 
estate and manufacturing, remain weak and unemployment remains higher than pre-recession levels. Future declines in real estate 
values, home sales volumes, and financial sttess on bortowers as a result of an uncertain econoraic environraent could have an adverse 
effect on our custoraers, which could adversely affect our financial condhion and results of operations. In addition, local govemments 
and many businesses are still experiencing difficulty due to lower consuraer spending. Any deterioration in local economic conditions 
could drive losses beyond that which is provided for in our allowance for loan losses. We may also face the following risks in 
connection with these events: 

• Economic conditions that negatively affect housing prices and the job market have resulted, and could again result, in 
deterioration in credit quality ofour loan portfolios, and such deterioration in credh quality has had, and could continue 
to have, a negative impact on our business. 

• Market developments may affect consuraer confidence levels and may cause adverse changes in payment pattems, 
causing increases in delinquencies and default rates on loans and other credit facilities. 

• The processes we use to estimate the allowance for loan losses and reserves may no longer be reliable because they rely 
on complex judgments that may no longer be capable of accurate estimation. 

Our ability to assess the creditworthiness of customers and to estimate the losses inherent in our loan portfolio is made more 
complex by these deteriorating market and econoraic conditions. A prolonged national economic recession or deterioration of 
conditions in our local markets could drive losses beyond that which is provided for in our allowance for credit losses and result in the 
following consequences: 

• Increases in loan delinquencies; 
• Increases in nonperforming assets and foreclosures; 
• Decreases in deraand for our products and services, which could adversely affect our liquidity position; and 
• Decreases in the value ofthe collateral securing our loans, especially real estate, which could reduce customers' 

borrowing power. 

As the above conditions or similar ones occur, they could have an adverse effect on our borrowers or their custoraers, which 
could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

The soundness of other financial institutions with which we do business could adversely affect us. 

Our ability to engage in routine funding ttansactions could be adversely affected by the actions and coramercial soundness of 
other financial institutions. Financial services institutions are intertelated as a resuh of trading, clearing, counterparty or other 
relationships. We have exposure to many different industries and counterparties, including counterparties in the financial industry, 
such as commercial banks and other institutional clients. As a result, defaults by, or even ramors or questions about, one or more 
finaneial services institutions, or the financial services industry generally, have led to market-wide liquidity problems and could lead 
to losses or defauhs by us or by other institutions. Many of these transactions will expose us to credit risk in the event of default ofa 
counterparty or client. In addition, this credh risk may be exacerbated when the collateral we hold cannot be realized upon liquidation 
or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount ofthe financial instrament exposure due to us. There is no assurance 
that any such losses would not materially and adversely affect our results of operations. 

We could experience significant difficulties and complications in connection with our growth and acquisition strategy. 

We grew significantly in 2013 through acquisition, and we intend to continue to grow both organically and by acquiring 
financial institutions and branches. However, the market for acquisitions is highly compethive. We may not be as successful in 
identifying financial institutions and branch acquisition candidates, integrating acquired institutions or preventing deposit erosion at 
acquired institutions or branches as we currently anticipate. Even ifwe are successful with this strategy, we may not be able to 
raanage this growth adequately and profitably due to unforeseen risks including: 

• Potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities of acquired banks; 
• Potential exposure to asset quality issues of acquired banks; 
• Potential dismption to our existing business; 
e Potential diversion ofthe tirae and attention ofour raanageraent; and 
• Potential loss of key employees and customers ofthe banks and other businesses that we acquire. 

We may also encounter unforeseen expenses, as well as difficulties and complications in integrating expanded operations and 
new eraployees without disraption to our overall operations. Following each acquisition, we raust expend substantial resources to 
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integrate the entities. To manage future growth effectively, we will have to maintain and enhance financial and accounting systems 
and conttols, as well as integrate new personnel and manage expanded operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to 
effectively manage our expanding operations. Ifwe are unable to manage growth effectively, our business, financial condition, and 
results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. 

We take credit risk, and the decisions regarding credit risk could be inaccurate and the allowance for loan losses may be 
inadequate, which could materiaUy and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and future 
prospects. 

Our loan portfolio exposes us to credit risk. Inherent risks in lending also include the inability to compete with other lenders, 
lack of control over fluctuations in interest rates and collateral values, principally real estate, and economic dovratums. Making loans 
will be an essential element ofour business, and there is a risk that the loans will not be repaid. The risk of nonpayment is affected by 
a number of factors, including: 

• The duration ofthe loan; 
• Credit risks of a particular borrower; 
• Changes in economic or industry conditions; and 
o Forcollateralizedloans, risks resulting from uncertainties about the future value ofthe collateral. 

As do aU financial institutions, we maintain an allowance for loan losses (the "allowance") to absorb the probable losses 
inherent in our loan portfolio. However, our allowance may not be sufficient to cover the loan losses that we actually incur. While we 
maintain an allowance at a level that our management believes is adequate, there is no assurance that our actual losses will not exceed 
these estimates. As a result, we will always face the risk that charge-offs in futtire periods will exceed our allowance and that 
additional increases in our allowance will be required. Additions to the allowance will resuh in a decrease in net income and capital 
and could hinder our ability to grow assets. 

Because our loan portfolio includes a substantial amount of commercial real estate loans, our earnings will be particularly 
sensitive to the financial and credit risks associated with these types of loans. 

The financial and credit risk associated with commercial real estate loans is a resuh of several factors, including the 
concenttation of principal in a limited number of loans and borrowers, the size of loan balances, which is generally larger than 
consumer-type loans, and the effects of general economic conditions. Any significant failure ofour customers to either pay on time or 
default would adversely affect our results of operations. 

Our commercial real estate loan portfoho represented approxiraately 49% ofthe total loan portfolio as of December 31, 2013. 
Underwriting and portfolio management activities caimot eliminate all risks related to these loans. Commercial real estate loans will 
typically be larger than consumer-type loans and may pose higher risks than other types of loans. This portfolio is bifurcated into 
"investor" and "owner-occupied" classes, with investor loans representing approximately 70% ofthe commercial real estate loan 
portfolio and 34% ofthe total loan portfolio. The primary source of repayment for investor commercial real estate loans is through the 
income stream generated by the property or successful development and sale oftheir properties. We may incur losses on investor 
commercial real estate loans due to declines in occupancy rates, rental rates and capitalization rates, which raay decrease property 
values and may potentially decrease the likelihood that a borrower may find permanent financing altematives. 

Owner-occupied commercial real estate loans represent approximately 30%) ofthe commercial real estate loan portfolio and 
15% ofthe total loan portfolio. The primary source of repayment for owner-occupied real estate loans is the cash flow produced by 
the related commercial enterprise, and the value ofthe real estate is a secondary source of repayment ofthe loan. Ifwe are required to 
liquidate the collateral securing a loan to satisfy the debt, our eamings and capital could be adversely affected. 

The Bank's lending activities subject the Bank to the risk of environmental liabilities. 

A significant portion ofthe Bank's loan portfolio is secured by real property. During the ordinary course ofbusiness, the 
Bank may foreclose on and take title to properties securing certain loans. In doing so, there is a risk that hazardous or toxic substances 
could be found on these properties. If hazardous or toxic substances are found, the Bank may be liable for remediation costs, as well 
as for personal injury and property damage. Environmental laws may require the Bank to incur substantial expenses and may 
materially reduce the affected property's value or limit the Bank's ability to use or sell the affected property. In addition, future laws 
or more stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing laws may increase the Bank's exposure to 
environmental liability. Although the Bank has policies and procedures to perform an environmental review before initiating any 
foreclosure action on real property, these reviews may not be sufficient to detect all potential environmental hazards. The remediation 
costs and any other financial liabilities associated with an environmental hazard could have a material adverse effect on oiu- financial 
condition and results of operations. 
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We may not be able to access funding sufficient to support our asset growth. 

Our business plan and marketing strategy is based on access to funding from local customer deposits, such as checking and 
savings accounts and certificates of deposits. Deposit levels may be affected by a nuraber of factors, including rates paid by 
competitors, general interest rate levels, FDIC insurance costs, retums available to customers on altemative investments and general 
economic conditions. If local customer deposits are not sufficient to fund our asset growth, we will look to outside sources such as 
advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB"). Since the FHLB provides secured funding, our ability to access advances 
from the FHLB will be dependent upon whether and to the extent we can provide collateral. We may also look to brokered deposhs as 
a source of liquidity. An inability to obtain altemative funding to supplement our local core deposits or FHLB advances, or a 
substantial, unexpected, or prolonged change in the level or cost of liquidity could have a negative effect on our business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 

Fluctuations in interest rates could reduce our profitability as we expect to realize income primarily from the difference 
between interest earned on loans and investments and interest paid on deposits and borrowings. 

Our eamings are significantly dependent on net interest income, as we realize income primarily from the difference between 
interest eamed on loans and investments and the interest paid on deposits and bortowings. We will experience "gaps" in the interest 
rate sensitivities ofour assets and liabilhies, meaning that either our interest-bearing liabilities will be more sensitive to changes in 
market interest rates than our interest-eaming assets, or vice versa. In either event, if market interest rates should move contrary to our 
position, this "gap" may work against us, negatively affecting our eamings. We are unable to predict fluctuations of market interest 
rates, which are affected by many factors, including inflation, recession, rise in unemployment, tightening money supply, and disorder 
and instability in domestic and foreign financial markets. Although our asset-liability manageraent strategy is intended to mitigate 
risk from changes in market interest rates, we raay not be able to prevent changes in interest rates from having a material adverse 
effect on our resuhs of operations and financial condition. 

Our investment securities portfolio is subject to credit risk, market risk, and liquidity risk. 

The investment securities portfolio has risk factors beyond our control that raay significantly influence its fair value. These 
risk factors include, but are not liraited to, rating agency downgrades, issuer defaults, lack of market pricing, and instability in the 
credit markets. Any changes in these risk factors could negatively affect our accumulated other comprehensive income and 
stockholders' equity depending on the direction ofthe fluctuations. Ftuthermore, fiiture downgrades, defaults or prepayments, 
including the liquidation ofthe underlying collateral in certain securities, could result in future classifications as other-than-
temporarily impaired. This could have a material impact on our future eamings, although the impact on stockholders' equity will be 
offset by any amount already included in other comprehensive ineome for securities that were teraporarily impaired. 

We are subject to operational risk. 

Like all businesses, we are subject to operational risk, which represents the risk ofioss resulting from inadequate or failed 
intemal processes in our systems, human error, and extemal events. Operational risk also encompasses technology, compliance and 
legal risk, which is the risk ofioss from violations of, or noncompliance with, rales, regulations, prescribed practices or ethical 
standards, as well as the risk ofour noncompliance with contractual and other obligations. We are also exposed to operational risk 
through our outsourcing artangements, and the effect that any changes in circumstances or capabilities of these outsourcing vendors 
can have on our ability to continue to perforra operational functions necessary to our business. Although we seek to raitigate 
operational risks through a system of intemal controls which we regularly review and update, no system of controls, however well 
designed and maintained, is infallible. Control weaknesses or failures or other operational risks could resuh in charges, increased 
operational costs, harm to our reputation or foregone business opportunities. 

FaUure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could impair our ability to prevent fraud or report 
accurately and timely financial results, resulting in loss of investor confidence and adversely affecting our business and stock 
price. 

We are required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act to establish and maintain disclosure controls and procedures and intemal conttol 
over financial reporting. These conttol systems are intended to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to us is 
made known to management and reported as required by the Exchange Act, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
and preparation ofour financial statements, and to provide reasonable assurance that fraud and other unauthorized uses ofour assets 
are detected and prevented. Any failure to raaintain an effeetive intemal conttol environment could impact our ability to report 
financial results on an accurate and timely basis, which could result in regulatory actions, loss of investor confidence, and adversely 
impact our business and stock price. 
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We are dependent on key personnel, including our executive officers and directors, and the loss of such persons may adversely 
affect our operations and financial performance. 

We are dependent on the continued services ofour executive officers, whose skills and years of industry experience are 
critical to the successful implementation ofour business strategy. Should the services of these key executives become unavailable, 
there can be no assurance that a suitable successor could be found who would be willing to be employed upon the terras and 
condhions that we would offer. A failure to replace any of these individuals promptly could have an adverse effect on our resuhs of 
operations and financial perforraance. Additionally, the coramunity involvement, diverse backgrounds, and extensive local business 
relationships ofour directors is important to our success. Ifthe composhion ofour board ofdlrcctors were to change significantly, our 
banking business could suffer. 

We are, and will continue to be, subject to extensive regulation in the conduct ofour business operations, which could 
adversely affect our financial results. 

The banking industry is heavily regulated. Banking regulations are primarily intended to protect the federal deposit insurance 
ftmds and depositors, not stockholders. These regulations affect lending practices, capital stracture, investraent practices, dividend 
policy and growth, araong other things. For example, federal and state consumer protection laws and regulations will limh the manner 
in which we raay offer and extend credh. Frora time to time, the United States Congress and state legislatures consider changing these 
laws and raay enact new laws or amend existing laws to further regulate the financial services industry. Changes to statutes, 
regulations or regulatory policies, including changes in interpretation or implementation of statutes, regulations or policies, could 
affect us in substantial and unpredictable ways. Such changes could subject us to additional costs, limit the types of financial services 
and products we may offer and/or increase the ability of non-banks to offer competing financial services and products, among other 
things. Failure to coraply with laws, regulations or policies could result in sanctions by regulatory agencies, civil raoney penahies 
and/or reputation daraage, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In 
addhion, the laws goveming bankruptcy generally favor debtors, making it raore expensive or raore difficult to collect from custoraers 
who have declared bankraptcy. 

The full impact of the Dodd-Frank Act is unknown because significant rule maldng efforts are stiU required to fully implement 
all of its requirements, but it will likely materially increase our regulatory expenses. 

The Dodd-Frank Act represents a coraprehensive overhaul ofthe financial services industry within the United States and 
affects the lending, investment, trading and operating activities of all financial institutions. Significantly, the Dodd-Frank Act 
includes the following provisions that affect the Corporation and the Bank: 

• It established the CFPB, which directiy regulates and supervises the Bank for compliance with the CFPB's regulations and 
policies. The creation ofthe CFPB will directly impact the scope and cost of products and services offered to consumers by 
the Bank and may have a significant effect on its financial performance. 

» It revised the FDIC's insurance assessment methodology so that premiuras are assessed based upon the average consolidated 
total assets ofthe Bank less tangible equity capital. 

• It pennanently increased deposit insurance coverage to $250,000. 
• It authorized the Federal Reserve to set debit interchange fees in an amount that is "reasonable and proportional" to the costs 

incurred by processors and card issuers. Under the final rale issued by the Federal Reserve, there is a cap of $0.21 per 
transaction (with a maxiraura of $0.24 per transaction permitted if certain requireraents are met). Implementation of these 
caps went into effect on October 1, 2011. 

• It imposes proprietary trading restrictions on insured depository institutions and their holding corapanies that prohibit thera 
frora engaging in proprietary trading except in liraited circumstances, and prevents them frora owning equity interests in 
excess of three percent (3%) ofa bank's Tier 1 capital in private equity and hedge funds. 

Based on the text ofthe Dodd-Frank Act and the implementing regulations (both effective and yet-to-be-published), it is 
anticipated that the costs to banks may increase or fee income may decrease significantly, which could adversely affect our results of 
operations, financial condition and/or liquidity. Moreover, compliance obligations will expose us to additional noncompliance risk 
and could divert management's focus from the business of banking. 

The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau may reshape the consumer financial laws through rulemaldng and enforcement of 
the prohibitions against unfair, deceptive and abusive business practices. Compliance with any such change may impact our 
business operations. 

The CFPB has broad ralemaking authorhy to administer and carry out the provisions ofthe Dodd-Frank Act with respect to 
financial institutions that offer covered financial products and services to consumers. The CFPB has also been directed to adopt rules 
identifying practices or acts that are unfair, deceptive or abusive in connection with any transaction with a consumer for a consuraer 
financial product or service, or the offering ofa consuraer financial product or service. The concept of what may be considered to be 
an "abusive" practice is new under the law. The full scope ofthe impact ofthis authority has not yet been determined as the CFPB 
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has not yet released significant supervisory guidance. Moreover, the Bank will be supervised and examined by the CFPB for 
compliance with the CFPB's regulations and policies. As ofthe date ofthis annual report, the CFPB has not examined the Bank. 

As discussed above, the CFPB recently issued several rales relating to raortgage operations and servicing, including a rale 
requiring raortgage lenders to make a reasonable and good faith determination based on verified and documented inforraation that a 
consuraer applying for a raortgage loan has a reasonable ability to repay the loan according to hs terras, or to originate "qualified 
mortgages" that meet specific requirements with respect to terms, pricing and fees. These new rales will likely require the Bank to 
dedicate significant personnel resources and could have a material adverse effect on our operations. 

Bank regulators and other regulations, including the Basel III Capital Rules, may require higher capital levels, impacting our 
ability to pay dividends or repurchase our stock. 

The capital standards to which we are subject, including the standards created by the Basel III Capital Rules, may raaterially 
limh our ability to use our capital resources and/or could require us to raise additional capital by issuing common stock. The issuance 
of additional shares ofcommon stock could dilute existing stockholders. 

Recent rulemaking efforts by the Federal Reserve may negatively impact our noninterest income. 

On November 12, 2009, the Federal Reserve announced the final rales amending Regulation E that prohibh financial 
institutions from charging fees to consumers for paying overdrafts on automated teller machine and one-time debit card ttansactions, 
unless a consumer consents, or opts-in, to the overdraft service for those types of transactions. Compliance with this regulation is 
effective July 1, 2010 for new consumer accounts and August 15, 2010 for existing consumer accounts. These new rales negatively 
irapacted the Banks' noninterest income in 2012 and 2013 and raay do the sarae in future periods. 

In addhion, the Federal Reserve has issued rales pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act goveming debh card interchange fees that 
apply to institutions with greater than $10 billion in assets. Although we are not subject to these mles, market forces may effectively 
require the Bank to adopt a debh card interchange fee stracture that complies with these rules, in which case our noninterest income 
for fiiture periods could be materially and adversely affected. 

Our business is, and wUl continue to be, dependent on technology and an inability to invest in technological improvements or 
obtain reUable technological support may adversely affect our results of operation and financial condition. 

The fmancial services industry is undergoing rapid technological changes with frequent introductions of new technology-
driven products and services. In addition to better serving customers, the effective use of technology increases efficiency and enables 
financial institutions to reduce costs. Our ability to grow and compete will depend in part upon the ability to address the needs of 
custoraers by using technology to provide products and services that will satisfy their operational needs, while raanaging the costs of 
expanding our technology infrastracture. Many corapetitors have substantially greater resources to invest in technological 
improvements and third-party support. There can be no assurance that we will be able to effectively iraplement new technology-
driven products and services or be successful in marketing these products and services to our customers. For the foreseeable future, 
we expect to rely on third-party service providers and on other third parties for services and technical support. If those products and 
services become unreliable or fail, the adverse impact on customer relationships and operations could be material. 

System failure or breaches of our network security could lead to increased operating costs as well as litigation and other 
liabilities. 

The coraputer systems and network infrastracture that we use could be vulnerable to unforeseen problems. Our operations are 
dependent in part upon our ability to protect our computer equipraent against daraage from fire, power loss, telecommunications 
failure or a similar catastrophic event. Any damage or failure that causes an interruption in operations could have an adverse effect on 
customers. In addhion, we must be able to protect the computer systems and network infrastracture utilized by us against physical 
daraage, security breaches and service disraption caused by the internet or other users. Such computer break-ins and other disraptions 
would jeopardize the security of information stored in and transmitted through our computer systems and network infrastracture, 
which may result in significant liability to us and deter potential custoraers. 

We are dependent upon outside third parties for processing and handling of records and data. 

Like raost coraraunity banks, we outsource substantially all ofour data processing to third-party providers. These third-party 
providers could also expose us to operational and information security risk resulting frora breakdowns or failures oftheir own systems 
or capacity constraints. If our third-party providers encounter difficulties, or ifwe have difficulties in communicating with them, our 
ability to adequately process and account for custoraer transactions could be affected, and our business operations could be adversely 
irapacted and result in a loss of custoraers and business, subject us to additional regulatory scratiny, or expose us to civil litigation and 
possible financial liability. Any of these occurrences could have a raaterial adverse effect on our financial condition and results of 
operations. 
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We may be subject to certain risks related to originating and selling mortgage loans. 

When mortgage loans are sold, it is customaty to make representations and warranties to the purchaser about the mortgage 
loans and the manner in which they were originated. The whole loan sale agreements require the repurchase or substitution of 
mortgage loans in the event we breach any of these representations or warranties. In addhion, there may be a requirement to 
repurchase mortgage loans as a result of borrower fraud or in the event of early payment defauh ofthe borrower on a mortgage loan. 
We receive a limited number of repurchase and indemnity demands from purchasers as a resuh of borrower fraud and early payment 
defauh ofthe borrower on mortgage loans. While we have enhanced our underwriting policies and procedures, these steps may not be 
effective or reduce the risk associated with loans sold in the past. If repurchase and indemnity deraands increase materially, the 
Corapany's results of operations could be adversely affected. 

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers and counterparties. , 

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions, we rely on information fiimished by or on behalf of its 
custoraers and counterparties, including financial statements, credh reports and other financial inforraation. We also rely on 
representations of those custoraers, counterparties or other third parties, such as independent auditors, as to the accuracy and 
completeness of that information. Reliance on inaccurate or misleading financial statements, credh reports or other financial 
information could have a material adverse impact on business and, in tum, results of operation and financial condition. 

Consumers and businesses may decide not to use banks to complete their financial transactions. 

Technology and other changes are allowing parties to complete financial transactions that historically have involved banks 
through altemative methods. The possibility of eliminating banks as intermediaries could result in the loss of interest and fee income, 
as well as the loss of customer deposits and the related income generated from those deposits. The loss of these revenue sfreams and 
the lower cost deposits as a source of funds could have a material adverse effect on our resuhs of operations and financial condition. 

The Company's majority stockholder is deemed to be a bank holding company, which exposes us to special risks. 

Financial Services Partners Fund I ("FSPF"), which is deemed a bank holding company under the BHC Act with respect to 
the Bank, beneficially owns approximately 84% ofthe Corapany's comraon stock. Under Federal Reserve guidelines, every bank 
holding company must serve as a "source of sttength" for each oftheir bank subsidiaries. In addition, the FDI Act requires that an 
insured depository institution shall be liable for the loss incurted or anticipated by the FDIC arising from the default ofa commonly 
confrolled insured depositoty institution or any assistance provided by the FDIC to any commonly conttolled insured depositoty 
institution in danger of default. The position of FSPF as a source of strength to other depository institutions may limh its ability to 
serve as a source of strength for us and could adversely affect our ability to access resources of FSPF. Federal bank regulatory 
agencies have additional discretion to require a bank holding company to divest itself of any bank or non-bank subsidiary ifthe 
agency determines that divestiture may aid the depository institution's financial condition. 

A bank for which FSPF is deeraed to be a bank holding corapany raay be required to indemnify, or cross-guarantee, the FDIC 
against losses the FDIC incurs with respect to any other bank controlled by FSPF. Accordingly, we may be obligated to provide 
financial assistance to any other financial institution to which FSPF is deeraed to be a bank holding company. Any financial 
assistance that we would have to provide could reduce our capital and result in a reduction in the value ofour stockholders' equity. 

We may not be able to raise additional capital on terms favorable to us or at all. 

Ifwe need additional capital to support our business, expand our operations or maintain our rainimum capital requirements, 
we may not be able to raise funds through the issuance of additional shares ofour coraraon stock or other securities. Furthermore, the 
significant amount ofcommon stock that our primary investor owns may discourage other potential investors from offering to acquire 
newly issued shares. Even ifwe are able to obtain capital through the issuance of additional shares ofour cotnmon stock or other 
securities, the sale of these additional shares could significantly dilute the ownership interest ofour existing stockholders. 

We may not be able to satisfy the Qualified Thrift Lender test by April 30, 2015. 

At December 31, 2013, the Bank did not satisfy the QTL test. However, in connection with the Merger, the OCC granted the 
Bank a two-year waiver from the QTL test; the Bank must satisfy the test by April 30, 2015. Satisfying the QTL test may limit our 
ability to change our asset mix and increase the yield on our eaming assets by growing our coraraercial and indusfrial loan 
portfolio. In addition, the Bank may need to purchase residential mortgage-backed securities or other qualifying assets at times when 
the terras might not be atfractive. Ifthe Bank is unable to satisfy the QTL test by April 30, 2015, it could be subject to regulatory 
agency enforceraent action for a violation of law. In addition, the Bank could be required to convert to a commercial bank charter. 
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Risks Relating to the Company's Common Stock 

The shares of common stock are not insured. 

The shares ofthe Company's common stock are not deposhs and are not insured against loss by the FDIC or any other 
govemmental or private agency. 

AppUcable banking and Maryland laws impose additional restrictions on the abiUty ofthe Company and the Bank to pay 
dividends and make other distributions on their capital securities, and, in any event, the payment of dividends is at the discretion 
ofthe boards of directors ofthe Company and the Bank. 

The Company's ability to pay cash dividends in the future will be largely dependent upon the receipt of dividends from the 
Bank, and the Bank's ability to pay dividends whl depend primarily on its future eamings and capital needs. Bank regulatory agencies 
have the ability to prohibh proposed dividends by a financial institution which would otherwise be permitted tmder applicable regulations 
ifthe regulatory body determines that such disfribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. Banks that are considered 
"froubled institutions" are prohibited by federal law from paying dividends altogether. In any event, the declaration and payment of 
dividends and the amoimts thereof are at the discretion ofthe board of directors. Thus, no assurance can be given that the Company or 
the Bank wih declare or pay dividends in any future period. 

The common stock is not heavily traded. 

The Company's common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market, but shares ofthe comraon stock are not heavily 
traded. Securities that are not heavily traded can be raore volatile than stock trading in an active public market. Factors such as our 
financial results, the introduction of new products and services by us or our competitors, and various factors affecting the banking 
industry generally may have a significant irapact on the raarket price ofthe shares the coraraon stock. Management cannot predict the 
extent to which an active public market for any ofthe Corporation's securities will develop or be sustained in the fiiture. Accordingly, 
holders ofthe Corapany's coraraon stock raay not be able to sell their shares at the volumes, prices, or times that they desire. 

The Company's Charter and Bylaws and Maryland law may discourage a corporate takeover. 

The Company's Amended and Restated Articles oflncorporation, as amended (the "Charter"), and hs Amended and Restated 
Bylaws (the "Bylaws") contain certain provisions designed to enhance the ability ofthe Board ofDirectors to deal with attempts to 
acquire control ofthe Company. First, the Charter gives the Board the authority to classify and reclassify unissued shares ofstock of 
any class or series of stock by setting, fixing, eliminating, or altering in any one or more respects the preferences, rights, voting 
powers, resttictions and qualifications of, dividends on, and redemption, conversion, exchange, and other rights of, such securities. 
The Board could use this authorify, along with its authority to authorize the issuance of securities ofany class or series, to issue shares 
having terms favorable to management to a person or persons affihated with or otherwise friendly to management. Second, the 
Bylaws require any stockholder who desires to nominate a director to abide by strict notice requirements. 

Maryland law also contains anti-takeover provisions that apply to the Company. The Matyland Business Combination Act 
generally prohibits, subject to certain limited exceptions, corporations frora being involved in any "business combination" (defined as 
a variety of fransactions, including a raerger, consolidation, share exchange, asset transfer or issuance or reclassification of equity 
securities) with any "interested stockholder" for a period of five years following the most recent date on which the interested 
stockholder became an interested stockholder. An interested stockholder is defined generally as a person who is the beneficial owner 
of 10%) or more ofthe voting power ofthe outstanding voting stock ofthe corporation after the date on which the corporation had 100 
or more beneficial owners of its stock or who is an afflliate or associate ofthe corporation and was the beneficial owner, directly or 
indirectly, of 10% or more ofthe voting power ofthe then outstanding stock ofthe corporation at any time within the two-year period 
immediately prior to the date in question and after the date on which the corporation had 100 or more beneficial owners of its stock. 
The Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act applies to acquisitions of "conttol shares", which, subject to certain exceptions, are 
shares the acquisition of which entitle the holder, directly or indirectly, to exercise or direct the exercise ofthe voting power of shares 
ofstock ofthe corporation in the election of directors within any ofthe following ranges of voting power: one-tenth or more, but less 
than one-third of all voting power; one-third or more, but less than a raajority of all voting power or a raajority or more of all voting 
power. Control shares have limited voting rights. 

Although these provisions do not preclude a takeover, they may have the effect of discouraging, delaying or deferring a 
tender offer or takeover attempt that a stockholder raight consider in his or her best interest, including those attempts that might result 
in a preraiura over the raarket priee for the coraraon stock. These provisions could potentially adversely affect the market prices ofthe 
Company's common stock. 
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Ownership of the Company is concentrated in one stockholder, and this concentration could reduce the demand for the 
common stock and/or have the effect of delaying or preventing certain corporate transactions. 

The Company's majority stockholder, FSPF, owns approximately 84% ofthe outstanding shares ofthe Company's coraraon 
stock. As a confrolling stockholder, FSPF has the ability to significantly influence all matters requiring stockholder approval, 
including the nomination and election ofdlrcctors, the determination ofthe Corapany's corporate and management policies and the 
determination ofthe outcome of significant corporate transactions such as raergers, acquisitions and asset sales. This concenttation of 
voting power and ownership could dissuade investors from purchasing the Company's comraon stock and/or adversely affect the 
market prices ofthe comraon stock. As a result, stockholders may not be able to sell their shares ofcommon stock at the volumes, 
prices or times that they desire. 

ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

This Itera IB is not applicable because the Company is a "smaller reporting corapany". 
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

Our headquarters are located in Lutherville, Maryland. As of Deceraber 31, 2013, the Bank owned 3 of 12 full-service 
branches and leased the reraaining branches. See Note 7 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional 
information. 

We own the following properties, which had a book value of $ 1.1 million at December 31,2013: 

Location Description 

1740 East Joppa Road 
Towson, MD 21234 

427 Grain Highway 
Glen Bumie, MD 21061 

531 South Conkling Stteet 
Baltimore, MD 21224 

Full service branch with drive thra, electronic banking 
offices, and leased office space 

Full service branch with drive-thra 

Full service branch with drive-thra 

We lease the following facilities at an aggregate annual rental of approximately $1.5 million as of Deceraber 31, 2013: 

Location Description Lease Expiration 
Date (1) 

1066-70 Maiden Choice Lane 
Arbuttis,MD 21229 

2637-A Old Annapolis Road 
Hanover, MD 21076 

Northway Shopping Center 
684 Old MiU Road 
Millersville,MD21108 

602 Hoagie Drive 
Bel Air, MD 21014 (2) 

10301 York Road 
Cockeysville, MD 21030 (2) 

4040 Schroeder Avenue 
Perry Hall, MD 21128 (2) 

9515 Deerco Road, Suites 400 and 408 
Timonium,MD 21093 

7151 Columbia Gateway Dr., Ste. A 
Columbia, MD 21046 

2328 West Joppa Road, 
Lutherville, MD 20193 

109 Poplar HiU Road 
Salisbury, MD 21801 

344 N. Charies Sfreet 
Baltimore, MD 21201 

Full service branch with detached drive-thra 

Full service branch 

Full service branch 

Full service branch 

Full service branch 

FuU service branch 

Mortgage banking offices 

Executive, Administrative and operational offices 

Executive, Administrative, and operational offices with a 
full service branch 

Full service branch 

FuU service branch 

30-Apr-16 

31-Oct-14 

31-Aug-14 

30-NOV-24 

31-May-26 

31-Jan-28 

28-Feb-17 

30-Apr-19 

30-Sep-15 

31-Aug-14 

31-Mar-23 

(1) Expiration date, assuming the Company does not exercise all extension options. 
(2) Represents Ground leases for these facilities. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

We are involved in various legal actions arising frora norraal business activities. In manageraent's opinion, the outcorae of 
these raatters, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse impact on our resuhs of operation or financial 
condition. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 
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Not applicable. 

PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR BAY'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

STOCK LISTING 

The Company's common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol "BYBK". At March 28, 2014, 
there were 306 holders of record ofthe Corapany's common stock. 

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR 

The transfer agent for the Company's common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trast Co. LLC, 6201 15 Avenue, 
Brooklyn, NY 11219. 

DIVIDENDS 

Banking regulations limh the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval by an FSB's regulatory agencies. 
In addition to these regulations, in connection with the Merger, the Bank entered into an Operating Agreement with the OCC (the 
"Operating Agreemenf). Under the Operating Agreement, the Bank may not declare or pay any dividends or otherwise reduce its 
capital unless h is in compliance with the Operating Agreement, including hs minimum capital requirements. Due to these resttictions 
and the Bank's desire to preserve capital to fund hs growth, the Corapany currentiy does not anticipate paying a dividend for the 
foreseeable fiiture. In addition to these regulatory restrictions, h should be noted that the declaration of dividends is at the discretion of 
the Company's Board ofDirectors and will depend, in part, on the Corapany's eamings and future capital needs. Accordingly, there 
can be no assurance that dividends will be declared in any future period. 

QUARTERLY STOCK INFORMATION 

The high and low sales prices for the shares ofthe Company's comraon stock for each quarterly period of 2013 and 2012 as 
reported on the NASDAQ Capital Market are set forth in the following table: 

High Low 
2013 

1st Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
4th Quarter 

2012 
1st Quarter 
2nd Quarter 
3rd Quarter 
4th Quarter 

On March 27, 2014, the closing sales price ofthe common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Capital Market was $5.05 per 
share. 

ISSUER REPURCHASES 

Neither the Corapany nor any of its affiliates (as defined by Exchange Act Rule 10b-18) repurchased any shares ofthe 
Company's common stock during 2013. 

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION 

Pursuant to the SEC's Regulation S-K Compliance and Disclosure Interpretation 106.01, the inforraation regarding Bay's 
equity compensation plans required by this Item pursuant to Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K is located in Item 12 of Part III ofthis 
Annual Report and is incorporated herein by reference. 
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$ 

5.79 
5.54 
6.20 
6.16 

4.52 
5.64 
5.45 
5.94 

$ 

$ 

5.37 
4.79 
4.68 
4.77 

2.56 
4.02 
4.52 
4.71 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

2013 (1) 2012 2011 2010 (2) 

Consolidated Income Statement Data: 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

Net interest income 

Provision for loan losses 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 

Bargain purchase gain 

Other noninterest income 

Merger related expense 

Other noninterest expenses 

Income before income taxes 

Income taxes 

Net income 

Shares outstanding and per share data: 

Average shares outstanding 

Diluted average shares outstanding 

Number of shares outstanding, at year-end 

Net income - basic per share 

Net income - diluted per share 

Dividends declared per share 

Book value per share at period end 

$ 19,019,543 

1,261,969 

17,757,574 

842,207 

16,915,367 

2,860,199 

6,084,779 

2,041,756 

20,073,365 

3,745,224 

504,090 

$ 3,241,134 

8,322,811 

8,342,646 

9,379,753 

$ 0.39 

0.39 

$ 9,825,529 

572,127 

9,253,402 

733,817 

8,519,585 

-
412,682 

916,174 

7,313,090 

703,003 

645,450 

$ 57,553 

5,829,140 

5,829,140 

5,831,963 

$ O.OI 

O.OI 

$ 9,165,793 

701,238 

8,464,555 

1,256,656 

7,207,899 

-
1,953,098 

-
7,529,188 

1,631,809-

828,605-

$ 803,204 

5,826,789 

5,826,789 

5,820,854 

$ 0.14 

0,14 

$ 6,691,567 

396,997 

6,294,570 

684,289 

5,610,281 

3,054,792 

923,568 

-
3,559,383 

6,029,258 

2,427,552 

S 3,601,706 

5,807,299 

5,807,299 

5,837,517 

$ 0,62 

0,62 

5.82 4.65 4.60 4.50 

Financial Condition data: 

Assets 

Investment Securities 

Loans (net of deferred fees and costs) 

Allowance for loan losses 

Deposits 

Stockholders' equity 

Average Balances: 

Assets 

Investment Securities 

Loans 

Deposits 

Stockholders' equity 

Selected performance ratios: 

Retum on average assets 

Retum on average equity 

Yield on average interest-eaming assets 

Rate on average interest-bearing Uabiiities 

Net interest spread 

Net interest margin 

Asset Quality ratios: 

Allowance for loan losses to loans 

Nonperforming loans to total loans 

Nonperforming assets to total assets 

Net charge-offs to average loans 

Capital ratios: 

Leverage ratio (3) 

Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio (3) 

Total risk-based capital ratio (3) 

Average equity to average assets 

419,089,303 

36,586,669 

320,680,332 

851,000 

360,933,471 

54,554,268 

358,397,210 

24,427,877 

259,698,504 

231,245,789 

48,537,003 

0.90% 

6,68% 

5.71% 

0.55% 

5.16% 

5.33% 

0.27% 

2.59% 

2.29% 

0.25% 

11.41% 

14.42% 

14.68% 

13.54% 

$ 133,243,868 

9,716,626 

101,736,172 

655,942 

100,672,130 

31,824,416 

S 127,786,614 

11,486,249 

97,871,329 

73,365,708 

30,016,583 

0.05% 

0.19% 

7.89% 

0.78% 

7,11% 

7,43% 

0.64% 

5.30% 

4.91% 

0.92% 

22.23% 

27.16% 

27.76% 

23.49% 

$ 129,867,364 

14,674,092 

97,020,049 

824,653 

97,959,516 

31,394,875 

$ 129,655,061 

16,667,155 

91,976,636 

78,770,578 

28,329,221 

0.62% 

2.84% 

7.26% 

0.89% 

6.37% 

6.70% 

0.85% 

7.31% 

6.62% 

1.21% 

22.36% 

27.85% 

28.59% 

21.85% 

$ 136,099,103 

16,240,276 

88,414,675 

684,289 

104,159,484 

29,855,036 

S 86,167,656 

7,144,690 

45,223,264 

72,841,087 

12,191,603 

4.18% 

29.54% 

11.36% 

0.67% 

10.69% 

11,36% 

0.77% 

5.62% 

4.99% 

0.00% 

20.32% 

26.34% 

26.44% 

14.15% 
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(1) On April 19, 2013, Jefferson completed its acquisition of Carrollton Bancorp. All transactions since the acquisition date are included in our 
consolidated financial statements. 

(2) On July 9, 2010, we acquired substantially all assets and assumed all deposit and certain other Habilities related to the two former branch offices of Bay 
National Bank ("BNB"). The consolidated financial statements cover the period June 30, 2010 (Inception) through December 31, 2010. 

(3) Capital ratios reported for Bay Bank, FSB, 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

OVERVIEW 

The Merger has strengthened our market poshion geographically, enhanced our retail delivery channel, allowed us to provide 
extraordinary customer service while delivering a fuller range of services and products, and lessened our dependence on net interest 
income by adding fee-based sources of revenue including a raortgage origination division, electronic banking division and brokerage 
services subsidiary. 

We reported net income of $3.2 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
Excluding the bargain purchase gain and Merger related expenses, net income was $2.4 million and $1.0 miUion for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. This net income growth was primarily a result ofthe Merger. 

The net interest margin decreased to 5.33% in 2013 compared to 7.43% for 2012. During 2013, the growth in average 
interest-eaming assets and noninterest-bearing deposhs largely offset a decline in the average rates eamed on interest-eaming assets. 
Average total deposits increased 214% when compared to the prior year, while average loans increased 165% when compared to 
2012. 

Return on average assets and retum on average equity are key measures ofour performance. Retum on average assets, the 
quotient of net incorae divided by average total assets, measures how effectively we utilize our assets to produce incorae. Our retum 
on average assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was 0.90% and 0.05%, respectively. Return on average equity, the 
quotient of net income divided by average equity, raeasures how effectively we invest our capital to produce incorae. Retum on 
average equity for the years ended Deceraber 31, 2013 and 2012 was 6.68% and 0.19%, respectively. 

Liquidity reraained strong due to the borrowing lines with the FHLB of Atianta and the Federal Reserve and the size and 
coraposition ofthe investraent portfolio. 

Nonperforraing assets, which consists of nonaccmal loans, troubled debt restracturings, accraing loans past due 90 days or 
more, and real estate acquired through foreclosure, increased to $9.6 raillion at Deceraber 31, 2013 from $6.5 raillion at December 31, 
2012. This increase was due priraarily to loans acquired in the Merger. Nonperforming assets represented 2.29% of total assets at 
December 31, 2013 compared to 4.91% at December 31,2012. The ratio of net charge-offs to average loans was 0.25% for 2013, 
corapared to 0.92% for the prior year. 

At Deceraber 2013, the Bank remained above all "well-caphalized" regulatory requirement levels. 

Balance sheet growth was driven primarily by the Merger. Our total assets were $419 million at December 31, 2013, an 
increase of $286 million, or 215%, compared to Deceraber 31, 2012. Interest-eaming assets accounted for $257 mihion ofthis 
increase, with $312 million added as a result ofthe Merger. Loans grew by $219 raillion, with $225 raillion added as a result ofthe 
Merger. Investraent securities grew by $27 raillion, with $23 raillion added as a resuh ofthe Merger. Loans held for sale grew by $13 
million, with $29 million added as a resuh ofthe Merger. Total deposits were $361 raihion at December 31, 2013, an increase of $260 
million, or 259%, when corapared to December 31, 2012. $318 milhon of deposits were added as a result ofthe Merger. 
Stockholders' equity was $55 million at December 31, 2013, an increase of $23 raillion, or 71%, when compared to Deceraber 31, 
2012. Stockholders' equity increased by $18 million as a resuh ofthe Merger. 

The $58 million decline in deposhs post-Merger was offset priraarily by decreases in loans held for sale of $16 raillion, cash 
and cash equivalents of $36 million, and loans of $6 million. Our strong liquidity position allowed us to reduce our dependence on 
large denomination and non-relationship tirae deposits. 

Noninterest income for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013 was $8.9 raillion compared to $0.4 raillion for the sarae period in 
2012, representing an increase of $8.5 million. The increase in noninterest incorae was the result ofthe Merger. The primary Merger-
related drivers of noninterest incorae for the year ended December 31, 2013 included three new business unhs acquired in the Merger 
(mortgage banking fees and gains of $2.4 million, electronic banking fees of $2.1 million, and brokerage commissions of $0.5 million) 
and $2.9 million attributable to the bargain purchase gain. 
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The increase in noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 when compared to the same periods in 2012 was 
the resuh ofthe Merger. On the effective date ofthe Merger, the number of full-time equivalent employees increased from 38 to 146 
and the number of branches increased from two to twelve. 

Noninterest expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $22.1 million compared to $8.2 million for the same period 
in 2012, representing an increase of $13.9 million. The primary contributors to the increase in noninterest expense for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 were increases in salaries and employee benefits of $6.5 million. Merger-related expenses of $1.1 million, 
occupancy, furniture and equipment expenses of $2.4 million, data processing and item processing services of $0.4 million, legal, 
accotmting and other professional fees of $0.6 million and core deposit intangible amortization of $0.7 miUion. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Our accounting and reporting policies confonn to accounting principles generally accepted in the. United States of America 
("U.S. GAAP"). All intercompany ttansactions are eliminated in consolidation and certain reclassifications are made when necessary 
in order to conform the previous year's financial statements to the current year's presentation. In preparing the consohdated financial 
statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as of 
the dates ofthe balance sheets and revenues and expenditures for the periods presented. Therefore, actual results could differ from 
these estimates. Our financial condition and results of operations are sensitive to accoimting measurements and estimates of matters 
that are inherently uncertain. When applying accounting policies in areas that are subjective in nattire, management must use its best 
judgment to arrive at the carrying value of certain assets. The most critical accounting policies applied relate to treatment ofthe 
allowance for loan losses, accounting for acquired loans, valuation ofthe securities portfolio, and accounting for income taxes. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allowance involves a higher degree of judgment and complexity than other significant accounting policies. The 
allowance is calculated with the objective of maintaining a reserve level believed by us to be sufficient to absorb estimated probable 
loan losses. Our determination ofthe adequacy ofthe allowance is based on periodic evaluations ofthe loan portfolio and other 
relevant factors. However, this evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates, including, among others, expected 
default probabilities, expected loan commitment usage, the amounts and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired and 
purchased credit impaired loans, value of collateral, estimated losses on consumer loans and residential mortgages and general 
amounts for historical loss experience. The process also considers economic conditions and inherent risks in the loan portfoho. All of 
these factors may be susceptible to significant change. To the extent actual outcomes differ from our estimates, an additional 
provision for loan losses may be required that would adversely impact eamings in future periods. See the section ofthis document 
titled, "Allowance for Loan Losses and Credit Risk Management." 

Accounting for Acquired Loans 

Loans purchased with evidence of credh deterioration since origination and for which h is probable that all contractually 
required payments will not be collected are considered to be credh impaired. Evidence of credh quality deterioration as ofthe 
purchase date may include information such as past due and nonaccraal status, borrower credit scores and recent loan to value 
percentages. Purchased credit impaired loans are initially measured at fair value, which considers estimated future credit losses 
expected to be incurred over the life ofthe loan. Accordingly, an aUowance related to these loans was not carried over and recorded at 
the acquisition date. We monitor actual loan cash flows to determine any improvement or deterioration from those forecasted as ofthe 
acquisition date. Our acquired loans with specific credit deterioration are accoimted for in accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification 310-30. Certain acquired loans, those for which specific credh related 
deterioration subsequent to origination is identified, are recorded at fair value reflecting the present value ofthe araounts expected to 
be collected. Income recognition on purchased credit impaired loans is based on a reasonable expectation about the timing and 
amount of cash flows to be collected. 

Valuation ofthe Securities Portfolio 

Securities are evaluated periodically to determine whether a decline in their value is other than teraporary. The term "other 
than temporary" is not intended to indicate a permanent decline in value. Rather, h means that the prospects for near term recovery of 
value are not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support fair values equal to, or greater than, the carrying value 
of an investment. We review other criteria such as magnitude and duration ofthe decline, as well as the reasons for the decline, to 
predict whether the loss in value is other than temporary. Once a decline in value is determined to be other than temporary, the value 
ofthe security is reduced and a cortesponding charge to eamings is recognized. 

Accountins for Income Taxes 

We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
determined based on differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities 
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(i.e., temporary differences) and are raeasured at the enacted rates in effect when these differences reverse. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of raanagement, it is raore hkely than not that some portion or all ofthe 
deferred tax assets will not be realized. We exercise significant judgment in the evaluation ofthe amount and timing ofthe 
recognition ofthe resulting tax assets and liabilities. The judgments and estiraates required for the evaluation are updated based upon 
changes in business factors and the tax laws. If actual results differ from the assumptions and other considerations used in estiraating 
the amount and tiraing of tax recognized, there can be no assurance that additional expenses will not be required in future periods. 
Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on generating sufficient taxable income in the future. 

Other significant accounting policies are presented in Note 1 to the consolidated financial stateraents that appear elsewhere in 
this Annual Report. We have not substantively changed any aspect ofour overall approach in the application ofthe foregoing 
policies. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Net Interest Income 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, inforraation regarding the average balances of interest-eaming assets 
and interest-bearing liabilities, the amount of interest income and interest expense and the resulting yields on average interest-eaming 
assets and rates paid on average interest-bearing liabilities. No tax equivalent yield adjustments were made, as the effect thereof was 
not materiaL 

2013 2012 2011 

ASSETS 
Interest-eaming assets: 
Interest bearing deposits with banks and 
federal Jtinds sold $ 
Investment securities available for sale 
Restricted equity securities 

Total interest-bearmg deposits with banks, 
fed funds sold, and investments 

Loans held for sale 
Loans, net 
Commercial & Industrial 

Commerciai Real Estate 
Residential Real Estate 

HELOC 
Construction 

Land 
Consumer & Other 

Total loans, net (1) 

Total eaming assets 
Cash 
Allowance for loan losses 
Market valuation 
Other assets 

Total non-eaming assets 
Total Assets $ 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' 
EQUITY 
Interest-bearing liabilities: 

Interest-bearing checking and savings $ 
Money niarket 

Time deposits 

Total interest-bearing deposits 
Borrowed fimds: 
Federal funds purchased 
FHLB advances 
Total borrowed fimds 

Total interest-bearing fimds 

Noninterest-bearing deposits 
Totai cost of fimds 

Other liabilities and accrued expenses 
Total Liabilities 
Stockholders' Equity 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity S 
Net interest income and spread (2) 
Net interest margin 

Average 
Balance 

27,998,706 $ 
24,427,877 

684,316 

53,110,899 

20,390,570 

30,774,084 
126,062,242 
53,593,865 
29,405,291 

16,286,846 
1,887,070 
1,689,106 

259,698,504 

333,199,973 $ 
4,959,821 
(738,783) 
198,695 

20,777,504 
25,197,237 
358,397,210 

49,428,952 $ 

64,100,619 
117,716,218 

231,245,789 

56,164 
36,164 
92,328 

231,338,117 

74,794,928 
306,133,045 $_ 

3,727,162 

309,860,207 
48,537,003 
358,397,210 

S 

Interest(I) 

73,294 
615,764 

22,774 

711,832 

776,325 

2,559,257 
8,183,908 
3,635,914 
1,649,928 

1,085,322 
319,018 
98,039 

17,531,386 

19,019,543 

65,098 
236,988 
957,815 

1,259,901 

486 
1,582 
2,068 

1,261,969 

_ 
1,261,969 

17,757,574 

Yield/Rate 

0,26% J 
2,52% 

3.33% 

1.34% 

3,81% 

8.32% 
6.49% 
6,78% 
5,61% 
6.66% 

16.91% 
5.80% 

6,75% 

5.71% 

- S 

0.13% 5 

0,37% 
0,81% 

0.54% 

0,87% 
4,37% 
2.24% 

0.55% 

0,41% 

i 
5.16% 
5.33% 

Average 
Balance 

i 14,883,366 $ 
11,486,249 

354,472 

26,724,087 

-

22,798,942 
33,177,558 

21,795,785 
12,486,194 

2,384,828 
4,353,585 

874,437 

97,871,329 

124,595,416 $ 
331,550 

(643,067) 
454,113 

3,048,602 
3,191,198 

; 127,786,614 

; 6,471,657 $ 
22,230,278 
44,663,774 

73,365,709 

18,306 

-
18,306 

73,384,015 

24,030,276 
97,414,291 $ 

355,740 
97,770,031 
30,016,583 

; 127,786,614 

$ 

Interest 

30,966 
224,536 

5,415 

260,917 

-

2,399,677 

3,165,790 
2,247,787 

863,921 

132,503 
653,756 
101,178 

9,564,612 

9,825,529 

14,770 

51,502 
505,767 

572,039 

88 

-
88 

572,127 

_ 
572,127 

9,253,402 

Yield/Rate 

0.21% ! 
1,95% 
1.53% 

0.98% 

0,00% 

10,53% 
9.54% 

10.31% 
6,92% 
5.56% 

15,02% 
11.57% 

9,77% 

7,89% 

0.23% ; 
0,23% 
1,13% 

0.78% 

0.48% 
0,00% 

0.48% 

0.78% 

0,59% 

S 
7.11% 
7.43% 

Average 
Balance 

f 17,189,943 $ 
16,667,155 

477,682 

34,334,780 

26,122,824 
22,639,270 
17,330,039 
14,656,856 
5,260,554 

5,293,706 
673,388 

91,976,637 

126,311,417 $ 
340,215 

(921,437) 
211,516 

3,713,349 
3,343,643 

i 129,655,060 

i 6,341,841 $ 

16,255,146 
56,173,591 

78,770,578 

19,178 

19,178 

78,789,756 

21,582,519 
100,372,275 S _ 

953,564 
101,325,839 
28,329,221 

S 129,655,060 

$ 

Interest 

35,192 
300,310 

3,705 

339,207 

-

2,642,845 
2,145,856 
1,296,916 
1,243,592 

634,621 

696,791 
165,965 

8,826,586 

9,165,793 

14,252 
49,609 

637,209 

701,070 

168 

-
168 

701,238 

_ 
701,238 

8,464,555 

Yield/Rate 

0.20% 
1.80% 
0,78% 

0.99% 

0.00% 

10.12%, 

9.48% 
7.48% 
8.48% 

12,06% 
13.16% 
24,65% 

9.60% 

7,26% 

0.22% 
0.31% 
1,13% 

0,89% 

0.88% 
0.00% 
0,88% 

0.89% 

0,70% 

6.37% 

6.70% 
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(1) Non-accrual loans are included in average loans. 
(2) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the average yield on interest-eaming assets and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. 
(3) Net interest margin represents net interest income as a percentage of average interest-eaming assets. 

Net interest income, the araount by which interest income on interest-eaming assets exceeds interest expense on interest-
bearing liabilities, is the raost significant component ofour eamings. Net interest income is a fiinction of several factors, including the 
volume and mix of interest-eaming assets and funding sources, as well as the relative level of raarket interest rates. While 
raanagement's policies influence some of these factors, external forces, including customer needs and demands, competition, the 
econoraic policies ofthe federal govemraent and the monetary policies ofthe Federal Reserve also affect net interest income. 

Net interest income for 2013 was $17.8 million corapared to $9.3 raillion for 2012, an increase of $8.5 million or 91% due to 
the higher average balances of eaming assets for 2013 as a resuh ofthe Merger. Net interest margin, which represents the annualized 
percentage of net interest income as compared to average interest-eaming assets, declined to 5.33% for the year ended Deceraber 31, 
2013 as compared to 7.43% for the same period in 2012. The decline in the net interest margin when compared to the prior year was 
due primarily to the loans acquired in the Merger having lower yields than the Bank's pre-Merger loan portfolio which benefited in 
2012 from accelerated accretion on early loan resolutions. 

Total interest income increased by $9.2 raillion, or 94%, for the year ended December 31, 2013 when corapared to 2012. 
Interest income on loans increased by $8.0 raiUion, or 83%, for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013 when corapared to 2012. Interest 
income on loans held for sale, investment securities and interest-bearing deposits in banks and federal funds sold increased by an 
aggregate of $ 1.2 million for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013 when corapared to 2012. The increase in interest incorae for 2013 
was due priraarily to the interest-eaming assets acquired in the Merger. Average interest-eaming assets increased by 167% while 
average interest-bearing liabilities increased 215% in 2013. 

Total interest expense increased by $0.7 million, or 120.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2013 when compared to 2012. 
The increase in interest expense was due primarily to the interest-bearing deposits acquired in the Merger. However, the total cost of 
interest-bearing liabihties decreased to 0.55% for the year ended December 31, 2013, as corapared to 0.78% for 2012. Average 
noninterest-bearing deposhs increased 211% in 2013 while the percentage of average noninterest-bearing deposits to total deposits 
increased to 25% for 2013 compared to 22% for 2012. 

Effect of Volume and Rate Changes on Net Interest Income 

The following table presents the effect of volume and rate changes on net interest income for the periods indicated: 

2013 Versus 2012 2012 Versus 2011 

Increase (Decrease) Due to Change In Increase (Decrease) Due to Change In 

Average Volume Average Rate Total Average Volume Average Rate Total 

Interest Income: 

Loans $ 10,972,938 $(3,006,164) $ 7,966,774 $ 529,145 $ 208,881 $ 738,026 
Total interest-bearing deposits with banks, fed fimds 

sold, and investments 351,648 99,266 450,914 (105,518) 27,228 (78,290) 

Loans held for sale 776,325 : 776,325 - - 0 

Total Interest Income 12,100,911 (2,906,898) 9,194,013 423,627 236,109 659,736 

Interest Expense: 

Time deposits 

Other interest-bearing deposits 

Borrowings 

Total Interest Expense 830,423 (140,582) 689,841 (114,469) (14,642) (129,111) 

(Decrease)/Increase In Net Interest Income $ 11,270,488 $(2,766,316) $ 8,504,172 $ 538,096 $ 250,751 $ 788,847 

Variances that are the corabined effect of volume and rate, but cannot be separately identified, are allocated to the volume 
and rate variances based on their respective relative araounts. 

Provision for Loan Losses 

The provision for loan losses is deterrained by manageraent as the araount to be added to the allowance for loan losses after 
net charge-offs have been deducted to bring the allowance to a level which, in management's best estiraate, is necessary to absorb 
probable losses within the existing loan portfolio. On a monthly basis, management reviews all loan portfolios to determine trends 
and raonitor asset quality. For consumer loan portfohos, this review generally consists of reviewing delinquency levels on an 
aggregate basis with timely follow-up on accounts that become delinquent. In commercial loan portfolios, delinquency information is 
monitored and periodic reviews ofbusiness and property leasing operations are perforraed on an individual loan basis to deterraine 
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628,586 

199,968 

1,869 

(176,538) 

35,845 

111 

452,048 

235,813 

1,980 

(130,338) 

15,876 

(7) 

(1,104) 

(13,465) 

(73) 

(131,442) 

2,411 

(80) 



potential collection and repayraent probleras. See the section captioned "Allowance for Loan Losses" elsewhere in this discussion for 
further analysis ofthe provision for loan losses. 

We recorded a provision for loan losses of $0.8 raillion and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. The increase in the provision for the year ended December 31, 2013 when corapared to 2012 was due priraarily to the 
increase in loans outstanding as a result ofthe Merger and partly due to an increase in loan losses recognized by the Bank's peer group 
on which our allowance is partially based. The loans acquired from the Merger were recorded at fair value at the acquisition date and 
there has been insignificant subsequent credh degradation of these loans as of December 31, 2013. Management expects both the 
allowance for losses and the related provision for loan losses to increase in the future due to the gradual ranoff of the acquired loan 
portfolio and new loan originations. 

Noninterest Income 

The following table reflects the araounts and changes in noninterest incorae for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
December 31, 2012: 

Electronic banking fees (I) 
Mortgage banking fees and gains (1) 
Net gain on sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 
Brokerage commissions (I) 
Service charges on deposit accounts 
Bargain purchase gain 
Other income 

Total Noninterest Income 

(1) New business unit acquired in the Merger. 

Year Ended December 31: 

2013 

; 2,050,941 
2,372,956 

283,984 
471,810 
285,557 

2,860,199 
619,531 

; 8,944,978 

$ 

S _ 

2012 

-
181,090 

-
73,902 

-
157,690 

412,682 

$ 

_ 

$_ 

2013 vs 

$ Change 

2,050,941 
2,372,956 

102,894 
471,810 
211,655 

2,860,199 
461,841 

8,532,296 

2012 

_2o. Change 

. 

-
57% 

-
286% 

-
293% 

2068% 

We recorded noninterest incorae of $8.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, an increase of $8.5 raillion when 
corapared to 2012. Excluding the bargain purchase gain resulting frora the Merger of $2.9 raillion, noninterest income was $6.1 
million for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013, a $5.7 hiiUion increase when corapared to 2012. As shovm in the table above, a 
substantial portion ofthis increase was atfributable to the three new business units acquired in the Merger. The remainder ofthis 
increase was also primarily a result ofthe Merger. 

Noninterest Expenses 

The following table reflects the amounts and changes in noninterest expense for the years ended December 31,2013 and 
2012: 

Year Ended December 31: 

2013 

; 10,523,757 
2,189,811 

802,812 
1,362,118 
1,054,234 

285,411 
381,810 
369,106 
154,864 
791,498 

2,041,756 
2,157,944 

; 22,115,121 

$ 

5 = 

2012 

4,002,556 ! 
363,615 
249,582 
745,371 
633,355 

94,195 
329,444 
294,737 

69,907 
91,481 

916,174 
438,847 

8,229,264 ! 

2013 vs 

$ Change 

i 6,521,201 
1,826,196 

553,230 
616,747 
420,879 
191,216 
52,366 
74,369 
84,957 

700,017 
1,125,582 
1,719,097 

B 13,885,857 

2012 

% Change 

163% 
502% 
222% 

83% 
66% 

203% 
16% 
25% 

122% 
765% 
123% 
392% 
169% 

Salary and employee benefits 
Occupancy expenses 
Fumiture and equipment expenses 
Legal, accounting and other professional fees 
Data processing and item processing services 
FDIC insurance costs 
Advertising and marketing related expenses 
Foreclosed property expenses 
Loan collection costs 
Core deposit intangible amortization 
Merger related expenses 
Other expenses 

Total Noninterest Expenses 

We recorded noninterest expenses of $22.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, representing an increase of $13.9 
miUion when compared to 2012. Excluding Merger-related expenses of $2.0 miUion and $0.9 miUion for the years ended Deceraber 
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31,2013 and 2012, respectively, noninterest expenses were $20.1 million for the year ended December 31,2013, a $12.8 million 
increase when compared to 2012. This net increase was primarily a result ofthe Merger. Some comparative expense drivers are as 
follows: 

o The number of full-time equivalent employees increased from 3 8 at December 31, 2012 to 146 at December 31,2013. 
• The number of branches and administrative facilities increased from three at December 31,2012 to 15 at December 31, 

2013. 

Income Taxes 

For the year ended December 31,2013, the provision for incorae taxes totaled $0.5 raillion, or an effective tax rate of 13.5%, 
compared to $0.6 million, or an effective tax rate of 91.8%), for the sarae period in 2012. The decrease in the effective tax rate for the 
year ended Deceraber 31, 2013 when compared to the same period in 2012 resulted from the following: 

• In 2013, the bargain purchase gain resulting from the Merger is not included in taxable income resulting in a lower 
effective tax rate; and 

• In 2012, there were more acquisition costs incurred compared to 2013 that were not tax deductible; therefore, our taxable 
income was not reduced for these costs, resulting in a higher effective tax rate. 

Unless there are any significant unusual transactions or changes in tax law, our effective tax rate is likely to retum to a rate 
closer to the combined federal and state statutory rate of approximately 39.5% for the year 2014. 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Our total assets were $419 million at December 31, 2013, an increase of $286 miUion, or 215%, when compared to the $133 
miUion recorded at December 31, 2012. Interest-eaming assets accounted for $257 million ofthis increase, with $312 million added 
as a result ofthe Merger. Loans grew by $219 million, with $225 million added as a result ofthe Merger. Total deposits were $361 
raillion at December 31, 2013, an increase of $260 raillion, or 259%, when corapared to the $ 101 raillion recorded at December 31, 
2012. $318 milhon of deposits were added as a result ofthe Merger. Stockholders' equity was $55 raillion at December 31, 2013, an 
increase of $23 miUion, or 71%, when compared to the $32 million recorded at Deceraber 31, 2012. Stockholders' equity increased 
by $18 raillion as a result ofthe Merger 

Investment Securities 

Our investment policy authorizes raanagement to invest in ttaditional securhies instraments in order to provide ongoing 
liquidity, incorae and a ready source of coUateral that can be pledged in order to access other sources of funds. The investment 
portfolio consists entirely of securities available for sale. Securities available for sale are those securities that we intend to hold for an 
indefinite period of time but not necessarily until raaturity. These securhies are carried at fair value and may be sold as part of an 
assefliability management strategy, hquidity management, interest rate risk management, regulatory capital management or other 
similar factors. 

The investment portfolio consists primarily of U.S. Govemment agency securities, residential mortgage-backed securities, 
and state and mimicipal obligations. The income from state and municipal obligations is exempt from federal income tax. Certain 
agency securities are exempt from state income taxes. We use the investraent portfolio as a source of both liquidity and 
eamings. Management continues to evaluate investment options that will produce income without assuming significant credit or 
interest rate risk and to look for opportunities to use hquidity from maturing investraents to reduce our use of high cost time deposits 
and borrowed funds. 

Investment securities increased $26.9 million, or 277%, to $36.6 million at December 31, 2013, frora $9.7 milhon at 
December 31, 2012. This increase was the resuh ofthe Merger, which added $22.5 raillion oflnvestment securhies to our investment 
portfolio, and new securities purchases totaling $15.7 million. Offsetting decreases included the sale of all trast preferted securities 
issued by banks, thrifts and insurance companies acquired in the Merger totaling $2.6 raillion, principal pay downs totaling $7.4 
miUion, a decrease in market value of $0.7 million and the reclassification ofa security from investment securities to restricted equity 
securities of $0.2 million. 
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The composition oflnvestment securities, by estimated fair values, at December 31,2013,2012 and 2011 are presented in the 
following table: 

2013 2012 2011 

U.S. Govemment agency 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 

State and municipal bonds 

Total debt securities 

Equity securities 

Total available for sale 

Fai r Value 

$ 7,525,915 

23,801,003 

5,189,886 

36,516,804 

69,865 

$ 36,586,669 

% 

20.5% 

65.1% 

14.2% 

99.8% 

0.2% 

100.0% 

$ 

$ 

Fa i r Value 

9,716,626 
-

9,716,626 
-

9,716,626 

% 

-

100% 
-

100% 
-

100% 

F a i r V a l u e 

$ • -

14,674,092 
-

14,674,092 

-

$ 14,674,092 

% 

-

100% 
-

100% 

-

100% 

Amortized 

Cost 

$ 

3,139,647 

9,186,255 

532,180 

23,965,230 

$ 36,823,312 

$ 

$ 

Fair 

Value 

- . 

3,120,919 

9,070,492 

524,390 

23,801,003 

36,516,804 

Yield 

(1),(2) 

1.72% 

2.73% 

2.10% 

3.05% 

2.85% 

Maturities and weighted average yields for investment securities at Deceraber 31, are presented in the following table: 

2013 

Amortized 
Maturing 
Within one year 
Over one to five years 
Over five to ten years 
Over ten years 
Residential mortgage-backed securities 
Total debt securities 

(1) Yields are stated as book yields which are adjusted for amortization and accretion of purchase premiums and discounts, respectively. 
(2) Yields on tax-exempt obligations have been computed on a tax-equivalent basis. 

Restricted Equity Securities 

Restricted equity securities increased $0.7 million, or 289%, to $1.0 million at December 31, 2013, from $0.3 million at 
December 31, 2012. This increase was primarily a result ofthe Merger. 

Loans Held for Sale 

Loans held for sale were $12.8 million at December 31, 2013 compared to $0 at December 31,2012. The increase in loans 
held for sale was due to the addition ofthe mortgage banking business unit as a result ofthe Merger. Loans originated for sale to 
third-party investors generally remain on our balance sheet for an average of 45 days. 

Loans 

A comparison ofthe loan portfolio for the years indicated is presented in the foUowing table: 

Commercial & Industrial 

Conunercial Real Estate 

Residential Real Estate 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Constmction 

Consumer & Other 

Total Loans 

Less: Allowance for Loan Losses 

Net Loans 

2013 

Amount 

$ 34,278,539 

157,450,876 

73,323,554 

33,257,822 

1,716,747 

19,343,013 

1,309,781 

320,680,332 

(851,000) 

$ 319,829,332 

% 

11% 

49% 

23% 

10% 

1% 

6% 

0% 

100% 

2012 

Amount 

$ 20,601,207 

39,906,055 

22,229,445 

10,284,221 

3,098,973 

4,704,581 

911,690 

101,736,172 

(655,942) 

$ 101,080,230 

% 

20% 

39% 

22% 

10% 

3% 

5% 

1% 

100% 

2011 

Amount 

$ 26,351,942 

28,561,983 

20,858,635 

13,612,924 

5,172,942 

1,959,353 

502,270 

97,020,049 

(824,653) 

$ 96,195,396 

% 

27% 

30% 

21% 

14% 

5% 

2% 

1% 

100% 

_ 

2010 

Amount 

$ 25,810,468 

16,959,062 

16,901,963 

14,731,417 

7,558,993 

5,112,225 

1,340,547 

88,414,675 

(684,289) 

$ 87,730,386 

% 

29% 

19% 

19% 

17% 

9% 

6% 

1% 

100% 

Loans, net of deferred fees and costs, increased by $219 million from $101.7 million at December 31,2012 to $320.7 million 
at December 31, 2013, due primarily to the Merger. 
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The following table suraraarizes the scheduled repayments ofour loan portfolio, both by loan category and by fixed and 
adjustable rates, at December 31, 2013: 

After One Through 
One Year or Less Five Years After Five Years Total 

By Loan Category: 

Commercial & hidusO-ial $ 18,974,615 $ 13,645,620 $ 1,658,304 $ 34,278,539 

Commercial Real Estate 20,124,244 93,161,277 44,165,355 157,450,876 

Residential Real Estate 2,783,836, 13,255,137 57,284,581 73,323,554 

Home Equity Line of Credit - 874,883 32,382,939 33,257,822 

Land 82,107 1,634,640 - 1,716,747 

Constiuction 11,149,683 6,092,322 2,101,008 19,343,013 

$ 

$ 

$ 

18,974,615 

20,124,244 

2,783,836, 

-
82,107 

11,149,683 

575,998 

53,690,483 

26,480,922 

27,209,561 

53,690,483 

$ 

$ 

$ 

13,645,620 

93,161,277 

13,255,137 

874,883 

1,634,640 

6,092,322 

342,887 

129,006,766 

108,148,693 

20,858,073 

129,006,766 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,658,304 

44,165,355 

57,284,581 

32,382,939 

-
2,101,008 

390,896 

137,983,083 

80,170,306 

57,812,777 

137,983,083 

Consumer & Other 575.998 342,887 390,896 1,309,781 

Total $ 53,690,483 $ 129,006,766 $ 137,983,083 $ 320,680,332 

By Rate Terms: 

Fixed rate 26,480,922 108,148,693 80,170,306 214,799,921 

Adjustable rate 27,209,561 20,858,073 57,812,777 105,880,411 

Total $ 53,690,483 $ 129,006,766 $ 137,983,083 $ 320,680,332 

Loans are placed on nonaccraal status when they are past-due 90 days as to either principal or interest or when, in the opinion 
of manageraent, the collection of all interest and/or principal is in doubt. Placing a loan on nonaccraal status raeans that we no longer 
accrae interest on such loan and reverses any interest previously accraed but not collected. Management may grant a waiver from 
nonaccmal status for a 90-day past-due loan that is both well secured and in the process of collection. A loan reraains on nonaccrual 
status until the loan is cunent as to payraent of both principal and interest and the borrower demonstrates the ability to make payments 
in accordance with the terms ofthe loan and reraain current. 

A loan is considered to be irapaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to 
collect all amounts due according to the contractual terras ofthe loan agreeraent. Irapaired loans are measured based on the fair value 
ofthe collateral for collateral dependent loans and at the present value of expected fiiture cash flows using the loans' effective interest 
rates for loans that are not collateral dependent. 

At December 31, 2013, we had 48 irapaired loans totaling $6.1 million (incliiding purchased credit impaired loans ("PCI") of 
$501,143 that have current period charge-offs). Ofthis amount, 37 irapaired loans totaling $3.8 million were classified as nonaccrual 
loans. At December 31, 2013, ttoubled debt restracturings, or TDRs, included in irapaired loans totaled $2.6 raillion, eight loans of 
which were included in nonaccraal loans having a total balance of $0.9 railhon. Borrowers under all other restractured loans are 
paying in accordance with the terras ofthe modified loan agreement and have been placed on accraal status after a period of 
performance with the restractured terms. At Deceraber 31, 2013, the total valuation allowance for impaired loans was $0. 

The following table presents details ofour nonperforming loans and nonperforming assets, as these asset quality raetrics are 
evaluated by management, for the years indicated: 

Nonaccrual loans excluding PCI loans 

Nonaccrual PCI loans 

TDR loans excluding those in nonaccrual loans 

Accming loans past due 90 -̂ days excluding PCI loans 

Accming PCI loans past due 90^- days 

Total nonperforming loans 

Real estate acquired through foreclosure 

Tolal nonperforming assets 

The level of nonperforraing assets has increased priraarily as a result ofthe Merger. Nonperforming assets continue to have a 
negative impact on eamings as the economy is showing only some iraproveraent. Manageraent has worked diligentiy to identify 
borrowers that may be facing difficulties in order to restmcture terms where appropriate, secure addhional collateral or pursue 
foreclosure and other secondary sources of repayment. The continued success in reducing nonperforming assets will ultimately be 
dependent on continued raanagement diligence and improvement in the economy and the real estate market. 

$ 

$ 

2013 

3,809,000 

179,114 

1,633,980 

-
2,692,572 

8,314,666 

1,290,120 

9,604,786 

$ 

$ 

Asof December 31, 

2012 

1,299,252 

656,624 

1,794,220 

460,354 

1,186,437 

5,396,887 

1,151,256 

6,548,143 

s 

$ 

2011 

3,474,989 

20,000 

1,750,000 

-
1,848,482 

7,093,471 

1,504,101 

8,597,572 

$ 

$ 

2010 

1,055,197 

-
-
-

3,916,077 

4,971,274 

1,818,460 

6,789,734 
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Potential problera loans consist of loans that are performing under contract but for which credit problems have caused us to 
place them on our list of criticized loans. These loans have a risk rating of 6 (Special Mention) or higher, and exclude all nonaccraal 
loans and accraing loans past due 90-1- days. As of December 31, 2013, these loans totaled $21.6 raillion and consisted priraarily of 
Commercial Real Estate and Residential Real Estate loans which had balances of $17.5 million and $2.4 million, respectively. 
Difficulties in the economy and the accompanying impact on these borrowers, as well as future events, such as regulatory examination 
assessments, may result in these loans and others being classified as nonperforming assets in the future. 

Allowance for Loan Losses and Credit Risk Management 

The allowance for loan losses is estabUshed to estimate losses that may occur on loans by recording a provision for loan 
losses that is charged to earnings in the current period. The allowance is evaluated on a quarterly basis by management and is based 
upon manageraent's periodic review ofthe collectability ofthe loans in light of historic experience, the nature and volurae ofthe loan 
portfolio, adverse situations that raay affect the borrower's ability to repay, estiraated value ofany underlying collateral and prevailing 
economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as 
raore information becoraes available. Measured irapairment and credit losses are charged against the allowance when manageraent 
believes the loan or a portion ofthe loan's balance is not collectable. Subsequent recoveries, ifany, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to individual loans that are 
classified as impaired. A loan is irapaired when, based on current inforraation and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable 
to collect all amounts due (principal and interest) according to the contractual terras ofthe loan agreeraent and primarily includes 
nonaccraal loans, ttoubled debt restracturings, and purchased credit irapaired loans where cash flows have deteriorated frora those 
forecast as ofthe acquisition date. For those loans that are classified as irapaired, an allowance is established when the discounted 
cash flows, collateral value, or observable raarket price, whichever is appropriate, ofthe impaired loan is lower than the carrying value 
ofthe loan. For collateral-dependent irapaired loans, any measured impairraent is properly charged-off against the loan and allowance 
in the applicable reporting period. The specific coraponent may fluctuate frora period to period if changes occur in the nature and 
volume of impaired loans. 

The general component covers pools of similar loans, including purchased loans that did not have deteriorated credit quality 
and new loan originations, and is based upon historical loss experience and several qualitative factors. These qualitative factors 
address various risk characteristics in the Bank's loan portfolio after an assessraent of internal or extemal influences on credit quality 
that are not fully reflected in the historical loss data. Manageraent will continue to evaluate the appropriateness ofthe peer group data 
used with each quarterly allowance analysis until such time that the Bank has sufficient loss experience to provide a foundation for the 
general reserve requirement. The general component may fluctuate from period to period if Changes occur in the mix ofthe Bank's 
loan portfolio, econoraic conditions, or specific industry conditions. 

A test ofthe adequacy ofthe allowance, using the raethodology outlined above, is perforraed by raanageraent and reported to 
the Board ofDirectors on at least a quarterly basis. The coraplex evaluations involved in such testing require significant 
estiraates. Manageraent uses available data to establish the allowance at a pradent level, recognizing that the determination is 
inherently subjective, and that future adjustments raay be necessary, depending upon raany items including a change in economic 
conditions affecting specific borrowers, or in general econoraic condhions, and new inforraation that becoraes available. However, 
there are no assurances that the allowance will be sufficient to absorb losses on nonperforraing loans, or that the allowance will be 
sufficient to cover losses on nonperforraing loans in the fiiture. 

The allowance was $851,000 at Deceraber 31, 2013, compared to $655,942 at December 31, 2012. The allowance as a 
percentage of total portfoho loans was 0.27% at December 31, 2013 and 0.64% at Deceraber 31,2012. The decrease in this 
percentage when coraparing 2013 to 2012 was due primarily to the acquisition of loans as part ofthe Merger which were recorded at 
fair value at the acquisition date and no separate valuation allowance was established. 

For non-impaired loans acquired by the Bank from BNB on July 10, 2010 without evidence of deteriorated credit quality, 
there was an unamortized discount of $1.2 million and $1.9 raiUion at Deceraber 31,2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, 
which represented 4.2% and 5.1%, respectively, ofthe related loan balance. For non-irapaired acquired legacy Carrollton Bank 
portfolio loans without evidence of deteriorated credh quality, there was an unaraortized discount of $1.6 raillion at Deceraber 31, 
2013 which represented 1.1% ofthe related loan balance. As the total combined reraaining discount exceeded the indicated total 
required reserve for these loan pools, no additional reserves were recorded. 

During the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013, we recorded net charge-offs of $647,149 corapared to net charge-offs of $902,528 
during 2012. 
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The following table reflects activity in the allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2013 _ 
Balance at beginning of year 

Chargeoffs: 
Commercial & Industrial 
Commercial Real Estate 
Residential Real Estate 
Home Equity Line of Credit 
Land 
Constraction 
Consumer & Other 

Total charge-offs 

Recoveries: 
Commercial & Industrial 
Commercial Real Estate 
Residential Real Estate 
Home Equity Line of Credit 
Land 
Constraction 
Consumer & Other 

Total recoveries 

Net charge-offs 
Provision for loan loss 

Balance at end of year 

Allowance as a percentage of total loans at the end ofthe year 
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans during the year 

The following table presents the allowance for loan losses by loan category at the dates indicated below: 

2013 
$ 655,942 3 

82,860 
187,419 
441,421 

10,919 
-
-

1,000 
723,619 

-
39,135 • 
13,578 
23,026 

731 
76,470 

647,149 
842,207 

$ 851,000 $ 

0.27% 
M- 0.25% 

2012 
; 824,653 : 

101,128 
1,796 

183,765 
647,063 
36,177 

-
-

969,929 

30,000 
1,796 
7,000 

28,605 

-

_ 

67,401 

902,528 
733,817 

655,942 3 

0.64% 
0.92% 

2011 
g 684,289 $ 

39,778 

424,579 
383,187 
231,362 

37,386 

1,116,292 

-
-
-
-

_ 
-

1,116,292 
1,256,656 

5 824,653 S 

0.85% 
1.21% 

2010 

-

_ 

-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

_ 
-

_ 
684,289 

684,289 

0.77% 
0.00% 

2013 2012 2011 2010 

Commercial & Industrial 
Commercial Real Estate 
Residential Real Estate 
Home Equity Line of Credit 
Land 
Constraction 
Consumer & Other 

Total Loans 

Amount 
$ 167,400 

324,080 
80,239 

129,203 
6,918 

135,416 
7,744 

$ 851,000 

As % of 
Total 

Allowance 
20% 
38% 

9% 
15% 
1% 

16% 
1% 

100% 

Amount 
$ 121,759 

131,350 
199,306 
81,955 
6,400 

109,335 
5,837 

$ 655,942 

As%of 
Total 

Allowance 
19% 
20% 
30% 
12% 
1% 

17% 
1% 

100% 

$ 

$ 

Amount 
151,395 
88,361 
49,490 

446,911 
8,256 

75,473 
4,767 

824,653 

As % of 
Total 

Allowance 
18% 
11% 
6% 

54% 
1% 
9% 
1% 

100% 

Amount 
$ 232,789 

36,604 
69,677 

207,227 
78,996 
55,233 
3,763 

$ 684,289 

As % of 
Total 

Allowance 
34% 

5% 
10% 
30% 
12% 
8% 
1% 

100% 
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Deposits 

The following deposh table presents the composition of deposits at December 31,2013 and 2012: 

Noninterest-bearing deposits 

Interest-bearing deposits: 

Checking 

Savings 

Money market 
Total interest-bearing checking, 
savings and money market deposits 

2013 

Amount 

$ 90,077,139 

42,378,939 

27,817,849 

78,356,997 

148,553,785 

%of 
Total 

25% 

12% 
8% 

22% 

42% 

2012 

Amount 

$ 22,005,741 

7,088,483 

424,103 

20,051,187 

27,563,773 

% o f 
Total 

22% 

7% 
0% 

20% 

27% 

2013 vs 

$ Change 

$ 68,071,398 

35,290,456 

27,393,746 

58,305,810 

120,990,012 

2012 

% Change 

309% 

498% 

6459% 

291% 

439% 

Time deposits under $100,000 

Time deposits of $100,000 or more 

Total time deposits 

Total interest bearing deposits 

Total Deposits 

59,403,534 

_62,959,013 

16% 

17% 

122,362,547 33% 

_j70,916,332 75% 

9,431,667 

41,670,949 

51,102,616 

78,666,389 

9% 

42% 

51% 

78% 

49,971,867 

21,288,064 

530% 

51% 

71,259,931 139% 

192,249,943 244% 

$ 360,993,471 100% $ 100,672,130 100% 260,321,341 259% 

The $260.3 million increase in total deposits was primarily atfributable to the Merger, which added total deposhs of $318.3 
miUion. Time deposh balances have decreased by $46.7 million since the Merger, as our strong liquidity position has aUowed for a 
reduced dependence on large denomination and non-relationship balances. 

The ratio of noninterest-bearing deposhs to total deposhs increased to 25% at December 31, 2013, from 22% at December 
31, 2012. Included in our deposh portfolio are brokered deposhs through the Promontoty Interfinancial Network. Through this 
deposh matching network, which includes CDARS and insured cash sweep service ("ICS"), we obtained the ability to offer our 
customers access to FDIC-insured deposit products in aggregate amounts exceeding curtent insurance limits. When we place fiinds 
through CDARS and ICS on behalf of a customer, we typically receive raatching deposits through the network's reciprocal deposh 
program. At December 31, 2013, we had $11.6 million in CDARS and ICS deposits through the reciprocal deposh program compared 
to $0 at December 31, 2012. We can also choose to place deposhs through this network without receiving matching deposits. At 
December 31, 2013, we had placed $3.4 million of deposhs through this network for which we received no matching deposhs, 
compared to $0.2 million at Deceraber 31, 2012. 

Average balances by deposit category and the related average rate paid for the periods indicated are presented in the 
following table: 

Noninterest-bearing deposhs 
Interest-bearing deposits: 

Checking 
Savings 
Money market 
Total interest-bearing checking, 
money market deposhs 

Total time deposits 

Total interest-bearing deposits 

Total Deposits 

savings and 

2013 

Average 
Balance 

$ 74,794,928 

29,363,622 
20,065,330 
64,100,619 

113,529,571 

117,716,218 

231,245,789 

S 306,040,717 

Average 
Rate Paid 

0.00% 

0.20% 
0.03% 
0.37% 

0.27% 

0.81% 

0.54% 

0.41% 

Years Ended December 31, 

2012 

$ 

S 

Average 
Balance 
24,030,276 

5,959,133 
512,524 

22,230,278 

28,701,935 

44,663,774 

73,365,709 

97,395,985 

Average 
Rate Paid 

0.00% 

0.23% 
0.17% 
0.23% 

0.23% 

1.13% 

0.78% 

0.59% 

2011 

Average 
Balance 

$ 21,582,519 

6,046,684 
295,157 

16,255,146 

22,596,987 

56,173,591 

78,770,578 

$ 100,353,097 

Average 
Rate Paid 

0.00% 

0.23% 
0.10% 
0.31% 

0.28% 

1.13% 

0.89% 

0.70% 
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The following table presents the raaturity distribution for time deposits of $100 thousand or more at December 31, 2013: 

Amount 
Three months or less $ 6,165,999 
Over three months through six months 5,041,674 
Over six months through twelve months 17,239,779 
Over twelve months 34,511,562 
Total Time Deposits $ 62,959,013 

Borrowings 

Bortowings acquired as a resuh ofthe Merger consisted of one fixed rate FHLB advance of $170,000. This advance, which 
carried a 4.33% interest rate, matured and was paid in fuU in June 2013. 

CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Ample capital is necessary to sustain growth, provide a measure of protection against unanticipated declines in asset values 
and safeguard the funds of depositors. Capital also provides a source of funds to meet loan demand and enables us to raanage its 
assets and liabilities effectively. 

At Deceraber 31, 2013, our total stockholders' equity increased to $54.6 milhon from $31.8 million at Deceraber 31, 2012, 
primarily as a resuh ofthe Merger but also due to the $3.3 million in net eamings for the year ended Deceraber 31,2013. 

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requireraents adrainistered by federal banking agencies. Failure to meet 
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if 
undertaken, could have a direct raaterial effect on our financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory 
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of its 
assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors. The 
minimum levels of Tier 1 and Total capital to risk-weighted assets are 4% and 8%, respectively, under the cunent regulations. 

In addition, the OCC requires that FSBs, like the Bank, maintain a minimum level of Tier 1 capital to average total assets 
excluding intangibles. This measure is known as the leverage ratio. The current regulatory miniraura for the leverage ratio for 
institutions to be considered adequately capitalized is 4%, but an individual institution could be required to maintain a higher level. In 
connection with the Merger, the Bank entered into an Operating Agreement with the OCC pursuant to which the Bank agreed, araong 
other things, to maintain a leverage ratio ofat least 10% for the term ofthe Operating Agreement. The Operating Agreeraent will 
remain in effect until it is terrainated by the OCC or the Bank ceases to be an FSB, either due to a raerger or otherwise. 

Until the adoption ofthe Basel III Capital Rules, the Company was not subject to specific caphal requirements. The Basel III 
Capital Rules generally will subject to the Company to the same capital requireraents that apply to other deposhory institution holding 
companies. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to raaintain araounts and ratios 
(set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and a 
leverage ratio of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average tangible assets (as defined). At Deceraber 31, 2013 and 2012, the Bank had 
regulatory capital in excess of that required under each requirement and was classified as "well capitalized". 
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Actual caphal amounts and ratios for the Bank are presented in the following table (dollars in thousands): 

As of December 31,2013: 

Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio 

Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio 

Leverage Ratio 

As of December 31,2012: 

Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio 

Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio 

Leverage Ratio 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Actual 

Amount 

47,815 

46,964 

46,964 

30,128 

29,472 

29,472 

Ratio 

14.68% 

14.42% 

11.41% 

27.76% 

27.16% 

22.23% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

To Be Co 

Adequately 

Amount 

26,049 

13,025 

16,461 

8,681 

4,341 

5,303 

insidered 

Capitalized 

Ratio 

8.00% 

4.00% 

4.00% 

8.00% 

4.00% 

4.00% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

To Be Well 

Capitalized Under 

Prompt Corrective 

Action Provisions 

Amount 

32,562 

19,537 

20,577 

10,852 

6,511 

6,629 

Ratio 

10.00% 

6.00% 

5.00% 

10.00% 

6.00% 

5.00% 

The OCC is required to take certain supervisory actions against an undercapitalized FSB, the severity of which depends upon 
the FSB's degree of capitalization. Failure to maintain an appropriate level of capital could cause the OCC to take any one or more of 
a number of discretionary supervisory actions, including the issuance ofa capital directive and the replaceraent of senior executive 
officers and directors. 

Banking regulations also lirah the araount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval by an FSB's regulatory 
agencies. In addition to these regulations, the Bank agreed in the Operating Agreement that h would not declare or pay any dividends 
or otherwise reduce hs capital unless h is in compliance with the Operating Agreement, including the minimum capital requirements. 
Due to the Bank's desire to preserve capital to fund its growth, we currently do not anticipate paying a dividend for the foreseeable 
future. In addition to these regulatory resttictions, it should be noted that the declaration of dividends is at the discretion ofour Board 
of Directors and wiU depend, in part, on our eamings and future capital needs. 

The curtent capital regime will significantly change when the Basel III Capital Rules are phased in starting on January 1, 
2015. These changes are discussed in Itera 1 of Part I ofthis Annual Report under the heading "Capital Requireraents" in the 
"Supervision and Regulation" section. 

Bank. 
Manageraent is in the process of reviewing the new rale to deterraine the irapact that it will have on the Company and the 

LIQUIDITY 

Liquidity describes our ability to meet fmancial obligations, including lending coraraitraents and contingencies, which arise 
during the norraal course ofbusiness. Liquidity is primarily needed to meet the borrowing and deposit withdrawal requirements ofthe 
Company's customers, as well as to meet ciurent and planned expenditures. Manageraent raonitors the liquidity position daily. 

Our liquidity is derived priraarily from our deposit base, scheduled amortization and prepayments of loans and investment 
securities, fiinds provided by operations and capital. Addhionally, liquidity is provided through our portfolios of cash and interest-
bearing deposits in other banks, federal funds sold, loans held for sale, and securities available for sale. While scheduled principal 
repayments on loans are a relatively predictable source of fiinds, deposit flows and loan prepayments are greatly influenced by market 
interest rates, economic conditions, and rates offered by the Bank's competition. 

The borrowing requirements of customers include commitments to extend credit and the unused portion of lines of credit, 
which totaled $67.0 million at Deceraber 31, 2013. Management notes that, historically, a small percentage of unused lines of credit 
are actually drawn down by customers within a 12-month period. 

Our most liquid assets are cash and assets that can be readily converted into cash, including interest-bearing deposits with 
banks and federal fiinds sold, and investment securities. As of December 31,2013, we had $7.1 million in cash and due from banks, 
$16.2 million in interest-bearing deposits with banks and federal fiinds sold, and $36.6 raillion in investment securities available for 
sale. 
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The Bank also has extemal sources of funds through the Federal Reserve Bank ("FRB") and FHLB, which can be drawn 
upon when required. The Bank has a line of credh totaling approximately $88 million with the FHLB of which $55.6 million was 
available to be drawn on December 31, 2013 based on qualifying loans pledged as collateral. In addition, the Bank can pledge 
securities at the FRB and FHLB and, depending on the type of security, may bonow approxiraately 50% to 97% ofthe fair raarket 
value ofthe securhies. The Bank had $19.3 raillion of securities pledged at the FHLB, $0.2 million of securities pledged at the FRB, 
and an additional $17.1 million of unpledged securities. Using these securities as collateral, the Bank could borrow approxiraately 
$26.6 million as of December 31, 2013. Additionally, the Bank has unsecured federal fiinds lines of credit totaling $8.0 million with 
two institutions and a $4.0 million secured federal funds line of credit with another institution. The secured federal fiinds line of credh 
with another institution would require the Bank to transfer securities currently pledged at the FHLB or the FRB or to pledge 
unpledged securities to this institution before it could borrow against this line. There was no balance outstanding under these lines or 
other borrowings at Deceraber 31, 2013. 

To further aid in raanaging liquidity, the Bank's Board ofDirectors has approved and formed an Asset/Liability Management 
Coraraittee ("ALCO") to review and discuss recommendations for the use of available cash and to maintain an investment portfolio. 
By limiting the maturity of securhies and maintaining a conservative investment posture, raanagement can rely on the investment 
portfolio to help meet any short-term funding needs. 

We believe the Bank has adequate cash on hand and available through liquidation of investraent securities and available 
borrowing capacity to raeet our liquidity needs. Although we believe sufficient liquidity exists, if econoraic condhions and consuraer 
confidence deteriorate, this liquidity could be depleted, which would then raaterially affect our ability to meet operating needs and to 
raise additional capital. 

MARKET RISK AND INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY 

Our primary market risk is interest rate fluctuation. Interest rate risk resuhs primarily frora the traditional banking activhies 
in which the Bank engages, such as gathering deposits and extending loans. Many factors, including econoraic and financial 
conditions, movements in interest rates and consumer preferences affect the difference between the interest eamed on our assets and 
the interest paid on liabilities. Our interest rate risk represents the level of exposure we have to fluctuations in interest rates and is 
primarily measured as the change in eamings and the theoretical market value of equity that results from changes in interest rates. The 
ALCO oversees our manageraent of interest rate risk. The objective ofthe management of interest rate risk is to maximize 
stockholder value, enhance profitability and increase capital, serve customer and conmiunity needs, and protect us frora any material 
financial consequences associated with changes in interest rate risk. 

Interest rate risk is that risk to eamings or capital arising from movement of interest rates. It arises from differences between 
the tiraing of rate changes and the tiraing of cash flows (repricing risk); from changing rate relationships across yield curves that affect 
bank activities (basis risk); frora changing rate relationships across the spectrara of maturities (yield curve risk); and from interest rate 
related options embedded in certain bank products (option risk). Changes in interest rates may also affect a bank's underlying 
economic value. The value ofa bank's assets, liabilities, and interest-rate related, off-balance sheet conttacts is affected by a change 
in rates because the present value of future cash flows, and in sorae cases the cash flows theraselves, is changed. 

We believe that accepting sorae level of interest rate risk is necessary in order to achieve realistic profit goals. Manageraent 
and the Board have chosen an interest rate risk profile that is consistent with our strategic business plan. 

The Corapany's board ofdlrcctors has established a comprehensive interest rate risk raanagement policy, which is 
administered by our ALCO. The policy establishes limits on risk, which are quantitative measures ofthe percentage change in net 
interest income (a measure of net interest income at risk) and the fair value of equity capital (a measure of econoraic value of equity or 
"EVE" at risk) resulting from a hypothetical change in U.S. Treasury interest rates. We measure the potential adverse irapacts that 
changing interest rates may have on our short-terra eamings, long-terra value, and liquidity by employing siraulation analysis through 
the use of computer modeling. The simulation model captures optionality factors such as call features and interest rate caps and floors 
imbedded in investment and loan portfolio contracts. As with any raethod of gauging interest rate risk, there are certain shortcomings 
inherent in the interest rate modeling methodology we employ. When interest rates change, actual movements in different categories 
of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, loan prepayments, and withdrawals of tirae and other deposits, raay deviate 
significantly frora assuraptions used in the raodel. Finally, the raethodology does not raeasure or reflect the impact that higher rates 
may have on adjustable-rate loan customers' ability to service their debts, or the impact of rate changes on demand for loan and 
deposit products. 

We prepare a current base case and eight altemative simulations at least once a quarter and report the analysis to the board of 
directors. In addition, raore frequent forecasts are produced when interest rates are particularly uncertain or when other business 
conditions so dictate. 

The statement of condition is subject to quarterly testing for eight altemative interest rate shock possibilities to indicate the 
inherent interest rate risk. Average interest rates are shocked by +1 - 100, 200, 300, and 400 basis points ("bp"), although we may elect 
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1-400 bp 

-20.0% 

11.7% 

12.0% 

4-300 bp 

-15.0% 

8.7% 

9.4% 

-1-200 bp 

-10.0% 

S.6% 

6.8% 

-1-100 bp 

-5.0% 

2.7% 

4.1% 

-100 bp 

-5.0% 

-1.3% 

-0.6% 

-200 bp 

-10.0% 

N/A 

N/A 

-300 bp 

-15.0% 

N/A 

N/A 

-400 bp 

-20.0% 

N/A 

N/A 

not to use particular scenarios that we determine are impractical in the curtent rate environment. It is our goal to stracture the balance 
sheet so that net interest-eamings at risk over a twelve-month period and the economic value of equity at risk do not exceed policy 
guidelines at the various interest rate shock levels. 

At December 31, 2013, we were in an asset sensitive position. Management continuously strives to reduce higher costing 
fixed rate fimding instraments, while increasing assets that are more fluid in their repricing. An asset senshive position, theoretically, 
is favorable in a rising rate environment since more assets than habihties will reprice in a given time frame as interest rates rise. 
Similarly, a liability sensitive position, theoretically, is favorable in a declining interest rate environment since raore liabilities than 
assets will reprice in a given time frarae as interest rates decline. Management works to maintain a consistent spread between yields 
on assets and costs of deposits and borrowings, regardless ofthe direction of interest rates. 

Estimated Changes in Net Interest Income __^ 

Change in Interest Rates: 

Policy Limit 

December 31,2013 

December 31,2012 

As shown above, measures of net interest income at risk were slightly less favorable than at December 31, 2012 at all interest 
rate shock levels. All measures remained well within prescribed policy limits. The primaty conttibutor to the slightly less favorable 
position was the less asset sensitive balance sheet that resulted from the Merger and customer desire to lock in current low interest 
rates. 

The measures of equity value at risk indicate the ongoing economic value ofthe Company by considering the effects of 
changes in interest rates on all ofthe Company's cash flows, and by discounting the cash flows to estimate the present value of assets 
and liabilities. The difference between these discounted values ofthe assets and liabilities is the economic value of equity, which, in 
theory, approximates the fair value ofthe Corapany's net assets. 

Estimated Changes in Economic Value of Equity (EVE) 

Change in Interest Rates: 

Policy Limit 

December 31,2013 

December 31, 2012 

The EVE at risk improved at December 31,2013 compared to December 31, 2012 in all rising interest rate shock levels. The 
positive impact on EVE is caused by the significant increase in volume of longer duration noninterest-bearing deposit accounts from 
the Merger which generates raore benefit as market rates increase in the shock scenarios. This same contributor during rising rate 
scenarios is also the primaty reason the EVE decreases in the declining rate scenario. We evaluated the slightly below policy decrease 
in the declining rate scenario shown in the table above. Though we believe the likelihood ofthis scenario is exttemely remote, we will 
continue to adjust our strategy and monitor the impact ofour adjustments to ensure they do not exacerbate or create new out of policy 
limit results. 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS 

We have various contractual obligations that raay require future cash payraents. The following table presents our significant 
contractual obhgations as of December 31,2013: 

Pro.iected Maturity Date or Payment Period 

4-400 bp 

-40.0% 

17.7% 

1.6% 

4-300 bp 

-30.0% 

14.3% 

1.9% 

-F200bp 

-20.0% 

10.1% 

2.0% 

-MOO bp 

-10.0% 

5.9% 

1.6% 

-100 bp 

-10.0% 

-11.0% 

-6.6% 

-200 bp 

-20.0% 

N/A 

N/A 

-300 bp 

-30.0% 

N/A 

N/A 

-400 bp 

-40.0% 

N/A 

N/A 

Time Deposits (1) 

Operating lease obligations 

Purchase obligations (2) 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Total 

122,362,547 

10,732,819 

3,900,000 

136,995,366 

Less than 1 year 

$ 

$ 

60,492,159 

1,679,123 

857,000 

63,028,282 

1 

$ 

$ 

- 3 years 

40,702,877 

2,647,460 

1,792,000 

45,142,337 

3-

$ 

$ 

• 5 years 

12,002,649 

1,762,760 

1,251,000 

15,016,409 

Morel 

$ 

$ 

:han 5 years 

9,164,862 

4,643,476 

-
13,808,338 

(1) In the normal course ofbusiness, a substantial portion of these balances rollover into new time deposits. 
(2) Represents payments required under a contract with our data processing services provider which expires in April 2018. 

The total obligation is estimated based on our normal monthly charges post-Merger and assuming a.3% annual grovrth rate. 

We also enter into off-balance sheet arrangeraents in the normal course ofbusiness. These arrangeraents consist priraarily of 
coraraitraents to extend credit, lines of credit, and letters of credit issued by the Bank. Credit commitments are agreements to lend to a 
customer as long as there is no violation ofany condition to the contract. Loan coraraitraents generally have interest rates fixed at 
current raarket amounts, fixed expiration dates, and may require payment ofa fee. Lines of credit generally have variable interest 
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rates. Such lines do not represent future cash requirements because h is unlikely that all customers will draw upon their lines in full at 
anytime. Letters of credit are commitments issued to guarantee the perforraance ofa customer to a third party. 

The following table presents otu- outstanding loan coraraitraents and lines and letters of credh as of December 31, 2013: 

2013 

Loan commitments $ 6,224,298 
Unused lines of credh 58,479,498 
Standby letters of credh 2,254,568 

Our exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the borrower is the contract amount ofthe commitment. Loan 
comraitraents, lines of credit, and letters of credit are raade on the same terms, including collateral, as outstanding loans. Manageraent 
is not aware of any accounting loss that we would incur by funding these commitments. 

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

This disclosure is not required, since we are a "smaller reporting company", but inforraation regarding our raarket risk is 
discussed in Itera 7 ofthis Part II under the heading, "Market Risk and Interest Rate Sensitivity". 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors 
Bay Bancorp, Inc. 
LutherviUe, MD 

We have audited the accorapanying consolidated balance sheets of Bay Bancorp, Inc. (the "Corapany") as of Deceraber 31, 2013 and 
2012, andthe related consolidated statements of income, coraprehensive income, stockholders' equity and cash flows forthe years 
then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility ofthe Company's raanageraent. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial stateraents based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Corapany Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perforra the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its intemal confrol 
over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe 
Company's intemal conttol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audh includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates raade by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consohdated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all raaterial respects, the financial position of 
Bay Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results oftheir operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, 
in conforraity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

/s/McGladrey LLP 

Frederick, Maryland 
March 28, 2014 
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BAY BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, 

Cash and due frora banks 
Interest bearing deposits with banks and federal funds sold 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investraent securities available for sale, at fair value 
Restricted equity securities, at cost 
Loans held for sale 

Loans, net of defened fees and costs 
Less: Allowance for loan losses 

Loans, net 

Real estate acquired through foreclosure 
Preraises and equipraent, net 
Bank owned life insurance 
Core deposit intangible 
Deferred tax assets, net 
Accraed interest receivable 
Other assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Noninterest-bearing deposits 
Interest-bearing deposits 

Total Deposits 

Defined benefit pension liability 
Accraed expenses and other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Coraraon stock - par $1.00 per share, authorized 20,000,000 shares, issued and 
outstanding 9,379,753 shares as of Deceraber 31, 2013; authorized 11,108,500 
shares, issued and outstanding 5,831,963 shares as of Deceraber 31,2012. 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained eamings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Total Stockholders' Equity 
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 

2013 
7,126,720 

16,146,340 
23,273,060 

$ 419,089303 

90,077,139 
270,916,332 
360,993,471 

42,492 
3,499,072 

364,535,035 

9,379,753 
36,357,001 
7,703,597 
1,113,917 

54,554,268 

2012 
1,627,715 

18,057,114 
19,684,829 

36,586,669 
1,009,695 

12,836,234 

320,680,332 
(851,000) 

319,829,332 

1,290,120 
5,998,532 
5,356,575 
3,993,679 
6,564,121 
1,186,748 
1,164,538 

9,716,626 
259,800 

-

101,736,172 
(655,942) 

101,080,230 

1,151,256 
394,425 

-
173,815 
239,189 
330,639 
213,059 

$ 133,243,868 

22,005,741 
78,666,389 

100,672,130 

747,322 
101,419,452 

5,831,963 
21,269,898 
4,462,463 

260,092 
31,824,416 

$ 419,089,303 $ 133,243,868 

See accompanying notes to audited consolidated financial statements 
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BAY BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Years Ended December 31, 

Interest income: 
Interest and fees on loans 
Interest on loans held for sale 
Interest and dividends on securhies 
Interest on deposits with banks and federal fiinds sold 

Total Interest Income 

Interest expense: 
Interest on deposits 
Interest on short-term bonowings 

Total Interest Expense 
Net Interest Income 

Provision for loan losses 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 

Noninterest income: 
Electronic banking fees 
Mortgage banking fees and gains 
Net gain on sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 
Brokerage comraissions 
Service charges on deposit accounts 
Bargain purchase gain 
Other income 

Total Noninterest Incorae 

Noninterest Expenses: 
Salary and eraployee benefits 
Occupancy expenses 
Fumiture and equipraent expenses 
Legal, accounting and other professional fees 
Data processing and item processing services 
FDIC insurance costs 
Advertising and marketing related expenses 
Foreclosed property expenses 
Loan collection costs 
Core deposit intangible amortization 
Merger related expenses 
Other expenses 

Total Noninterest Expenses 
Income before income taxes 

Income tax expense 

Net income 

Basic net incorae per common share 

Diluted net incorae per common share 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2013 

17,531,386 $ 
776,325 
638,538 
73,294 

19,019,543 

1,259,901 
2,068 

1,261,969 
17,757,574 

842,207 

16,915,367 

2,050,941 
2,372,956 
283,984 
471,810 
285,557 

2,860,199 
619,531 

8,944,978 

10,523,757 
2,189,811 
802,812 

1,362,118 
1,054,234 
285,411 
381,810 
369,106 
154,864 
791,498 

2,041,756 
2,157,944 

22,115,121 
3,745,224 

504,090 

3,241,134 $ 

0.39 $ 

0.39 $ 

2012 

9,564,612 
-

229,951 
30,966 

9,825,529 

572,039 
88 

572,127 
9,253,402 

733,817 

8,519,585 

_ 

-
181,090 

-
73,902 

-
157,690 
412,682 

4,002,556 
363,615 
249,582 
745,371 
633,355 
94,195 

329,444 
294,737 
69,907 
91,481 

916,174 
438,847 

8,229,264 
703,003 

645,450 

57,553 

0.01 

0.01 

See accompanying notes to audited consolidated financial statements 
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BAY BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Years Ended December 31, 

Net income 

Other Comprehensive Income: 
Unrealized (loss) gain on investment securities available for sale 
Income tax benefit (expense) relating to itera above 
Net effect on other coraprehensive incorae 

Unrealized gain on defined benefit pension plan 
Incorae tax benefit (expense) relating to itera above 
Net effect on other coraprehensive incorae 

Other coraprehensive income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

$ 

$ 

2013 

3,241,134 

(744,943) 

293,880 
(451,063) 

2,154,881 
(849,993) 
1,304,888 

853,825 

4,094,959 

$ 

_ $ _ 

2012 

57,553 

51,569 
(20,343) 
31,226 

-

-

31,226 

88,779 

See accompanying notes to audited consolidated financial statements 
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BAY BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Balance December 31,2011 (1) 

Net income 
Other comprehensive income 
Stock-based compensation 
Issuance of comraon stock under stock option plan 
Repurchase and retirement ofcommon stock 
Balance December 31, 2012 (1) 

Net income 
Other comprehensive incorae 
Issuance of coramon stock to FSPF I, LLC 
Carrollton Bancorp shares retained at the date of 
Merger 
Issuance of restricted coraraon stock 
Stock-based corapensation 
Issuance of coramon stock under stock option plan 
Balance December 31, 2013 

Common 
Stock 

$ 5,820,854 

-
-
-

n 19,995 
(8,886) 

5,831,963 

-
-

2,039,958 

Additional 
Paid-in 
Capital 

$ 20,940,245 

-
-

289,502 
79,905 

(39,754) 
21,269,898 

-
-

8,960,042 

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 4,404,910 

57,553 
-
-
-
-

4,462,463 

3,241,134 
-
-

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

$ 228,866 

-
31,226 

-
-
-

260,092 

-
853,825 

-

Total 

$ 31,394,875 

57,553 
31,226 

289,502 
99,900 

(48,640) 
31,824,416 

3,241,134 
853,825 

11,000,000 

1,483,457 
15,488 

-
8,887 

5,800,313 
(15,488) 
311,133 
31,103 

7,283,770 

311,133 
39,990 

$ 9,379,753 $36,357,001 $ 7,703,597 $ 1,113,917 $54,554,268 

(1) As restated for the effect ofthe Merger (as defined in Note I), with each share of Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. common stock, $0.01 par, converted into 2.2217 
shares of Bay Bancorp, Inc. common stock, $1.00 par. 

See accompanying notes to audited consolidated fmancial statements 
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BAY BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O F CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 31, 

2013 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net mcome to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 
Stock-based compensation 
Amortization of investment premiums and discounts, net 
Accretion of net discounts on loans 
Amortization of core deposit mtangibles 
Amortization of deposit premiums 
Provision for loan losses 
Increase in cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance 
Bargain purchase gain 
Deferred income taxes 
Write down of real estate acquired through foreclosure 
Gain on sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 
Origination of loans held for sale 
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 
Gains on sales of loans held for sale 
Net decrease in accraed pension plan 
Net decrease in accraed interest receivable and other assets 
Net (decrease) increase in accraed expenses and other Uabiiities 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Acquisition, net of cash acquired 
Purchases oflnvestment securities available for sale 
Redemptions and maturities oflnvestment securities available for sale 
Proceeds fi-om sale of securities avaUable for sale 
Redemption ofFederal Home Loan Bank stock 
Net decrease (increase) in loans 
Proceeds from sale of real estate acquired through foreclosure 
Purchases of premises and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cash flows from flnancing activities: 
Net (decrease) increase in deposits 
Repayment ofFederal Home Loan Bank advances 
Proceeds from issuance ofcommon stock 
Issuance ofcommon stock on stock option exercise 
Repurchase and retirement ofcommon stock 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

3,241,134 $ 57,553 

$ 

644,261 

311,133 

474,574 

(4,127,391) 

791,498 

(989,291) 

842,207 

(93,320) 

(2,860,199) 

(486,211) 

100,611 
(283,984) 

(203,686,063) 
220,225,874 

(2,372,956) 

(85,468) 

3,168,586 

(357,825) 

14,457,170 

27,152,544 

(15,744,344) 

7,438,726 

2,622,388 

34,800 

10,691,422 

2,185,785 

(286,635) 

1,124,849 

35,219,535 

(56,958,464) 

(170,000) 

11,000,000 

39,990 
-

(46,088,474) 

3,588,231 

19,684,829 

23,273,060 $ 

116,792 

289,502 

215,467 

(4,089,616) 

91,481 

-
733,817 

-
-

(216,505) 

125,066 

(181,090) 

-
-
-
-

559,280 

234,349 

(2,063,904) 

_ 

-
4,793,568 

-
230,100 

(2,713,291) 

1,593,125 

(356,051) 

-
3,547,451 

2,712,614 

-
-

99,900 

(48,640) 

2,763,874 

4,247,421 

15,437,408 

19,684,829 

See accompanying notes to audited consolidated financial statements 
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BAY BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDMRY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

Years Ended December 31, 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow information: 
Interest paid on deposits and borrowings 
Income taxes paid 

Non Cash activities: 
Transfer of loans to real estate acquired through foreclosure 
Transfer of loans held for sale to loan portfolio 
Bay Bancorp, Inc. shares retained at the date ofthe Merger 

$ 

$ 

2013 

2,401,936 

319,530 

1,232,558 
2,441,782 
7,283,770 

$ 

$ 

2012 

683,899 

927,000 

1,184,256 

See accompanying notes to audited consolidated fmancial statements 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Business 

Bay Bancorp, Inc. is a savings and loan holding company. Until November 1, 2013, Bay Bancorp, Inc. operated under the 
narae Carrollton Bancorp. Effective November 1, 2013, Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s corporate name was changed to Bay Bancorp, Inc. As 
used in these notes, the term "the Company" refers to Bay Bancorp, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

Through hs subsidiary. Bay Bank, FSB, a federal savings bank (the "Bank"), Bay Bancorp, Inc. is engaged in a general 
coraraercial and retail business and has twelve full-service branch locations in Maryland. The principal business ofthe Bank is to 
raake loans and other investraents and to accept time and demand deposits. The Bank's core raarkets are the comraunities within the 
Baltimore Metropolitan Statistical Area, particularly Baltimore City and the Maryland counties of Baltimore, Anne Arundel, Howard, 
Carroll and Harford, as well as Wicomico and Somerset counties on the Eastem Shore of Maryland. Lending activities are broader, 
including the entire state of Maryland, and, to a liraited extent, the sunounding states. The Bank offers a broad range of banking 
products, including a full line ofbusiness and personal savings and checking accounts, money market demand accounts, time deposhs, 
and other banking services. The Bank funds a variety of loan types including coramercial and residential real estate loans, comraercial 
terra loans and lines of credit, consuraer loans and letters of credit The Bank's custoraers are primarily individuals and small 
businesses. The Bank's subsidiary, Bay Financial Services, Inc., provides investment advisoty and brokerage services. 

Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bay Bancorp, Inc., the Bank and the Bank's consolidated 
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The investment in 
subsidiary is recorded on Bay's books on the basis of its equity in the net assets. 

On April 19, 2013, Bay Bancorp, Inc. acquired all the outstanding coraraon stock of Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. ("Jefferson") in 
a merger (the "Merger") that was accounted for as a reverse acquisition and recapitalization in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP"). For accounting and financial reporting purposes, Jefferson is 
deeraed to have acquired Bay Bancorp, Inc. in the Merger even though Bay Bancorp, Inc. was the legal successor in the Merger, and 
the historical financial stateraents of Jefferson have become the Company's historical financial statements. Consequently, the assets 
and liabilities and the operations that are reflected in the historical consolidated financial statements prior to the Merger are those of 
Jefferson, and the historical consolidated financial statements after the Merger include the assets and liabilities of Jefferson and Bay 
Bancorp, Inc., historical operations of Jefferson and operations ofthe corabined corporation after April 19, 2013. See Note 2 for 
further information regarding the Merger. When discussing periods prior to April 19,2013, the terra "the Corapany" as used in these 
notes refers to Jefferson and its consolidated subsidiaries. 

Reclassifications 

Certain prior year araounts have been reclassified to conform to current period classifications. The reclassifications had no 
effect on gross revenues, gross expenses, net incorae, stockholders' equity, or the net change in cash and cash equivalents and are not 
raaterial to previously issued financial stateraents. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to raake estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial stateraents and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near terra include the determination ofthe 
allowance for loan losses; the fair value of financial instraments, such as loans, investment securities, and derivatives; measurement 
and assessment of intangible assets and other purchase accounting related adjustraents; benefit plan obligations and expenses; the 
valuation of deferred tax assets, real estate acquired through foreclosure, and net assets acquired in the raerger; and the estiraate of 
expected cash flows for loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality. 

Segment Information 

The Corapany has one reportable segment, "Coraraunity Banking." All ofthe Corapany's activhies are interrelated, and each 
activity is dependent and assessed based on how each ofthe activities ofthe Company supports the others. For example, lending is 
dependent upon the ability ofthe Bank to fund itself with deposits and other borrowings and manage interest rate and credh risk. 
Accordingly, all significant operating decisions are based upon analysis ofthe Company as one segment or unit. 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company has included cash and due frora banks, interest bearing deposits with banks with an original maturity of 90 
days or less, and federal fiinds sold as cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of reporting cash flows. 

The Bank is required under Federal Reserve Board ("Federal Reserve") regulations to maintain reserves against its 
transaction accounts. These reserves are generally held in the form of cash or noninterest-eaming accounts at the Bank. Based on the 
nature ofour transaction account deposits and the araount of vauh cash on hand, the Bank is not required to raaintain a reserve balance 
with the Federal Reserve at Deceraber 31, 2013 and 2012. 

Investment Securities Available for Sale 

Investment securities classified as available for sale are recorded at fair value. Temporary unrealized gains or losses on 
available for sale securities are excluded from net income and reported, net oftaxes, as a separate component of other comprehensive 
income (loss) included in stockholders' equity. Premiuras or discounts on available for sale securities are araortized or accreted into 
income using the interest raethod. For raortgage-backed securities, the amortization or accretion is based on estimated average lives 
ofthe securhies. The lives of these securities can fluctuate based on the amount of prepayraents received on the underlying collateral 
ofthe securhies. Realized gains or losses are recorded on the trade date using the specific identification raethod. 

Manageraent evaluates securities for other-than-teraporary impairraent on at least a quarterly basis, and more frequently 
when economic or market concem wanants such evaluation. Debt securities with a decline in fair value below their cost that are 
deemed to be other-than-teraporarily irapaired are reflected in eamings as realized losses to the extent irapairraent is related to credit 
losses. The araount ofthe impairment for debt securities related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). 
In evaluating other-than-temporary irapairment losses, manageraent considers: (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair 
value has been less than cost, (2) the reasons for the decline in value, (3) the fmancial position and access to capital ofthe issuer, 
including the current and future impact ofany specific events, and (4) for fixed raaturity securhies, whether the Company intends to 
sell the security, or h is more likely than not that the Corapany will be required to sell the security before recovery ofthe cost basis, 
which may be at maturity. 

Restricted Equitv Securities. At Cost 

The Bank is required to maintain a minimum investraent in capital stock of other financial institutions in order to conduct 
business with these institutions. Since no ready raarket exists for these stocks and they have no quoted market value, the Bank's 
investments in these stocks are carried at cost. Management reviews for irapairment based on the ultimate recoverability ofthe cost 
basis in these securities. The stocks' values are determined by the ultimate recoverability ofthe par values rather than by recognizing 
temporary declines. Management considers such criteria as the significance ofa decline in net assets, ifany, the length of time the 
situation has persisted, comraitraents by the institutions to raake payraents required by law or regulation, the impact of legislative or 
regulatory changes on the custoraer base and the Bank's liquidity position. 

The Corapany's holdings of restricted stock investments consist ofthe following at December 31, 2013 and 2012: 

2013 2012 
Federal Home Loan Bank $ 690,700 S 194,800 
Visa Inc, Class B 204,195 
Maryland Financial Bank 49,800 
Atiantic Central Bankers Bank 65,000 65,000 

Total restricted equity securities $ 1,009,695 $ 259,800 

Loans Held for Sale 

The Corapany originates residential raortgage loans for resale in the secondary raortgage loan raarket. These loans are 
classified as loans held for sale and are carried at the lower of cost or estimated market value on an aggregate basis. Market value is 
determined based on the price secondary raarkets are currently offering for sirailar loans. Loans held for sale are sold with servicing 
rights released; gain or loss on the sale is recorded at the date the loan is sold in noninterest income. 
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Loans 

The accounting methods for loans differ depending on whether the loans are originated or purchased, and if purchased, 
whether or not the purchased loans reflected credh deterioration since the date of origination such that h is probable on the purchase 
date that the Company will be unable to collect all conttactually required payments. 

Originated Loans 

Loans are generally stated at the principal amount outstanding net ofany deferred fees and costs. Interest income on loans is 
accraed at the contractual rate on the principal amount outstanding. It is the Corapany's policy to discontinue the accraal of interest 
when circumstances indicate that collection is doubtful. The accraal of interest is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days past due 
unless the credit is well-secured and in the process of collection. Past due status is based on conttactual terms ofthe loan. Generally, 
loans are placed on nonaccraal status once they are determined to be impaired or when principal or interest payments are 90 or more 
days past due. Previously accraed but uncollected interest income on these loans is reversed against interest income. Loans are 
retumed to accraal status when all principal and interest amounts conttactually due are brought current and future payments are 
reasonably assured. Fees charged and costs capitalized for originating certain loans are amortized or accreted by the interest method 
over the term of the loan. 

Loans are considered impaired when, based on cmrent information, it is probable that the Company will not collect all 
principal and interest payments according to contractual terms. Impaired loans do not include large groups of smaller balance 
homogeneous credits such as residential real estate and consumer installment loans, which management evaluates collectively for 
impairment. Factors considered by manageraent in deterraining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the 
probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and 
payraent shortfalls generally are not classified as irapaired. Management detennines the significance of payment delays and payment 
shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all ofthe circumstances surrounding the loan and the bortower, including 
the length ofthe delay, the reason for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount ofthe shortfall in relation to the 
principal and interest owed. Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the 
loan's effective interest rate. However, as a practical expedient, management may measure impairment based on a loan's observable 
market price or the fair value ofthe collateral if repayraent ofthe loan is collateral-dependent. For coUateral-dependent loans, any 
measured impairment is charged-off in the applicable reporting period. 

Loans Acquired in a Transfer 

The loans acquired from the Bank's acquisition of assets from Bay National Bank ("BNB") on July 10, 2010 and from the 
Merger (see Note 2 Merger) were recorded at fair value at the acquisition date and no separate valuation allowance was established. 
The initial fair values were deterrained by manageraent, with the assistance of an independent valuation specialist, based on estimated 
expected cash flows discounted at appropriate rates. The discount rates were based on market rates for new originations of 
comparable loans and did not include a factor for loan losses as that was included in the estiraated cash flows. 

Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 310-30, Loans and 
Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality, applies to loans acquired in a transfer with evidence of deterioration of 
credit quality for which it is probable, at acquisition, that the investor will be unable to collect all confractually required payments 
receivable. If both conditions exist, the Company determines whether to account for each loan individually or whether such loans will 
be assembled into pools based on common risk characteristics such as credit score, loan type, and origination date. Based on this 
evaluation, the Company determined that the loans acquired from both the BNB acquisition and the Merger subject to ASC Topic 
310-30 would be accounted for individually. 

The Company considered expected prepayments and estimated the total expected cash flows, which included undiscounted 
expected principal and interest. The excess of that amount over the fair value ofthe loan is referted to as accretable yield. Accretable 
yield is recognized as interest income on a constant yield basis over the expected life ofthe loan. The excess ofthe contractual cash 
flows over expected cash flows is referred to as nonaccretable difference and is not accreted into income. Over the life ofthe loan, the 
Company continues to estimate expected cash flows. Subsequent decreases in expected cash flows are recognized as impairments in 
the current period through the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent increases in cash flows to be collected are first used to reverse 
any existing valuation allowance and any remaining increase are recognized prospectively through an adjustment ofthe loan's yield 
over its remaining life. 

ASC Topic 310-20, Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs, was applied to loans not considered to have deteriorated credh 
quality at acquisition. Under ASC Topic 310-20, the difference between the loan's principal balance at the tirae of purchase and the 
fair value is recognized as an adjustment of yield over the life ofthe loan. 

56 



Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allowance for loan losses (the "allowance") is established to estimate losses that may occur on loans by recording a 
provision for loan losses that is charged to eamings in the current period. Loans are charged-off when manageraent beheves a loan or 
any portion thereof is not collectable. Subsequent recoveries, ifany, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's periodic review ofthe 
collectability ofthe loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volurae ofthe loan portfolio, adverse situations that raay 
affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value ofany underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This 
evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes 
available. 

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are classified as 
impaired. For those loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows, collateral value, 
or observable market price, whichever is appropriate, ofthe impaired loan is lower than the canying value of that loan. For impaired 
loans that are collateral dependent, any measured impairment is charged-off against the loan and the allowance in the applicable 
reporting period. The general component covers loans that are not classified as irapaired and primarily include purchased loans not 
deemed impaired and new loan originations. The general reserve is based on historical loss experience and several qualitative factors. 
These qualitative factors address various risk characteristics in the Company's loan portfolio after an assessment of intemal or extemal 
influences on credit quality that are not fully reflected in the historical loss data. 

While management believes h has established the allowance in accordance with U.S. GAAP and has taken into account both 
the views ofthe Company's regulators and the current econoraic environment, there can be no assurance that the Company's 
regulators and/or the economic environment will not require future increases in the allowance. 

Real Estate Acquired Through Foreclosure 

The Company records foreclosed real estate assets at fair value less estimated costs to sell at the time of acquisition. 
Estimated fair value is based upon many subjective factors, including location and condhion ofthe property and cmrent economic 
conditions. Since the calculation of fair value relies on estimates and judgments relating to inherently uncertain events, actual results 
may differ materially from the Company's estimates. 

Write-downs at the time of acquisition are made through the allowance. Write-downs for subsequent declines in value and 
net operating expenses are included in foreclosed property expenses. Gains or losses realized upon disposition are included in 
noninterest income. 

Premises and Equipment 

Land is eartied at cost. Buildings, land improvements, leasehold improvements, fumiture and equipment, and software are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. The cost basis of premises and equipment acquired through the Merger 
is their respective acquisition date fair values. Depreciation is computed by the sfraight-line raethod over the estimated useful lives of 
the assets. Leasehold iraproveraents are amortized over the shorter ofthe lease term or over the estimated useful lives ofthe assets. 
Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to operations as incurred, while additions and improvements to buildings, leasehold 
improvements, and fumiture and equipment are capitalized. Gains or losses on disposition of assets are reflected in eamings. 

Long-lived assets are evaluated for impairraent by raanagement on an on-going basis. Impairment may occur whenever 
events or changes in circurastances indicate that the carrying araount of an asset may not be recoverable. 

Bank Owned Life Insurance 

The Company has purchased bank owned life insurance policies on certain employees as a means to generate tax-exempt 
income which is used to offset a portion of current and fiiture employee benefit costs. Bank owned life insurance is recorded at the 
cash surrender value ofthe policies. Changes in the cash surrender value are included in noninterest income. 

Core Deposit Intangible 

Core deposit intangibles (the portion of an acquisition purchase price which represents value assigned to the existing deposh 
base) have finite lives and are amortized by the declining balance method over periods ranging from four to nine years; amortization is 
recorded in noninterest expenses. 
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 

The Company records unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities and unrecognized actuarial gains and losses, 
transition obligations and prior service costs on its pension plan in accuraulated other coraprehensive income, net oftaxes. Unrealized 
gains and losses on available for sale securities are reclassified into eamings as the gains or losses are realized upon sale ofthe 
securities. The credh component of unrealized losses on available for sale securities that are determined to be other-than-temporary 
irapaired are reclassified into eamings at the tirae the determination is made. 

Derivatives 

As part of its raortgage banking activities, the Corapany raakes coraraitments to originate residential raortgage loans that 
meet the accounting definhion of derivatives. As of Deceraber 31, 2013, the difference between the raarket value and the carrying 
amount of these coraraitments were immaterial and therefore, no gain or loss has been recognized in the financial stateraents. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in noninterest expense. 

Income Taxes 

The Corapany uses the liability raethod of accounting for incorae taxes. Under the liability raethod, deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are deterrained based on differences between the financial stateraent carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets 
and liabilities (i.e., temporary differences) and are measured at the enacted rates in effect when these differences reverse. 

Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of raanageraent, h is more likely than not that 
some portion or all ofthe deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of 
changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on generating sufficient 
taxable income in the future. 

When tax retums are filed, manageraent is highly certain that sorae positions taken would be sustained upon exaraination by 
the taxing authorities, while there may be other positions that are subject to uncertainty about their merits or the araounts ofthe 
positions that ultiraately would be sustained if exarained. The benefit ofa tax position is recognized in the financial statements in the 
period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes h is more-likely-than-not that the position wiU be 
sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, ifany. The evaluation of a poshion taken is 
considered by hself and not offset or aggregated with other poshions. Tax positions that raeet the raore-likely-than-not recognition 
threshold are raeasured as the largest araount of tax benefit that is raore than 50% likely of being realized upon settleraent with the 
applicable taxing authority. The portion of benefits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the araount measured as described 
above is reflected as a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying balance sheet along with any associated interest and 
penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination. Management evaluated the Company's tax positions and 
concluded that the Company had taken no uncertain tax poshions that require adjustraent to the consolidated financial statements. 

It is the Corapany's policy to recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax liabilhies within income tax 
expense in the stateraent of operations. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

Stock-based corapensation expense is recognized over the eraployee or director's service period, which is generally defined 
as the vesting period, ofthe stock-based grant based on the estimated grant date fair value. A Black-Scholes option pricing model is 
used to estimate the fair value ofstock options granted. 

Earnings per share 

Basic eamings per share represents net income divided by the weighted-average number ofcommon shares outstanding 
during the period. Diluted eamings per share reflects additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential 
common shares had been issued. Potential comraon shares that may be issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock 
options and unvested restricted stock awards, and are determined using the treasuty stock method. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Developments 

In Febraary 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of Araounts Reclassified 
Out of Accuraulated Other Coraprehensive Income, to require preparers to report, in one place, inforraation about reclassifications out 
of accuraulated other coraprehensive incorae ("AOCI"). The ASU also requires companies to report changes in AOCI balances. For 
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significant items reclassified out of AOCI to net income in their entirety in the same reporting period, reporting is required about the 
effect ofthe reclassification on the respective line items in the statement where net incorae is presented. For items that are not 
reclassified to net income in their entirety in the same reporting period, a cross reference to other disclosures currently required under 
U.S. GAAP is required in the notes. The amended guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, 
beginning after December 15, 2012, and did not have a significant irapact on the Corapany's financial statement disclosures. 

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-04, Receivables-Troubled Debt Restracturing by Credhors (Subtopic 310-40), 
clarifying that an in substance repossession or foreclosure occurs, and a creditor is considered to have received physical possession of 
residential real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, upon either (1) the creditor obtaining legal title to the 
residential real estate property upon completion of a foreclosure or (2) the bortower conveying all interest in the residential real estate 
property to the creditor to satisfy that loan through completion ofa deed in lieu of foreclosure or through a similar legal agreement. 
Additionally, the guidance requires interira and annual disclosure of the araount of foreclosed residential real estate property held by 
the creditor and the recorded investraent in consumer raortgage loans collateralized by residential real estate property that are in the 
process of foreclosure according to local requirements ofthe applicable jurisdiction. The araended guidance is effective for fiscal 
years, and interim periods within those years, begiiming after December 15,2014. The araended guidance is not expected to have a 
significant irapact on the Company's financial statement disclosures. 

NOTE 2 - MERGER 

On April 19, 2013, Bay Bancorp, Inc. corapleted hs previously announced Merger with Jefferson. Pursuant to the terms and 
conditions ofthe Agreement and Plan ofMerger, dated as ofApril 8, 2012 (as amended, the "Merger Agreemenf), by and araong 
Jefferson, Bay Bancorp, Inc., and Financial Services Partners Fund I ("FSPF"), Jefferson raerged with and into Bay Bancorp, Inc., 
with Bay Bancorp, Inc. continuing as the surviving corporation. In addition, Bay Bancorp's bank subsidiary, Carrollton Bank, merged 
with and into the Bank, which was then a subsidiaty of Jefferson with the Bank continuing as the surviving bank (the "Bank Merger"). 
Prior to the Bank Merger, CarroUton Bank had five subsidiaries: Bay Financial Services, Inc. fik/a Camollton Financial Services, Inc. 
("BFS"); Can-ollton Community Development Corporation ("CCDC"); Mulbeny Stteet, LLC ("MSLLC"); 13 Beaver Run LLC 
("BRLLC"); and Mulberry Sfreet A LLC ("MSALLC" and, together with BFS, CCDC, MSLLC and BRLLC, the "Canollton 
Subsidiaries"). Carrollton Bank's interests in the Carrollton Subsidiaries were transferred to Bay Bank, FSB as a result ofthe Bank 
Merger. 

Prior to the completion ofthe Merger, on April 18, 2013, FSPF invested $ 11,000,000 into Jefferson in exchange for 
2,039,958 shares of comraon stock of Jefferson at a per share price of $5.39 (as restated for the Merger). 

Upon closing ofthe Merger, each outstanding share of Jefferson's coraraon stock was converted into the right to receive 
2.2217 shares of Bay Bancorp's Inc. common stock. As a resuh ofthe Merger, Bay Bancorp, Inc. issued approximately 7.9 million 
shares of its common stock to Jefferson's stockholders in the aggregate. Pursuant to the terms and conditions ofthe Merger 
Agreeraent, the holders of Bay Bancorp, Inc. coraraon stock immediately prior to the Merger elected to tender approximately 42% of 
the shares outstanding in conjunction with the Merger for cash at a value of $6.20 per share (the "Cash Election"). As a result ofthe 
Merger and after giving effect to the cash election, FSPF owned approximately 84% ofthe outstanding shares of Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s 
common stock, and the stockholders of Bay Bancorp, Inc. iraraediately prior to the Merger owned approximately 16% ofthe 
outstanding shares of Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s comraon stock. 

Since the nuraber of shares of Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s coraraon stock issued to Jefferson's stockholders in connection with the 
Merger exceeded 50% ofthe number of issued and outstanding shares of Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s common stock iramediately after the 
Merger, the Merger is treated as a reverse acquisition of assets and a recapitaUzation for accounting purposes. As a result, Jefferson is 
deeraed to have acquired Bay Bancorp, Inc. for accounting and financial reporting purposes and the historical financial stateraents of 
Jefferson have become the Company's historical financial statements pursuant to U.S. GAAP. Results of operations ofthe acquired 
business are included in the consolidated incorae stateraent since April 19, 2013, the effective date ofthe Merger. 

The Merger is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting, and accordingly, the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed were recognized at fair value on the date the transaction was completed. There was no goodwill recorded as a resuh ofthe 
Merger; however, a non-taxable bargain purchase gain of $2,860,199 was recognized and included as a separate line item within 
noninterest incorae on the consoUdated statements of income. The bargain purchase gain represented the excess ofthe fair value of 
net assets acquired over consideration paid. The consideration paid represented a substantial discount to the book value of pre-Merger 
Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s net assets at the acquisition date. The net impact ofthe fair value adjustments resulted in a $5,282,481 reduction 
in pre-Merger net assets of Bay Bancorp, Inc. The more significant fair value adjustments were the net discount on loans of 
$7,927,608 and the core deposh intangible of $4,611,362 which is being araortized over an estiraated useful life of approxiraately nine 
years. 

At December 31, 2013, the Corapany recorded measureraent period adjustments to the fair values of certain acquired assets 
and assumed liabilhies as previously reported at September 30, 2013. These retrospective adjustments resulted in a $2,157,102 
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reduction to the bargain purchase gain during the year ended December 31, 2013 from the amount previously reported for the nine 
months ended September 30, 2013. The retrospective adjustraents recorded during the fourth quarter of 2013 and their impact on the 
bargain purchase gain were as follows: deferred income tax assets - $1,874,781 reduction due primarily to excess ciurent and future 
year recognized buih-in losses under Section 382 ofthe Intemal Revenue Service code; facilities operating leases with above market 
rentals - $413,596 reduction; premises - $91,998 increase; loans - $62,321 reduction; and other liabilities - $101,598 increase. As of 
December 31, 2013, the Corapany does not anticipate any future adjustments to the valuation of acquired assets and assumed 
liabilities. 

The purchase price and the araounts of acquired identifiable assets and liabilhies assuraed as ofthe acquisition date were as 
follows: 

April 19,2013 
Purchase price: 

Shares of Company common stock outstanding as of stockholder vote 2,579,388 
Less: Shares tendered for cash 1,095,931 
Shares of Company common stock retained by current stockholders 1,483,457 

Sharesof Company common stock retained by current stockholders 1,483,457 
X Market price per share as ofApril 19,2013 $ 4.91 
Purchasepricebasedon value of shares retained $ 7,283,770 

Shares tendered for cash 1,095,931 
X Price per share as agreed to in the Definitive Agreement" $ 6.20 
Purchase price based on value of shares tendered for cash 6,794,777 

Total purchase price $ 14,078,547 

Identifiable assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 33,947,321 
Investment securities available for sale and restricted equity securities 23,191,025 
Loans held for sale 29,444,871 
Loans 224,946,116 
Core deposit intangible 4,611,362 
Premises and equipment 7,086,582 
Bank owned life insurance 5,263,255 
Real estate acquired through foreclosure 908,718 
Deferred tax asset 6,394,833 
Other assets 4,976,174 

Total identifiable assets $ 340,770,257 

Identifiable liabilities: 
Deposits 318,269,096 
Short-termborrowings 170,000 
Defined benefit pension plan 2,266,626 
Lease liability 683,009 
Other Uabiiities 2,442,780 

Total identifiable liabilities $ 323,831,511 

Bargain purchase gain resulting from the Merger $ 2,860,199 

In raany cases, determining the fair value ofthe acquired assets and assumed liabilities requires the Corapany to estimate 
cash flows expected to resuh from those assets and liabilities and to discount those cash flows at appropriate rates of interest. The 
most significant of these determinations related to the valuation of acquired loans. 
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The following is a sumraaty ofthe loans acquired in the Merger: 

Purchased 
Credit 

Impaired 
Loans 

Purchased 
Non-

Impaired 
Loans 

Total 
Purchased 

Loans 

Contractually required principal and interest at acquisition 

Contractual cash flows not expected to be coUected 

Expected cash flows at acquisition 

Interest component of expected cash flows 

Basis in purchased loans at acquisition - estimated fair value 

$ 44,734,226 

(7,912,505) 

36,821,721 

(2,788,895) 

$ 34,032,826 

$ 193,685,946 

193,685,946 

(2,772,656) 

$ 190,913,290 

$ 238,420,172 

(7,912,505) 

230,507,667 

(5,561,551) 

$ 224,946,116 

The fair value of checking, savings and raoney raarket deposh accounts acquired was assuraed to be the carrying value as 
these accounts have no stated maturity and are payable on demand. Certificate of deposit accounts were valued as the present value of 
the certificates' expected contractual payraents discounted at market rates for similar certificates. 

In connection with the Merger, the Company incurted Merger-related expenses. These expenses were primarily related to 
professional services, system conversions and integration of operations, termination of existing contractual affangeraents to purchase 
various services, initial marketing and promotion expenses designed to inttoduce the Bank to the forraer Carrollton Bank customers, 
and other costs of completing the ttansaction. 

A summary of Merger-related expenses included in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

2013 2012 
; 132,583 $ 

448,467 
1,183,579 

159,374 
63,554 
54,199 

; 2,041,756 $ 

-

840,059 
33,692 
10,285 
15,938 
16,200 

916,174 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Professional Fees 
Data processing 
Advertising and marketing expenses 
Net occupancy and equipment costs 
All other 

Total Merger related expenses 

Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Inforraation 

The following pro forraa financial information combines the historical results of Jefferson and pre-Merger Bay Bancorp, Inc. 
The pro forma financial information does not include the potential impacts of possible business model changes, current raarket 
conditions, revenue enhancements, expense efficiencies, or other factors. The pro forma results exclude the impact ofthe bargain 
purchase gain of $2,860,199 and Merger-related expenses of $2,041,756. While adjustments were raade for the estiraated irapact of 
certain fair value adjustments, the following results are not indicative of what would have occuned had the acquishion taken place on 
the indicated dates. 

Ifthe Merger had been completed on Januaty 1, 2013, total revenue, net of interest expense, would have been approximately 
$32 million for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013. Net income would have been approximately $2.1 million for the same period. 
Basic and diluted eamings per share would have been $0.37 for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

Ifthe Merger had been completed on Januaty 1, 2012, total revenue, net of interest expense, would have been approxiraately 
$36.7 raillion for the year ended December 31, 2012. Net income would have been approxiraately $3.5 million for the same period. 
Basic and diluted eamings per share would have been $0.22 for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2012. 

The disclosure of pre-Merger Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s post-acquisition total revenue, net of interest expense, and net income is 
not practicable due to the integration of operations shortly after the Merger. 

61 



NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

At Deceraber 31,2013 and December 31, 2012, the araortized cost and estiraated fah value ofthe Corapany's investment 
securities available for sale portfolio are suraraarized as follows: 

December 31. 2013 

U.S. govemment agency 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 

State and municipal 

Total debt securities 

Equity securities 

Totals 

$ 

$ 

Amortized 

cost 

7,592,138 

23,965,230 

5,265,944 

36,823,312 

78,752 

36,902,064 

$ 

$ • 

Gross Unrealized 

Gains 

3,694 

273,885 

-
277,579 

-
277,579 

$ 

$ 

Losses 

(69,917) 

(438,112) 

(76,058) 

(584,087) 

(8,887) 

(592,974) 

$ 

$ 

Estimated 

Fair Value 

7,525,915 

23,801,003 

5,189,886 

36,516,804 

69,865 

36,586,669 

December 31. 2012 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 

Totals 
$ 

$ 

Amortized 

cost 

9,287,078 

9,287,078 

$ 

S 

Gross Unrealized 

Gains 

429,548 

429,548 

Losses 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Estimated 

Fair Value 

9,716,626 

9,716,626 

As of Deceraber 31, 2013 securities with unrealized losses segregated by length of impairment were as follows: 

December 31, 2013 

U.S. govemment agency 
Residential mortgage-backed 
securities 

State and municipals 

Total debt securities 

Equity securities 

Totals 

$ 

L 

Less than 12 months 
Fair 

Value 

7,215,837 

15,637,539 

5,189,886 

28,043,262 

69,865 

28,113,127 

$ 

$ 

Unrealized 

Losses 

69,917 

438,112 

76,058 

584,087 

8,887 

592,974 

$ 

$ 

12 months 

Fair 

Value 

-

-
-

-
-

-

or longer 

Unrealized 

Losses 

s 
-
-

-
-

S 

$ 

$ 

Fair 

Value 

7,215,837 

15,637,539 

5,189,886 

28,043,262 

69,865 

28,113,127 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Unrealized 

Losses 

69,917 

438,112 

76,058 

584,087 

8,887 

592,974 

At December 31, 2013, unrealized losses in the Company's portfolio of debt securities of $584,087 in aggregate were related 
to 24 securities and caused by increases in raarket interest rates, spread volatility, or other factors that raanageraent deeras to be 
temporary. Since raanageraent believes that h is raore likely than not that the Corapany will not be required to sell these seciu-ities 
prior to raaturity or a full recovery ofthe araortized cost, the Corapany does not consider these seciu-ities to be other-than-teraporarily 
irapaired. 

At December 31, 2013, unrealized losses in the Corapany's portfolio of equity securities of $8,887 were related to one 
security and considered temporary. Since management believes that h is raore likely than not the Company will not be required to sell 
these equity positions for a reasonable period of tirae sufficient for recovery of fair value, the Corapany does not consider these equity 
securities to be other-than-temporarily irapaired. 

As of December 31, 2012, the investraent securities portfolio had no unrealized loss positions. 

The outstanding balance of no single issuer, except for U.S. Agency securities, exceeded ten percent of stockholders' equity 
at December 31, 2013 or 2012. 

No investment securities held by the Corapany as of Deceraber 31, 2013 and Deceraber 31, 2012 were subj ect to a wrhe-
down due to credit related other-than-teraporary irapairment. 

Contractual maturhies of debt securhies at December 31,2013 and 2012 are shovra below. Actual maturities raay differ from 
conttactual maturities because borrowers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayraent penahies. 
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2013 2012 

Within one year 

Over one to five years 

Over five to ten years 

Over ten years 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 

Totals 

Araortized 

Cost 

$ 
3,139,647 

9,186,255 

532,180 

23,965,230 

$ 

Fair 
Value 

-
3,120,919 

9,070,492 

524,390 

23,801,003 

Amortized 

Cost 

$ 
-
-
-

9,287,078 

$ 

Fair 

Value 

-
-
-
-

9,716,626 

36,823,312 $ 36,516,804 S 9,287,078 S 9,716,626 

since 
The Company's residential raortgage-backed securities portfolio is presented as a separate line within the maturity table, 

bortowers have the right to prepay obligations without prepayraent penalties. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Corapany sold hs entire portfolio of collateralized debt obligations. These 
securities, which were acquired as a resuh ofthe Merger, were backed by tmst preferred securities issued by banks, thrifts, and 
insurance corapanies. Sale proceeds of $2,622,388 represented the fair value of these securities at the date ofthe Merger; therefore, 
there is neither a gain nor a loss frora the sale included in the resuhs of operations for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013. 

There were no sales of investraent securities available for sale during the year ended December 31, 2012. 

At December 31, 2013, securities with an amortized cost of $19,721,274 (fah value of $19,535,096) were pledged as 
collateral for potential borrowings from the Federal Horae Loan Bank of Atlanta and the Federal Reserve Bank. At Deceraber 31, 
2012, the Bank had no pledged investment securities. 

NOTE 4 - LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 

The fimdamental lending business ofthe Company is based on understanding, measuring, and controlling the credh risk 
inherent in the loan portfolio. The Corapany's loan portfolio is subject to varying degrees of credh risk. These risks entail both 
general risks, which are inherent in the lending process, and risks specific to individual bortowers. The Company's credh risk is 
mhigated through portfolio diversification, which limhs exposure to any single customer, industry or collateral type. The loan 
portfolio segraent balances are presented in the following table-

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate 

Residential Real Estate 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Constraction 

Consumer & Other 

Total Loans 

Less: Allowance for Loan Losses 

Net Loans 

December 31, 

2013 

; 34,278,539 

157,450,876 

73,323,554 

33,257,822 

1,716,747 

19,343,013 

1,309,781 

$ 
2012 

20,601,207 

39,906,055 

22,229,445 

10,284,221 

3,098,973 

4,704,581 

911,690 

320,680,332 

(851,000) 

101,736,172 

(655,942) 

319,829,332 101,080,230 

At Deceraber 31, 2013 and Deceraber 31, 2012, loans not considered to have deteriorated credit quality at acquisition had a 
total remaining unamortized discount of $3,386,065 and $2,144,901, respectively. 

Portfolio Segments: 

The Company currently manages hs credh products and the respective exposure to loan losses by the following specific 
portfolio segments, which are levels at which the Company develops and documents its systematic methodology to deterraine the 
allowance for loan losses. The Corapany considers each loan type to be a portfolio segraent having unique risk characteristics. 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial & Industrial ("C&I") loans are made to provide ftinds for equipment and general corporate needs. Repayment of 
these loans primarily uses the funds obtained frora the operation ofthe bortower's business. C&I loans also include lines of credh that 
are utilized to finance a borrower's short-term credit needs and/or to finance a percentage of eligible receivables or inventory. Of 
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primary concem in C&I lending is the borrower's creditworthiness and ability to successfully generate sufficient cash flowfrom their 
business to service the debt. 

Commercial Real Estate 

Commercial Real Estate loans are bifurcated into Investor and Owner Occupied types (classes). Coramercial Real Estate -
Investor loans consist of loans secured by non-owner occupied properties and involve investment properties for warehouse, retail, 
apartraent, and office space with a history of occupancy and cash flow. This commercial real estate class includes mortgage loans to 
the developers and owners of commercial real estate where the borrower intends to operate or sell the property at a profit and use the 
income stream or proceeds frora the sale(s) to repay the loan. Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied loans consist of comraercial 
raortgage loans secured by owner occupied properties and involves a variety of property types to conduct the borrower's operations. 
The priraary source of repayraent for this type of loan is the cash flow from the business and is based upon the borrower's financial 
health and the ability ofthe borrower and the business to repay. At Deceraber 31, 2013 and Deceraber 31, 2012, Commercial Real 
Estate - Investor loans had a total balance of $110,352,299 and $25,125,750, respectively. At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 
2012, Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied loans had a total balance of $47,098,577 and $14,780,305, respectively. 

Residential Real Estate 

Residential Real Estate loans are bifiircated into Investor and Owner Occupied types (classes). Residential Real Estate -
Investor loans consist of loans secured by non-owner occupied residential properties and usually carry higher credit risk than 
Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied loans due to theh reliance on stable rental income and due to lower incentive for the 
borrower to avoid foreclosure. Payraents on loans secured by rental properties often depend on the successful operation and 
management ofthe properties and the payment of rent by tenants. At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, Residential Real 
Estate - Investor loans had a total balance of $26,670,715 and $15,124,645, respectively. At Deceraber 31, 2013 and Deceraber 31, 
2012, Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied loans had a total balance of $46,652,839 and $7,104,800, respectively. 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Horae Equity Lines of Credit ("HELOCs") are a forra of revolving credit in which a bortower's priraary residence serves as 
collateral. Bonowers use HELOCs primarily for education, home improvements, and other significant personal expenditures. The 
borrower will be approved for a specific credit limit set at a percentage oftheir home's appraised value less the balance owed on the 
existing first mortgage. Major risks in HELOC lending include the bortower's ability to service the existing first mortgage plus 
proposed HELOC, the Company's ability to pursue collection in a second lien position upon default, and overaU risks in fluctuation in 
the value ofthe underlying collateral property 

Land 

Land loans are secured by underlying properties that usually consist of ttacts of undeveloped land that do not produce 
income. These loans carry the risk that there will be inadequate deraand to ensure the sale ofthe property within an acceptable tirae. 
As a result, land loans carry the risk that the builder will have to pay the property taxes and other carrying costs ofthe property until 
an end buyer is found. 

Construction 

Constraction loans, which includes land developraent loans, are generally considered to involve a higher degree of credit risk 
than long-terra financing on iraproved, occupied real estate. Risk ofioss on a constraction loan depends largely upon the accuracy of 
the initial estimate ofthe property's value at corapletion of constmction and estiraated costs of constraction, as well as the property's 
ability to attract and retain tenants. Loan fiinds are disbursed periodically as pre-specified stages of completion are attained based 
upon site inspections. Ifthe Company is forced to foreclose on a building before or at completion due to a default, it may be unable to 
recover all ofthe unpaid balance of and accraed interest on the loan as well as related foreclosure and holding costs. 

Consumer & Other 

Consumer & Other loans include installment loans, personal lines of credit, and automobile loans. Payment on these loans 
often depends on the borrower's creditworthiness and ability to generate sufficient cash flow to service the debt. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

To control and raonitor credit risk, raanagement has an intemal credit process in place to determine whether credit standards 
are maintained along with in-house loan adrainistration accorapanied by oversight and review procedures. The primaty purpose of 
loan underwriting is the evaluation of specific lending risks that involves the analysis ofthe bonower's ability to service the debt as 
well as the assessraent ofthe underlying collateral. Oversight and review procedures include the raonitoring ofthe portfolio credit 
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quality, early identification of potential problera credhs and the raanageraent ofthe problera credits. As part ofthe oversight and 
review process, the Company raaintains an allowance for loan losses to absorb estiraated and probable losses inherent in the loan 
portfolio. 

For purposes of calculating the allowance, the Company segregates its loan portfolio into portfolio segments based primarily 
on the type of supporting collateral. The Commercial Real Estate and Residential Real Estate segments, which both exclude any 
coUateral property currently under constraction, are ftirther disaggregated into Owner Occupied and Investor classes for each. Further, 
all segments are also segregated as either purchased credit irapaired loans, purchased loans not deemed impaired, ttoubled debt 
restmcturings, or new originations. 

The analysis for detennining the allowance is consistent with guidance set forth in U.S. GAAP and the Interagency Pohcy 
Statement on the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses. Pursuant to Bank policy, the allowance is evaluated quarterly by 
management and is based upon management's review ofthe collectability of loans in light of historical experience, the nature and 
volume ofthe loan portfolio, adverse situations that raay affect the borrowers' ability to repay, estimated value ofany underlying 
collateral and prevailing economic conditions. The allowance consists of specific and general reserves. The specific reserves relate to 
loans classified as impaired primarily including nonaccraal loans, troubled debt restracturings, and purchased credit impaired loans 
where cash flows have deteriorated frora those forecasted as ofthe acquisition date. The reserve for these loans is established when 
the discounted cash flows, collateral value, or observable raarket price, whichever is appropriate, ofthe irapaired loan is lower than the 
carrying value. For impaired loans, any measured impairment is charged-off against the loan and allowance for those loans that are 
collateral dependent in the applicable reporting period. 

The general reserve covers loans that are not classified as impaired and priraarily includes purchased loans not deemed 
impaired and new loan originations. The general reserve requirement is based on historical loss experience and several qualitative 
factors derived from economic and market conditions that have been deterrained to have an effect on the probability and magnitude of 
a loss. Since the Bank does not have its own sufficient loss experience, management also references the historical net charge-off 
experience of peer groups to determine a reasonable range of reserve values, which is pennissible per Bank policy. The peer groups 
consist of competing Maryland-based financial institutions with established ranges in total asset size. Management will continue to 
evaluate the appropriateness ofthe peer group data used with each quarterly allowance analysis untU such time that the Bank has 
sufficient loss experience to provide a foundation for the general reserve requireraent. The qualitative analysis incorporates global 
environraental factors in the following ttends: national and local economic metrics; portfolio risk ratings and coraposition; and 
concenttations in credit. 
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The following table provides information on the activity in the allowance for loan losses by the respective loan portfolio 
segment for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013: 

Allowance for loan losses: 

Begiiming balance 

Charge-offs 

Recoveries"' 

Provision 

Ending balance 

$ 

*= 

Commercial 

& Industrial 

121,759 

(82,860) 

-
128,501 

167,400 

$ 

$_ 

Commercial 

Real Estate 

131,350 

(187,419) 

-
380,149 

324,080 

$ 

s_ 

Residential 

Real Estate 

199,306 

(441,421) 

39,135 

283,219 

80,239 

Home Equity 

Line of Credit 

$ 81,955 

(10,919) 

13,578 

44,589 

$ 129,203 

$ 

$_ 

Land 

6,400 

-
23,026 

(22,508) 

6,918 

( 

$ 

K 

Construction 

109,335 

-
-

26,081 

135,416 

$ 

K 

Consumer 

& Other 

5,837 

(1,000) 

731 

2,176 

7,744 

$ 

$_ 

Total 

655,942 

(723,619) 

76,470 

842,207 

851,000 

The following table presents loans and the related allowance for loan losses, by loan portfolio segment, as of Deceraber 31, 
2013: 

Commercial Commercial Residential Home Equity Consumer 

& Industrial Real Estate Real Estate Line of Credit Land Construction & Otiier Total 

Allowance for loan losses: 
Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impairment $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment 167,400 324,080 80,239 129,203 6,918 135,416 7,744 85I,00(L 

Totals $ 167,400 $ 324,080 $ 80,239 $ 129,203 $ 6,918 $ 135,416 $ 7,744 $ 851,000 

Loans: 
Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impairment® $ 730,881 S 1,354,962 $ 3,544,741 $ 325,866 $ - $ 104,926 $ - $ 6,061,376 

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment 31,315,355 132,236,685 66,467,228 32,418,288 355,190 17,894,718 1,309,781 281,997,245 

Ending balance: loans acquired 
with deteriorated credit quality"' 2,232,303 23,859,229 3,311,585 513,668 1,361,557 1,343,369 ; 32,621,71J_ 

Totals $ 34,278,539 $157,450,876 $ 73,323,554 $ 33,257,822 $ 1,716,747 $ 19,343,013 $ 1,309,781 $320,680,332 

(1) Excludes cash payments received on loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality with a carrying value of $0. 
(2) Includes loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality of $501,143 that have current period charge-offs. 
(3) Consists of loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality that do not have current period charge-offs or specific reserves. 
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The following table provides information on the activity in the allowance for loan losses by the respective loan portfolio 
segment forthe year ended December 31, 2012: 

iwance for loan losses: 

;inning balance 

Charge-offs 

Recoveries''' 

Provision 

ling balance 

Commercial 

& industrial 

S 151,395 

(101,128) 

30,000 

41,492 

$ 121,759 

Commercial 

Real Estate 

$ 88,361 

(1,796) 

1,796 

42,989 

$ 131,350 

$ 

$_ 

Residential 

Real Estate 

49,490 

(183,765) 

7,000 

326,581 

199,306 

Home Equity 

Line of Credit 

$ 446,911 

(647,063) 

28,605 

253,502 

$ 81,955 

$ 

S_ 

Land 

8,256 

(36,177) 

-
34,321 

6,400 

Construction 

$ 75,473 

-
-

33,862 

S 109,335 

$ 

$_ 

Consumer 

& other 

4,767 

-
-

1,070 

5,837 

$ 

*= 

Total 

824,653 

(969,929) 

67,401 

733,817 

655,942 

The following table presents loans and the related aUowance for loan losses, by loan portfolio segment, as of December 31, 
2012: 

Allowance for loan losses: 
Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impairment'^' 

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment 

Totals 

Commercial 

& Industrial 

S 

121,759 

$ 121,759 

$ 

$ 

Commercial 

Real Estate 

- $ 

131,350 

131,350 $ 

Residential 

Real Estate 

213,882 

(14,576) 

199,306 

Home Equity 

Line of Credit 

$ 2,060 

79,895 

$ 81,955 

$ 

$_ 

Land Construction 

- S 

6,400 

6,400 $ 

- $ 

109,335 

109,335 $ 

Consumer 

& Other 

- $ 

5,837 

5,837 $ 

Total 

215,942 

440,000 

655,942 

Loans: 
Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impairment"' $ 1,068,137 $ - $ 2,573,139 $ 557,570 $ 84,523 $ - $ - $ 4,283,369 

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impairment 18,519,535 36,622,790 17,315,860 9,726,651 2,242,320 4,704,581 911,690 90,043,427 

Ending balance: loans acquired 
with deteriorated credit quality'"' 1,013,535 3,283,265 2,340,446 : 772,130 : : 7,409,376 

Totals • $ 20,601,207 . • $ 39,906,055 $ 22,229,445 $ 10,284,221 $3,098,973 $ 4,704,581 $ 911,690 $101,736,172 

(1) Excludes cash payments received on loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality with a carrying value of $0. 
(2) Includes specific reserves of $213,882 for a troubled debt restructuring. 
(3) Includes loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality of $ 1, 186,307 that have current period charge-offs or specific reserves. 
(4) Consists of loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality that do not have current period charge-offs or specific reserves. 
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The following table presents information with respect to impaired loans, which includes loans acquired with deteriorated 
credh quality that have current period charge-offs, as December 31,2013: 

With no related allowance recorded: 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 

Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Residential Real Estate - Investor 

Residential Real Esiate - Owner Occupied 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Construction 

Consumer & Other 

Recorded 
Investment 

As of December 31,2013 
Unpaid 

Principal 
Balance 

730,881 $ 

659,002 

695,960 

680,662 

2,864,079 

325,866 

104,926 

_ 

; 875,797 

1,147,133 

689,644 

770,812 

3,698,438 

370,361 

845,451 

20,491 

Related 
Allowance 

For the Year Ended 
December 31.2013 

Average 
Recorded 

Investment 

Interest 

Income 
Recognized'" 

766,112 $ 

466,578 

707,029 

681,586 

3,010,094 

334,432 

94,724 

-

100,065 

34,185 

12,985 

178,299 

2,440 

115,608 

1,057 

With an allowance recorded: 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 

Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Residential Real Estate - Investor 

Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Coiistraction 

Consumer & Other 

Total: 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate 

Residential Real Estate 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Construction 

Consmner & Other 

6,061,376 

> 730,881 S 

1,354,962 

3,544,741 

325,866 

104,926 

-
i 6,061,376 i 

8,418,127 

; 875,797 

1,836,777 

4,469,250 

370,361 

845,451 

20,491 

; 8,418,127 

6,060,555 

5 766,112 $ 

1,173,607 

3,691,680 

334,432 

94,724 

-
6 6,060,555 $ 

444,639 

100,065 

34,185 

191,284 

2,440 

115,608 

1,057 

444,639 

(1) Consists primarily of accretion income on loans acquired trom BNB with deteriorated credit quality that were reclassified as troubled debt restracturings 
subsequent to acquisition. 
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The following table presents information with respect to impaired loans, which includes loans acqufred with deteriorated 
credh quality that have curtent period charge-offs, as of December 31, 2012: 

With no related allowance recorded: 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 

Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Residential Real Estate - Investor 

Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Construction 

Consumer & Other 

Recorded 
Investment 

As of December 31,2012 

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance 

Related 
Allowance 

For the Year Ended 
December 31, 2012 

Average Interest 
Recorded Income 

Investment Recognized"' 

1,068,137 1,257,975 $ 

1,155,813 

735,503 

390,937 

84,523 

1,284,054 

1,373,018 

524,474 

922,056 

22,079 

1,149,017 $ 67,109 

,151,293 

735,542 

478,154 

153,832 

179,579 

99,441 

16,717 

192,709 

1,061 

With an allowance recorded: 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 

Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Residential Real Estate - Investor 

Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Construction 

Consumer & Other 

Total: 

681,823 

166,633 

4,283,369 

786,580 

195,101 

6,365,337 

213,882 

2,060 

215,942 

696,565 

171,818 

4,536,221 

36,279 

592,895 

Commercial & industrial 

Commercial Real Estate 

Residential Real Estate 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Construction 

Consmner & Other 

1,068,137 $ 1,257,975 $ 1,149,017 67,109 

2,573,139 

557,570 

84,523 

! 4,283,369 J 

3,443,652 

719,575 

922,056 

22,079 

; 6,365,337 $ 

213,882 

2,060 

-

215,942 

2,583,400 

649,972 

153,832 

. 

$ 4,536,221 $ 

315,299 

16,717 

192,709 

1,061 

592,895 

(1) Consists primarily of accretion income on loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality that were reclassified as troubled debt restracturings 
subsequent to acquisition. 

In addition to monitoring the performance status ofthe loan portfolio, the Company utilizes a risk rating scale (1-8) to 
evaluate loan asset quality for all loans. Loans that are rated 1-4 are classified as pass credits. Loans rated a 5 (Watch) are pass 
credits, but are loans that have been identified that warrant additional attention and monitoring. Loans that are risk rated 5 or higher 
are placed on the Company's monthly watch list. For the pass rated loans, manageraent believes there is a low risk ofioss related to 
these loans and as necessary, credit may be strengthened through improved bortower performance and/or additional collateral. Loans 
rated a 6 (Special Mention) or higher are considered criticized loans and represent an increased level of credit risk and are placed into 
these three categories: 

6 (Special Mention) - Borrowers exhibh potential credit weaknesses or downward ttends that may weaken the credit position 
if uncorrected. The borrowers are considered marginally acceptable without potential for loss of principal or interest. 

7 (Substandard) - Borrowers have well defined weaknesses or characteristics that present the possibility that the Company 
will sustain sorae loss ifthe deficiencies are not corrected. 

8 (Doubtful) - Borrowers classified as doubtful have the sarae weaknesses found in substandard borrowers; however, these 
weaknesses indicate that the collection of debt in fuU (principal and interest), based on current conditions, is highly questionable and 
improbable. 

In the normal coiu-se of loan portfolio raanagement, relationship managers are responsible for continuous assessment of credit 
risk arising from the individual borrowers within their portfolio and assigning appropriate risk ratings. Credit Administration is 
responsible for ensuring the integrity and operation ofthe risk rating system and maintenance ofthe watch list. The Officer's Loan 
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Coraraittee meets monthly to discuss and monitor problem credits and intemal risk rating downgrades that result in updates to the 
watch list. 

The following table provides information with respect to the Company's credit quality indicators by class ofthe loan portfolio 
as of December 31, 2013: 

Pass 

$ 33,136,370 

99,120,824 

37,768,562 

25,795,419 

42,223,599 

32,418,803 

1,716,747 

18,847,368 • 

1,309,781 

$ 292,337,473 

$ 

$ 

Special 
Mention 

713,909 

4,265,276 

3,883,453 

242,381 

77,473 

391,993 

88,044 

-
9,662,529 

$ 

$ 

Risk Rating 

Substandard 

428,260 

6,966,199 

5,446,562 

632,915 

4,351,767 

447,026 

-
407,601 

-
18,680,330 

Doubtful 

$ 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

S 

s 

$ 

Total 

34,278,539 

110,352,299 

47,098,577 

26,670,715 

46,652,839 

33,257,822 

1,716,747 

19,343,013 

1,309,781 

320,680,332 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 

Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Residential Real Estate - Investor 

Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Constraction 

Consumer & Other 

Total 

The following table provides information with respect to the Company's credit quality indicators by class ofthe loan portfolio 
as of Deceraber 31, 2012: 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 

Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Residential Real Estate - Investor 

Residential Real Estate - Ovmer Occupied 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Constraction 

Consumer & Other 

Total 

Pass 

$ 19,730,587 

24,194,162 

12,836,793 

13,697,795 

4,303,223 

9,706,937 

2,728,263 

4,704,581 

911,690 

$ 92,814,031 

$ 

$ 

Special 
Mention 

413,042 

517,545 

905,329 

-
140,847 

-
-

-
1,976,763 

$ 

S 

Risk Rating 

Substandard 

457,578 

414,043 

1,038,183 

1,426,850 

2,660,730 

577,284 

370,710 

-
-

6,945,378 

$ 

$ 

Doubtful 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-

$ 

$ 

Total 

20,601,207 

25,125,750 

14,780,305 

15,124,645 

7,104,800 

10,284,221 

3,098,973 

4,704,581 

911,690 

101,736,172 
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Manageraent further monhors the performance and credh quality ofthe loan portfoho by analyzing the age ofthe portfolio as 
determined by the length of time a recorded payment is past due. 

The following table presents the classes ofthe loan portfoho summarized by the aging categories of performing loans and 
nonaccraal loans as of Deceraber 31, 2013. Purchased credh irapaired loans are excluded frora this aging and nonaccraal loans 
schedule. 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 
Commercial Real Estate - Owner 
Occupied 

Residential Real Estate - Investor 
Residential Real Estate - Owner 
Occupied 
Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Constraction 

Consumer & Other 

Total 

Purchased credit impaired loans 

Total Loans 

30-59 
Days 

Past Due 

$ 60,653 

I75,34f 

1,049,769 

319,767 

-
104,926 

508 

$ 1,710,964 

60-89 
Days 

Past Due 

$ 
~ 

226,996 

117,372 

-
-
-
-

$ 344,368 

Accrual Loans 
90 or More 

Days 
Past Due 

$ 
-

" 

-
-
-
_ 

$ 

Total 
Past Due 

$ 60,653 

175,341 

226,996 

1,167,141 

319,767 

-
104,926 

508 

$ 2,055,332 

Current 

$ 31,842,702 

93,983,453 

38,135,290 

24,892,038 

41,151,500 

32,128,982 

355,191 

17,894,719 

1,309,271 

$ 281,693,146 

Nonaccrual 
Loans 

$ 142,881 

100,459 

695,960 

472,100 

2,102,194 

295,406 

-
-
-

$ 3,809,000 

Total 
Loans 

$ 32,046,236 

94,083,912 

39,006,591 

25,591,134 

44,420,835 

32,744,155 

355,191 

17,999,645 

1,309,779 

$ 287,557,478 

33,122,854 

$ 320,680,332 

The following table presents the classes ofthe loan portfolio suramarized by the aging categories of performing loans and 
nonaccraal loans as of December 31, 2012. Piu-chased credit impaired loans are excluded from this aging and nonaccraal loans 
schedule. 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 
ConMnercial Real Estate - Owner 
Occupied 
Residential Real Estate - Investor 
Residential Real Estate - Ovmer 
Occupied 
Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Constraction 

Consumer & Other 

Total 

Purchased credit impaired loans 

Total Loans 

™ 

$ 

s_ 

30-59 
Days 

Past Due 

-
-

: 

-
-
-
-
-

60-89 
Days 

Past Due 

$ 
~ 

" 

23,304 

-
-
_ 

$ 23,304 

Accrual Loans 
90 or More 

Days 
Past Due 

$ 
-

460,354 

-
-
-
-

$ 460,354 

$ 

$_ 

Total 
Past Due 

-
-

460,354 

23,304 

-
-
-

483,658 

$ 

$_ 

Current 

19,220,670 

24,754,227 

11,868,563 

12,947,404 

4,881,732 

9,741,869 

2,326,843 

4,704,581 

911,690 

91,357,579 

1 

$ 

$= 

Nonaccrual 
Loans 

367,002 

: 

190,975 

222,227 

519,048 

-
-
-

1,299,252 

$ 

$̂  

K 

Total 
Loans 

19,587,672 

24,754,227 

11,868,563 

13,598,733 

5,103,959 

10,284,221 

2,326,843 

4,704,581 

911,690 

93,140,489 

8,595,683 

101,736,172 

Troubled Debt Restructurings 

The restracturing ofa loan constitutes a troubled debt restracturing, or TDR, ifthe creditor, for economic or legal reasons 
related to the debtor's financial difficulties, grants a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider in the normal course 
ofbusiness. A concession may include an extension of repayment terms which would not normally be granted, a reduction of interest 
rate or the forgiveness of principal and/or accraed interest. Ifthe debtor is experiencing financial difficulty and the creditor has 
granted a concession, the Corapany will make the necessary disclosures related to the TDR. In certain cases, a modification may be 
made in an effort to retain a customer who is not experiencing financial difficulty. This type of modification is not considered to be a 
TDR. Once a loan has been raodified and is considered a TDR, it is reported as an impaired loan. All TDRs are evaluated 
individually for impairraent on a quarterly basis as part ofthe allowance for credit losses calculation. A specific allowance for TDR 
loans is established when the discounted cash flows, collateral value or observable raarket price, whichever is appropriate, ofthe TDR 
is lower than the carrying value. If a loan deemed a TDR has performed for at least six months at the level prescribed by the 
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modification, it is not considered to be non-performing; however, it will generally continue to be reported as impaired, but may be 
retumed to accraal status. A TDR is deemed in defauh on its modified terms once a confractual payment is 30 or more days past due. 

2012: 
The following table presents a breakdown of loans the Company modified during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 

Year Ended December 31,2013 Year Ended December 31,2012 

Troubled Debt Restracturings: 

Commercial & Industrial 

Commercial Real Estate - Investor 

Commercial Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Residential Real Estate - Investor 

Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied 

Home Equity Line of Credit 

Land 

Constraction 

Consumer & Other 

Totals 

Number of 
Contracts 

Pre-
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

Post-
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

Number of 
Contracts 

Pre-
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

Post-
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

160,885 160,885 

913,333 $ 913,333 10 

850,136 861,317 

683,763 

68,685 

-

683,763 

68,685 

-

1 

4 

1 

76,675 

467,297 

288,882 • 

76,675 

467,297 

288,882 

$ 1,682,990 $ 1,694,171 

The restracturing ofthe C&I loans as of December 31, 2012 included an extension ofthe loan maturity date at an interest rate 
lower than the current rate for new debt with similar risk. This C&I TDR subsequently paid off in November 2013, resulting in 
accretion interest recognized upon resolution of $29,559. The restracturing ofthe Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied loan 
included an extension of loan maturity date and reduced payments per executed forbearance agreement, which was expected to result 
in concessions to the borrower. This Residential Real Estate - Owner Occupied TDR was on nonaccraal status at December 31, 2013. 
The restracturing ofthe HELOC included a deferral of payments beyond the original contractual loan term and change to interest only 
payments to allow more manageable debt service by the borrower. This HELOC TDR was an accraing loan at Deceraber 31, 2013. 

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the restracturings of the C&I loans included two consolidations of multiple related 
notes into new loans, with one such TDR having a split note stracture. Both of these restracturings, which account for $691,879 ofthe 
post-modification C&I recorded investment, were at interest rates lower than the current rates for new debt with similar risks in an 
effort to accommodate the borrower's cash flow difficulties, and are accming TDRs at December 31, 2013. The restracttu-ings ofthe 
HELOCs resulted in interest rate concessions and changes in payment terms frora interest only to monthly principal and interest 
payments, to allow more manageable debt service by the borrower. All HELOC TDRs were subsequently reclassified to Residential 
Real Estate - Ovraer Occupied in 2013 and all but one were on nonaccmal status at December 31, 2013. The Land loan restracturing 
involved an extension ofthe loan maturity date at an interest rate lower than the current rate for new debt with similar risk. This loan 
was combined as part ofthe C&I split note TDR described previously. The Residential Real Estate - Ovraer Occupied restracturing 
involved the extension ofthe loan maturity date at an interest rate lower than the curtent rate for new debt with similar risk, and was 
an accraing TDR at December 31, 2013. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, three TDRs with the sarae borrower having a total combined carrying value of 
$436,521 were paid from proceeds from the sale of collateral properties resulting in accretion interest recognized upon resolution of 
$205,204. 

Two loans modified as TDRs during the previous twelve months having a corabined carrying value of $752,448 were in 
defauh of thefr raodified tenns at December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Bank had $2,582,468 and $2,477,140 in 
loans identified as TDRs, respectively, of which $948,488 and $682,919 were on nonaccraal status, respectively. 
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NOTE 5 - ACCOUNTING FOR CERTAIN LOANS ACQUIRED IN A TRANSFER : 

Loans purchased with evidence of credit deterioration since origination and for which it is probable that all conttactually 
required payments wiU not be collected are considered to be credh impaired. Evidence of credh quality deterioration as ofthe 
purchase date may include information such as past due and nonaccraal status, borrower credh scores and recent loan to value 
percentages. Purchased credit-impaired loans are initially measured at fair value, which considers estimated future loan losses 
expected to be incurted over the life ofthe loan. Accordingly, an allowance for loan losses related to these loans was not carried over 
and recorded at the acquisition date. The Company monitors actual loan cash flows to determine any improvement or deterioration 
from those forecasted as ofthe acquisition date. 

The following table reflects the carrying amount of purchased credh impaired loans, which are included in the loan categories 
in Note 4 - Loans and Allowances for Loan Losses: 

December 31,2013 December 31,2012 

Commercial & Industrial $ 2,232,303 $ 1,013,535 

Commercial Real Estate 24,360,372 3,283,265 

Residential Real Estate 3,311,585 3,526,753 

Home Equity Line of Credit 513,668 

Land 1,361,557 772,130 

Constraction 1,343,369 ; 

Total Loans $ 33,122,854 $^^ 8,595,683 

The contracttial amount outstanding for these loans totaled $41,571,473 and $1 \,121,190 as of December 31, 2013 and 
December 31,2012, respectively. 

The following table reflects activity in the accretable yield for these loans for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012: 

Balance at beginning of period 

Acquired through Merger 

Reclassification from nonaccretable difference 

Accretion into interest income 

Disposals 

Balance at end of period j 1,991,662 $̂  1,049,653 

The following table reflects activity in the allowance for these loans for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012: 

2013 2012 
Balance at beginning of period 
Reclassification to TDR 

Charge-offs 

Recoveries 

Provision for loan losses 

Balance at end of period 

NOTE 6 - REAL ESTATE ACQUIRED THROUGH FORECLOSURE 

The following table reflects activity in real estate acquired through foreclosure for the twelve months ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012: 

Balance at beginning of period 
Acquired through Merger 
New ttansfers from loans 
Sales 
Write-downs 
Balance at end of period 

2013 

> 1,049,653 

2,788,895 

1,401,853 

(3,173,474) 

(75,265) 

$ 
2012 

2,658,062 

-
2,040,466 

(3,339,525) 

(309,350) 

5 213,882 

(213,882) 

(131,269) 

44,580 

86,689 

5 

$ 

$ 

66,201 

-
(233,888) 

35,605 

345,964 

213,882 

2013 

5 1,151,256 

908,718 

1,232,558 

(1,901,801) 

(100,611) 

S 1,290,120 

$ 

$ 

2012 

1,504,101 

-
1,184,256 

(1,412,035) 

(125,066) 

1,151,256 
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NOTE 7 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

The components of premises and equipment at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

Land 

Buildings and improvements 

Leasehold improvements 

Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 

Software 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Net premises and equipment 

Depreciation and amortization expense for premises and equipment amounted to $644,261 and $116,792 for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

The Company leases six branches as well as its administrative, operations, and mortgage banking offices under 
noncanceUable operating leases with initial terms varying from 3 to 10 years and providing for one or more renewal options. Three 
additional branch sites are subject to noncancellable ground leases with initial terms of 20 years and providing for four 5-year renewal 
options. The Company also owns three properties with a branch at each location. 

Rent expense applicable to operating leases for the years ended Deceraber 31, 2013 and 2012 was $1,451,936 and $344,748, 
respectively. 

At Deceraber 31, 2013, future rainimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having an initial terra in 
excess of one year are as foUows: 

$ 

$ 

2013 

1,210,000 

1,129,500 

2,424,043 

1,691,036 

385,371 

6,839,950 

(841,418) 

5,998,532 

S 

$ 

2012 

-
-

10,759 

417,740 

163,084 

591,582 

(197,157) 

394,425 

Useful Life 
(in years) 

10-40 

10-25 

3-10 

3-10 

Periods ending December 31: 

2014 

2015 • 

2016 

2017 

2018 

Thereafter 

Total minimum lease payments 

NOTE 8 - CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Operating Leases 

$ 1,679,123 

1,518,037 

1,129,423 

882,763 

879,997 

4,643,476 

$ 10,732,819 

The Company's core deposh intangible assets at December 31, 2013 consist of an asset recorded in 2010 and an asset 
recorded as a resuh ofthe Merger with remaining weighted average lives of approximately 1.2 years and 3.1 years, respectively. The 
foUowing table presents the changes in the net book value of core deposh intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012: 

2013 2012 
Balance at beginning of period 
Additions 
Amortization expense 
Balance, December 31 

173,815 $ 
4,611,362 
(791,498) 

265,296 

(91,481) 
$ 3,993,679 $ 173,815 

The following table presents the gross carrying amount, accumulated amortization, and net carrying amount of core deposit 
intangible assets as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012: 

Gross carrying amount 

Accumulated amortization 

Net carrying amount 

2013 

5,100,648 

(1,106,969) 

3,993,679 S 

2012 

489,286 

(315,471) 

173,815 
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The following table sets forth the fiiture amortization expense for the Company's core deposit intangible assets at December 
31,2013: 

Periods ending December 31: 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Subsequent years 

Total 

NOTE 9 - DEPOSITS 

Amount 
918,538 
725,863 
559,290 
411,253 
336,180 

1,042,554 
3,993,679 

The following table presents the coihposition of deposits at December 31, 2013 and 2012: 

2013 2012 

Noninterest-bearing deposits 
Interest-bearing deposits: 

Checking 
Savings 
Money market 
Total interest-bearing checking, savings and money market deposits 

Time deposits under $100,000 
Time deposits $100,000 or more 

Total time deposhs 
Total interest-bearing deposits 

Total Deposits 

The foUowing table sets forth the maturity disfribution for the Company's time deposhs at December 31, 2013: 

$ 90,077,139 $ 

42,378,939 

27,817,849 

78,356,997 

148,553,785 

59,403,534 

62,959,013 

122,362,547 

270,916,332 

$ 360,993,471 $ 

22,005,741 

7,088,483 

424,103 

20,051,187 

27,563,773 

9,431,667 

41,670,949 

51,102,616 

78,666,389 

100,672,130 

Amount 
Maturing within one year 
Maturing over one to two years 
Maturing over two to three years 
Maturing over three to four years 
Maturing over four to five years 
Maturing over five years 
Total Time Deposits 

Interest expense on deposits for the years ended December 31 , 2013 and 2012 is as follows: 

2013 

60,492,159 
25,479,572 
15,223,305 
8,546,846 
3,455,803 
9,164,862 

122,362,547 

2012 
Interest-bearing checking 
Savings 
Money market 

Total interest-bearing checking, savings and money market deposits 

Time deposits under $100,000 
Time deposits $100,000 or more 

Total time deposits 

Total Interest Expense 

The Company's deposits include brokered deposits obtained through the Proraontory Interfinancial Network, which consist 
of Certificate of Deposh Registry Service ("CDARS") balances included in time deposhs, and insured cash sweep service ("ICS") 
balances included in money raarket deposits. At December 31, 2013, CDARS and ICS deposits were $5.0 million and $6.6 million, 
respectively. The Corapany had no CDARS or ICS deposits at December 31, 2012. 

$ 

38,042 

27,056 

236,988 

302,086 

336,231 

621,584 
957,815 

1,259,901 $ 

13,914 

856 
51,502 

66,272 

98,371 

407,396 
505,767 

572,039 
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NOTE 10 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

The Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. 2010 Stock Option Plan (the "Jefferson Plan") was approved by the Jefferson Board ofDirectors 
in September 2010 and received regulatory approvals in June 2011. The Jefferson Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock 
options intended to comply with the requirements of Section 422 ofthe Intemal Revenue Code and non-qualified stock options 
(collectively "Awards"). Awards were available for grant to officers, employees and non-employee directors, independent consultants 
and contractors of Jefferson and its affiUates, including the Bank. 

The Jefferson Plan authorized the issuance of up to 260,000 shares of comraon stock and had a terra often years. In general, 
options granted under the Jefferson Plan have an exercise price equal to 100% ofthe fair market value ofthe common stock at the date 
ofthe grant and have a ten year term. Options relating to a total of 218,000 shares ofcommon stock were outstanding at the date of 
the Merger. As a result ofthe Merger, the Jefferson Plan is now administered by Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s Board ofDirectors. 

The Cartollton Bancorp 2007 Equity Plan (the "Equity Plan" and, together with the Jefferson Plan, the "Plans") was 
approved at the 2007 aimual meeting of stockholders of Bay Bancorp, Inc.. Under the Equity Plan, 500,000 shares ofcommon stock 
were reserved for issuance. Options relating to a total of 52,060 shares of common stock were outstanding as ofthe date ofthe 
Merger. All grants after the date ofthe Merger were made under the Equity Plan. 

Stock Options 

The following weighted average assuraptions were used for options granted during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012: 

2013 2012 

Dividend yield 
Expected Hfe 
Expected volatility 
Risk-free interest rate 

0.0% 
6.0 years 

33.9% 
1.30% 

0.0% 
6.0 years 

72.9% 
1.03% 

The dividend yield is based on estimated future dividend yields. The expected term of share options granted is generally 
derived from historical experience. Expected volatilities are generally based on historical volatilities. The risk-free rate for periods 
within the confractual term ofthe share option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time ofthe grant. 

The foUowing tables summarize changes in the Company's stock options outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2013 
and 2012: 

Outstanding, January 1, 2013 

Options retained through Merger 

Granted 

Exercised 

Forfeited or expired 

Outstanding, December 31,2013 

Exercisable at December 31, 2013 

Weighted average fair value of options granted during 
the year 

Stock Options 
Outstanding 

484,332 

52,060 

208,120 

(8,887) 

(126,720) 

608,905 

377,255 

s" 

$ 

$ 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

4.58 

15.36 

5.30 

4.50 

7.07 

5.23 

5.39 

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contraehial Life 

7.70 years 

7.11 years 

6.31 years 

S 

$ 

$ 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic 
Value (1) 

(1) 

-
12,000 

3,082 

19,898 

175,426 

138,941 

1.85 

Outstanding, January 1,2012 
As adjusted for conversion from Jefferson common 

shares to Bay Bancorp, Inc. common shares 

Granted 

Exercised 

Forfeited or expired 

Outstanding, December 31, 2012 

Exercisable at December 31,2012 

Weighted average fair value of options granted during 
the year 

Stock Options 
Outstanding 

208,000 

462,115 

44,434 

(8,887) 

(13,330) 

484,332 

265,050 

$" 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

10.00 

4.49 

5.41 

4.49 

4.49 

4.58 

4.38 

3.46 

Weighted Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life 

8.66 years 

7.70 years 

7.42 years 
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(1) The intrinsic value ofstock options for dates prior to April 19, 2013 was not readily determinable because the legacy Jefferson Bancorp shares were 
not publicly traded. 

Stock-based compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period ofthe stock options and is 
recorded in noninterest expense. For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, stock-based compensation expense applicable to 
the Plans was $268,633 and $289,502, respectively and the tax benefits related to stock-based compensation were $1,418 and $3,408, 
respectively. Unrecognized stock-based compensation expense atttibutable to nonvested options was $398,868 at December 31, 2013. 
This amount is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of approximately 1.95 years. 

The sumraary of the activity for the Company's non-vested options for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012 is 
presented in the following table: 

2013 2012 

Siiares 
219,282 
208,120 

(102,423) 
(93,329) 
231,650 

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Date Fair Value 

S 2.74 

$ 

1.85 
2.60 
1.98 
2.30 

Siiares 
285,044 
44,434 

(96,866) 
(13,330) 
219,282 

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Date Fair Value 

$ 2.60 
3.46 
2.68 
2.60 

$ 2.74 

Non-vested options at January 1, 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled, forfeited or expired 
Non-vested options at December 31, 

Restricted Stock Awards 

On Jtme 26, 2013, the Company's Board ofDirectors revised its director compensation policy to provide for an annual grant 
to each non-employee director of an award of shares of resfricted common stock having a fair market value of $10,000 that will vest 
one year after the date ofthe grant. A total of 17,445 shares of restricted cornmon stock have been granted through December 31, 
2013, with 15,656 shares granted to the eight eUgible directors on June 26, 2013 and an additional 1,789 shares granted to a new 
director on September 25, 2013. Total stock-based compensation expense atttibutable to the shares of restricted common stock was 
$42,500 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013. The total unrecognized compensation expense attributable to the shares of 
resfricted common stock was $37,500 at December 31, 2013. 

A summaty ofthe activity for the Company's non-vested resfricted stock for the period indicated is presented in the 
following table: 

2013 

Non-vested restricted stock at January 1, 
Granted 
Vested 
Cancelled, forfeited or expired 
Non-vested restricted stock at December 31, 

Siiares 

17,445 

(1.957) 

Weighted-
Average Fair 

Value 

$ 
5.16 

5.11 
15,488 5.17 
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NOTE 11 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

The Carrollton Bank Retirement Income Plan (the "Pension Plan") was acquired through the Merger. The Pension Plan 
provides defined benefits based on years of service and final average salary. Effective December 31, 2004, all benefit accraals for 
existing employees were frozen and no new employees were eligible for benefits under the Pension Plan. 

Obligations and Funded Status 

2013 
Change in Benefit Obligation 

Benefit obligation acquired in Merger $ 11,158,118 

Service cost 41,766 

Interest cost 293,289 

Actuarial (gain)/loss (1,256,925) 

Disbursements made - •- ; . . , , : . ; . ; . . . . : ' . . : ' ' ^ ^ '̂  :.,. :~"".- " • • • - •• • ^ - (338,509) - • 

Benefit obligation at end of year 9,897,739 

Change in Plan Assets 

Fair value of plan assets acquired in Merger 8,891,492 

Actual retum on plan assets 1,302,264 

Disbursements made (338,509) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 9,855,247 

Funded Stahis at End of Year $ (42,492) 

The accuraulated benefit obligation was $9,897,739 at Deceraber 31, 2013. 

The amount recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as defined benefit pension liability was $42,492 at December 31, 
2013. 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (net oftaxes at 39.445%) consist ofthe following: 

2013 

Net (gain)/loss r • $ -(1,304,888) 

Prior service (credit)/cosl 

Transition (assetj/Uability -

Accumulated other comprehensive income $ (1,304,888) 

Components of Net Periodic Pension Benefit and Other Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 

Net Periodic Pension Benefit 2013 

Service cost $ 41,766 

Interest cost 293,289 

Expected retum on plan assets (404,308) 

Amortization of net loss/(gain) -

Net periodic pension benefit $ (69,253) 

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations 

Net (gain) loss for the period $ (2,154,881) 

Amortization of prior service cost 

Amortization ofnet transition liability . 

Amortization ofnet loss -

Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ (2,154,881) 

Total recognized in net periodic pension benefit and other comprehensive income $ (2,224,134) 
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Expected Amortizations 

The estimated net loss, prior service costs, and transition obligation (asset) for the Pension Plan that are expected to be 
amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit costs over the next fiscal year is as follows: 

2013 

Expected amortization ofnet (gain)/loss $ (47,754) 

Expected amortization of prior service (credit)/cost 

Expected amortization of transition (assetj/liability 

Additional Information 

The weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computation ofthe Pension Plan's benefit obligations were as 
foUows: 

2013 

Discount rates . , 4.72% 

Rates of compensation increase NA 

The weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial computation ofthe Pension Plan's periodic cost were as follows: 

2013 

Discount rates 3.81% 

Expected rate on plan assets 6.60% 

Rate of compensation increase NA 

The target and actual allocations expressed as a percentage of the Pension Plan's assets as of December 31, 2013 are as 
follows: 

Target Actual 

Equity Securities 40-65% 55% 

Fixed income-guaranteed fimd 35- 60% 45% 

Total 100% 100% 

Estimated future benefit payments are as follows: 

Periods ending December 31: Amount 

2014 $ 469,984 

2015 467,248 

2016 476,430 

2017 468,429 

2018 474,762 

2019-2023 2,576,737 

The estimated confribution to be made by the Company to the Pension Plan in 2014 is $305,625. 

The Pension Plan's investment strategy is predicated on its investment objectives and the risk and retum expectations of asset 
classes appropriate for the Pension Plan. Investment objectives have been established by considering the Pension Plan's liquidity 
needs and time horizon and the fiduciary standards under ERISA. The asset allocation strategy is developed to meet the Pension 
Plan's long- term needs in a manner designed to control volatility and to reflect the Company's risk tolerance. 
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Fair Value Measurement of Plan Assets 

The following table suraraarizes the fair value ofthe Pension Plan's investments at December 31, 2013. 

Asset Category 

Equity Securities - Mutual Funds: 

Mixed-cap 

Small-cap 

Intemational 

Guaranteed Deposit 

Total 

401(k) Plan 

$ 

K 

Total as of 
December 31,2013 

4,303,047 

825,008 

702,016 

4,025,176 

9,855,247 

$ 

K 

Quoted Prices in 
Active markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1) 

4,303,047 

825,008 

702,016 

-

5,830,071 

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

-

-
4,025,176 

$ 4,025,176 

Significant Other 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 

$ 

-

-
-

$ 

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan covering substantially all full-time employees. At this time, the Company has 
elected not to match employee contributions as defined under this plan. Therefore, the expense associated with this plan for 2013 and 
2012 is $0. 

NOTE 12 - INCOME TAXES 

The components of income tax expense (benefit) are as follows for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012: 

2013 2012 

Current income tax expense: 

Federal 

State 

Total current tax expense 

Deferred income tax expense (benefit): 

Federal 

State 

Total deferred tax expense (benefit) 

Total income tax expense 

749,749 

240,552 

990,301 

679,151 

182,804 

861,955 

$ 

(377,914) 

(108,297) 

(486,211) 

504,090 $ 

(170,949) 

(45,556) 

(216,505) 

645,450 

The differences between the statutory federal income tax rate of 34% and the effective tax rate for the Company are 
reconciled as follows: 

Years Ended December 31, 

Income tax expense at federal statutory rate 

Increase (decrease) resulting from: 

Bargain purchase gain 

Tax exempt income 

Bank o-wned life insurance 

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 

Incentive stock options 

Acquisition related costs 

Nondeductible expenses 

Total income tax expense and effecfive tax rate 

$ 

$ 

2013 

Amount 

1,273,376 

(972,468) 

(16,511) 

(31,729) 

87,288 

65,725 

90,769 

7,640 

504,090 

Percentage of 
Pretax Income 

34.0% 

-26.0% 

-0.4% 

-0.8% 

2.3% 

1.8% 

2.4% 

0.2% 

13.5% 

$ 

$ 

2012 

Amount 

239,021 

-
-
-

90,584 

62,783 

243,066 

9,996 

645,450 

Percentage of 
Pretax Income 

34.0% 

-
-
-

12.9% 

8.9% 

34.6% 

1.4% 

91.8% 
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Deferted tax assets and liabilities resulting from the tax effects of temporaty differences between the cartying amount of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes at December 31,2013 and 2012 
are as follows: 

2013 2012 

159,890 

258,736 

10,877 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Bad Debts 

Equity security impairment loss 

Depreciation and amortization 

Net unrealized losses on available for sale securities 

Deferred compensation 

Nonaccraal loan interest income 

Stock based compensation plans 

Accraed pension expense 

Real estate acquired through foreclosure 

Purchase accounting adjustment - deposits 

Purchase accounting adjustment - loans 

Purchase accounting adjustment - lease obligations 

Carryover of excess recognized built-in losses 

Other 

Subtotal 

Less: Valuation allowance 

Total deferred tax assets 

Deferred Tax Liabilities: 

Bad debts 

Basis difference on securities acquired in merger 

Core deposit intangible 

Purchase accotmting adjustment - pension plan 

Purchase accounting adjustment - other 

Depreciation and amortization 

Net unrealized gain on pension plan assets 

Net unrealized gains on available for sale securities 

Other 

Total deferred tax liabilities 

Net Deferred Tax Asset 

In conjtmction with its merger with Jefferson, the Corapany incurred an ownership change within the meaning of Section 382 
ofthe Intemal Revenue Code. As a resuh, applicable federal and state tax law places an annual limitation of approximately $351,000 
on the amount of certain losses that may be used, including buih-in losses that existed at the date ofthe ownership change. During 
2013, the Company recognized buih-in losses of approxiraately $10.7 raillion; a tax benefit has not been recorded for a portion of 
these losses due to the application ofthe annual Section 382 limitation. A tax benefit of approxiraately $2.6 million (included in the 
table above as "carryover of excess recognized built-in losses") was recorded for the approximately $6.5 million of recognized built-in 
losses that the Company expects to utilize in ftiture periods. This loss carryforward expires in 2034. The Company also anticipates 
additional fiiture recognized built-in losses of approximately $1.3 miUion, for which a valuation aUowance has been established 
against a portion ofthe corresponding deferred tax assets associated whh these built-in loss iteras. 

At December 31, 2013, the Company has state net operating loss carryforwards of approxiraately $466,000, which expire in 
2033. Pre-Merger Bay Bancorp, Inc. also recorded book irapairraent losses on certain equity securities, which would generate capital 
losses for tax purposes ifthe securities were sold at their eurrent assessed fair market value. A valuation allowance has been 
established against the corresponding deferred tax assets associated with these losses, as the benefit is not more likely than not to be 
realized. 

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of sufficient future taxable income during the periods in 
which existing deferred tax assets are expected to become deductible for incorae tax purposes. Manageraent has determined that the 
Company is raore likely than not to realize existing net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2013, with the exception ofthe items 
noted above. 

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company did not have any uiu-ecognized tax benefits. A tax position 
is recognized as a benefit only if h is "more likely than nof that the tax position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax 
examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50%o likely to be 

$ 

$ 
$ 

124,424 

215,986 

155,769 

123,006 

962,166 

179,994 

1,353,909 

4,462,191 

276,819 

. 2,564,279 

35,578 

10,614,011 

(342,442) 

10,271,569 $ 

327,721 

410,205 

1,575,307 

229,003 

96,019 

219,200 

849,993 

-
-

3,707,448 $ 

6,564,121 $ 

-
-
-

77,949 

-
116,398 

-
-
-
-

16,319 

480,279 

0 

480,279 

-
68,561 

-
-

169,456 

3,073 

241,090 

239,189 
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realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the "more likely than nof test, no tax benefit is recorded. The Company does 
not expect the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease in the next 12 months. 

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax, as well as incorae tax ofthe State of Maryland. The 
Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities in these jurisdictions for the years before 2010. 

NOTE 13 - OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Comprehensive income is defined as net incorae plus transactions and other occurtences that are the result of non-ovraer 
changes in equity. For financial statements presented by the Company, non-equity changes are comprised of unrealized gains or 
losses on available for sale debt secittities and any minimum pension liability adjustments. These do not have an impact on the 
Company's net income. The following table presents the activity in net accuraulated other comprehensive income for the periods 
indicated: 

Balance at December 31,2011 

Period change, net of tax 

Balance at December 31, 2012 

Period change, net of tax 

Balance at December 31, 2013 

Unrealized Gains 
(losses) on Investments 

Available for Sale 

$ 228,866 

31,226 

260,092 

(451,063) 

$ (190,971) 

Defined Benefit Pension 

$ 

$ 

Plan 

-
-
-

1,304,888 

1,304,888 

$ 
Total 

228,866 

31,226 

260,092 

853,825 

s 1,113,917 

NOTE 14- NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE 

The calculation ofnet income per common share for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

2013 2012 

Basic eamings per share: 

Net income 

Weighted average shares outstanding (1) 

Basic net income per share 

Diluted eamings per share: 
Net income . . . . 

Weighted average shares outstanding (I) 

Dilutive potential shares (2) 

Total diluted average shares outstanding 

Total diluted net income per share 

$ 

$ 

.: $:., 

$ 

3,241,134 

8,322,811 

039 

:, 3,241,134 

8,322,811 

19,835 

8,342,646 

0.39 

$ 

$ 

$ . 

$ 

57,553 

5,829,140 

0.01 

57,553 

5,829,140 

-
5,829,140 

0.01 

Anti-dilutive shares 264,261 486,553 

(1) Pre-Merger Jefferson common shares adjusted for the effect ofthe conversion to Bay Bancorp, Inc. common shares. 
(2) Pre-Merger Jefferson common shares were not publicly traded in 2012; accordingly, a determination of dilutive potential shares is not practicable. 

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company's executive officers and directors, or other entities to which they are related, enter into loan transactions with 
the Bank in the ordinary course ofbusiness. The terms of these ttansactions are similar to the terras provided to other borrowers 
entering into similar loan transactions and do not involve more than normal risk of coUectability. The Company had no related party 
loans in 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2013, related party loan activity was as follows: 

2013 

Beginning Balance 

Acquired in Merger 

Change in status (1) 

Additions 

Repayments 

Ending Balance 

127,139 

3,975,838 

1,500,000 

(165,384) 

5,437,593 

(1) Outstanding loans ofthe accoimting acquirer that became related party loans at the date ofthe Merger. 

The Bank routinely enters into deposit relationships with its directors, officers and employees in the normal course of 
business. These deposits bear the same terms and conditions of those prevailing at the tirae for coraparable transactions with unrelated 

82 



parties. Deposit balances of executive officers, directors and their related interests as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were 
$2,526,069 and $5,902,880, respectively. 

A principal for a commercial real estate services company, through which the Bank entered into a third-party lease agreement 
for the Lutherville headquarters offices and branch in 2010, became a director ofthe Company and the Bank on April 19, 2013. The 
Bank paid approximately $327,000 in 2013 and approximately $315,000 in 2012 as lease payments forthe office and branch facilities. 
In addition, the Bank paid approximately $14,000 to the real estate services company in 2013 for several small leasehold iraproveraent 
projects. 

In August of 2013, the managing member ofthe ownership group that advises the majority owner ofthe Corapany entered 
into an agreement to sublease bffice space from the Corapany in the Bank's Colurabia operations center. The raanaging raeraber paid 
$6,750 to the Corapany during 2013. 

Also in August of 2013, the raanaging member ofthe ownership group that advises the raajority owner ofthe Company 
entered into a cost sharing agreement for services to be performed by one ofthe Bank's employees. The managing member 
reimbursed the Bank for $15,830 ofthe pro-rata share ofthis employee's salary and benefits costs in 2013. 

The Company believes these transactions are at terms coraparable to those between unrelated parties. 

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The Corapany is a party to financial instraments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course ofbusiness. These financial 
instraments include loan commitments, unused lines of credit and standby letters of credit. The Company uses these financial 
instraments to raeet the financing needs of its custoraers. Financial instraments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, 
interest rate and liquidity risk. These do not represent unusual risks and manageraent does not anticipate any losses which would have 
a material effect on the accorapanying consolidated financial statements. 

Outstanding loan coraraitments and lines and letters of credit were as follows: 

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 

Loan commitments S 6,224,298 $ 3,367,392 

Unused hnes of credit 58,479,498 16,782,690 

Standby letters of credit 2,254,568 954,194 

Loan, coraraitraents and unused lines of credit are agreeraents to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation ofany 
condition established in the contract. The Company generally requires collateral to support financial instraments with credit risk on 
the sarae basis as it does for on-balance sheet instraments. The collateral requirement is based on raanageraent's credit evaluation of 
the counter party. Coraraitraents generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payraent ofa fee. 
Since many ofthe commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amount does not necessarily 
represent future cash requirements. Each custoraer's creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional coraraitraents issued to guarantee the perforraance ofa custoraer to a third party. The 
credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the sarae as that involved in extending loan facilities to custoraers. 

In the ordinary course ofbusiness, the Corapany has various outstanding contingent liabilities that are not reflected in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of management, after consulting with legal counsel, the ultimate 
disposition of these raatters is not expected to have a raaterial adverse effect on the financial condition ofthe Company. 

NOTE 17 - FAIR VALUE 

The Corapany uses fair value raeasureraents to record fair value adjustraents to certain assets and liabilities and to determine 
fair value disclosures. In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measureraents and Disclosures, the fair value ofa 
fmancial instmraent is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
raarket participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted raarket prices. However, in raany 
instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Company's various financial instraments. In cases where quoted market prices are 
not available, fair values are based on estiraates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly 
affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estiraates 
raay not be realized in an iraraediate settlement ofthe instrament. 

The fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an orderly transaction 
(that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between raarket participants at the raeasurement date under current market 
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conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation 
technique or the use of multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price: at which willing 
market participants would transact at the measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts and circumstances 
and requires the use of significant judgment. The fair value is a reasonable point within the range that is most representative of fair 
value under ciurent market conditions. 

The Fair Value Hierarchy 

In accordance with this guidance, the Company groups hs financial assets and financial liabilities generally raeasured at fair 
value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and habilities are ttaded and the reliability ofthe assumptions used to 
determine fair value. 

Level 1 - Valuation is based on quoted prices in active raarkets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has 
the ability to access at the raeasurement date. Level 1 assets and liabilities generally include debt and equity securities that are traded 
in an active exchange market. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving 
identical assets and liabilities. 

Level 2 - Valuation is based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. The valuation may be based on quoted prices for similar assets and habUities; quoted prices ih 
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be cortoborated by observable market data for substantially the 
fiiU term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant 
to the fair value ofthe assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instraments whose value is determined using 
pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instraments for which determination of fair 
value requires significant management judgment or estimation. 

A financial instrament's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement. 

In accordance with FASB's guidance, impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral 
and real estate acquired through foreclosure requires classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value ofthe collateral is 
based on an observable market price or a curtent appraised value, the Company meastu-es and records the loan or real estate acquired 
through foreclosure as nomecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or raanagement determines the fair value ofthe 
collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company measures and records 
the loan or real estate acquired through foreclosure as nonrecurring Level 3. The value of real estate collateral is determined based on 
appraisals by qualified licensed appraisers hired by the Company. Impaired loans and real estate acquired through foreclosiu-e are 
reviewed and evaluated on at least a quarterly basis for additional irapairment and adjusted accordingly, based on the same factors 
identified above. 

Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corapany to measure certain assets recorded at fair value on a 
recurting basis in the consolidated financial statements: 

Investment Securities Available for Sale 
The fair value oflnvestment securities available for sale is the market value based on quoted market prices, when available 

(Level I). If hsted prices or quotes are not available, fair value is based upon quoted market prices for similar assets or, due to the 
limited market activity ofthe instrament, externally developed models that use significant observable inputs (Level 2) or externally 
developed models that use unobservable inputs due to limited or no market activity ofthe instrament (Level 3). It includes raodel 
pricing, defined as valuing securhies based upon their relationship with other benchmark securities and market inforraation from third 
party sources. In the absence of ciurent market activity, securities may be evaluated either by reference to similarly situated bonds or 
based on the liquidation value or restracturing value ofthe underlying assets. There was no change in valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value of securities available for sale for the period ended December 31, 2013. 
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The tables below present the recorded amount of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31,2013 
and Deceraber 31,2012: 

December 31,2013 
U.S. govemment agency 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 

State and municipal 

Equity securities 

December 3 L 2012 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 

. 

$ 

$_ 

„,$__ 

$ 

Carrying Value 
(Fair Value) 

7,525,915 

23,801,003 

5,189,886 

69,865 

36,586,669 

Carrying Value 
(Fair Value) 

9,716,626 

9,716,626 

_ 

S 

$_ 

$ 

Quoted Prices 
(Level 1) 

-
-
-

69,865 

69,865 

Quoted Prices 
(Level 1) 

i 

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 7,525,915 

23,801,003 

5,189,886 

-
$ 36,516,804 

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ , 9,716,626 

$ 9,716,626 

Significant Other 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 

$ 
-
-
-

$ 

Significant Other 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 

$ . . 
$ ' -

Assets Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 

On a nonrecurring basis, the Company may be required to measure certain assets at fair value in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. These adjustments to fair value usually result frora application of lower of cost or fair value 
accoimting or write-downs of individual assets due to impairment. 

The following methods and assuraptions were used by the Company to measure certain assets recorded at fair value on a 
nonrecurring basis in the consolidated financial statements: 

Loans held for sale 
Loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated market value on an aggregate basis. Market value is 

determined based on the price secondaty markets are currently offering for similar loans using observable market data which is not 
materially different than cost due to the short duration between origination and sale. As such, the Company records any fair value 
adjustments on a nonrecurring basis. No nonrecurring fair value adjustments were recorded on loans held for sale during the years 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 

Impaired Loans 
Loans for which it is probable that payment of principal and interest will not be made in accordance with the contractual 

terms ofthe loan are considered impaired. Once a loan is identified as individually impaired, management measures impairraent in 
accordance with ASC Topic 310, using the present value of expected cash flows, the loan's observable market price, or the fair value 
of collateral (less seUing costs) ifthe loan is collateral dependent. A specific allowance for loan loss is then established or a charge-
off is recorded ifthe loan is collateral dependent and the loan is classified at a Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Appraised collateral 
values may be discounted based on manageraent's historical knowledge, changes in raarket conditions from the time of valuation, 
and/or management's expertise and knowledge ofthe borrower's business. Irapaired loans are reviewed and evaluated on at least a 
quarterly basis for additional irapairment and adjusted accordingly, based on the factors identified above. Valuation techniques are 
consistent with those applied in prior periods. 

Real Estate Acquired Through Foreclosure 
Real estate acquired through foreclosure ("REO") is adjusted to fair value upon transfer ofthe loan to REO and is classified 

at a Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Subsequently, the REO is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value. The estimated 
fair value for REO included in Level 3 is determined by independent market based appraisals and other available market information, 
less costs to sell, that may be reduced fiirther based on raarket expectations or an executed sales agreement. Ifthe fair value of REO 
deteriorates subsequent to the period of ttansfer, the REO is also classified at a Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Valuation 
techniques are consistent with those techniques applied in prior periods. 
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The tables below present the recorded assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2013 and 
December 31, 2012: 

December 31,2013: 

Impaired loans 

Real estate acquired through foreclosure 

December 31,2012: 
Impaired loans 

Real estate acquired through foreclosure 

Carrying Value 
(Fair Value) 

B 875,357 

960,006 
i 1,835,363 

Carrying Value 
(Fair Value) 

i 631,483 

1,151,256 

1,782,739 

$~ 

$_ 

$~ 

$_ 

Quoted Prices 
(Level 1) 

-

-

Quoted Prices 
(Level 1) 

-

-

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

S 

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

$ 

Significant Other 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 

$ 875,357 

960,006 

1,835,363 

Significant Other 
Unobservable 

Inputs (Level 3) 
$ 631,483 

1,151,256 

1,782,739 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company discloses fair value information about financial instraraents, for which it is practicable to estimate the value, 
whether or not such financial instruments are recognized on the balance sheets. Fair value is the araount at which a financial 
instraraent could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best 
evidenced by a quoted raarket price, if one exists. 

Quoted market prices, where available, are shown as estiraates of fair raarket values. Because no quoted raarket prices are 
available for a significant part ofthe Company's financial instraraents, the fair values of such instraraents have been derived based on 
the araount and tiraing of estiraated future cash flows and using raarket discount rates. 

Present value techniques used in estimating the fair value of raany ofthe Company's flnancial instraments are significantly 
affected by the assuraptions used. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to 
independent raarkets and, in many cases, could not be realized in immediate cash settleraent ofthe instraraent. Additionally, the 
accorapanying estiraates of fair values are only representative ofthe fair values ofthe individual financial assets and liabihties and 
should not be considered an indication of the fair value of the Company. 

The foUowing disclosure of estimated fair values ofthe Company's financial instraraents at Deceraber 31, 2013 and 
Deceraber 31, 2012 is raade in accordance with the requirements of ASC Topic 820: 

Financial assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investment securities available for sale (debt) 

Investment securities available for sale (equity) 

Restricted equity securities 

Loans held for sale 

Loans, net of allowance 

Accraed interest receivable 

Financial liabilities: 

Deposits 
Accraed interest payable 

Level in Fair 
Value 

Hierarchy 

Level I 
Level 2 

Level 1 

Level 2 

Level 2 

Level 3 

Level 2 

Level 3 

Level 2 

December 31 

Carrying 
Amount 

$ 23,273,060 
36,516,804 

69,865 

1,009,695 

12,836,234 

319,829,332 

1,186,748 

360,993,471-

38,642 

$ 

,2013 

Estimated fair 
value 

23,273,060 $ 
36,516,804 

69,865 

1,009,695 

12,836,234 

327,390,640 

1,186,748 

361,208,309 

38,642 

December 31 

Carrying 
Amount 

19,684,829 
9,716,626 

-
259,800 

-
101,080,230 

330,639 

100,672,130 

54,429 

$ 

,2012 

Estimated fair 
value 

19,684,829 
9,716,626 

-
259,800 

-
102,085,888 

330,639 

100,923,598 

54,429 

The following methods and assuraptions were used to estimate the fair value of each category of financial instraments for 
which it is practicable to estiraate that value: 

Cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and overnight investments. The carrying araount approximated the fair value. 

Investment Securities. The fair value of debt securities is based upon quoted prices for sirailar assets or externally developed raodels 
that use significant observable inputs. The fair value of equity securities is based on quoted raarket prices. 
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Restricted equity securities. Since these stocks are restticted as to marketability, the canying value approximated fair value. 

Loans held for sale. The carrying amount approximated the fair value. 

Loans. The fair value of loans, except for purchased credit impaired loans that are collateral-dependent, was estiraated by computing 
the discounted value of estimated cash flows, adjusted for probable credit losses, for pools of loans having similar characteristics. The 
discount rate was based upon the current raarket rate for a similar loan. The fair value of purchased credh irapaired loans that are 
collateral-dependent was deterrained based on the estiraated fair value of collateral less estiraated costs to sell. Nonperforming loans 
have an assuraed interest rate of 0%. 

Accrued interest receivable and payable. The carrying amount approximated the fair value of accmed interest, considering the 
short-terra nature ofthe instraraent and its expected collection. 

Deposit liabilities. The fair value of deraand, raoney market savings and regular savings deposits, which have no stated maturity, 
were considered equal to their carrying araount, representing the amount payable on demand: The fair value of time deposits was 
based upon the discounted value of contractual cash flows at current rates for deposits of sirailar reraaining maturity. 

Off-balance sheet instruments. The Company charges fees for coraraitments to extend credh. Interest rates on loans, for which 
these commitments are extended, are normally comraitted for periods ofless than one raonth. Fees charged on standby letters of 
credit and other financial guarantees are deemed to be immaterial and these guarantees are expected to be settled at face amount or 
expire unused. It is impractical to assign any fair value to these commitments. 

NOTE 18 - REGULATORY MATTERS 

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements adrainistered by federal banking agencies. Failure to raeet 
rainiraura capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if 
undertaken, could have a direct raaterial effect on otu- financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory 
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of its 
assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital araounts and 
classification are also subject to qualhative judgraents by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors. The 
minimura levels of Tier 1 and Total capital to risk-weighted assets are 4% and 8%, respectively, under the curtent regulations. 

In addition, the OCC requires that FSBs, like the Bank, maintain a rainiraura level of Tier 1 capital to average total assets 
excluding intangibles. This raeasure is known as the leverage ratio. The current regulatory miniraura for the leverage ratio for 
institutions to be considered adequately capitalized is 4%, but an individual institution could be required to raaintain a higher level. In 
connection with the Merger, the Bank entered into an Operating Agreement with the OCC (the "Operating Agreemenf) pursuant to 
which the Bank agreed, araong other things, to maintain a leverage ratio of 10%) for the terra ofthe Operating Agreeraent. The 
Operating Agreement will remain in effect until it is terrainated by the OCC or the Bank ceases to be an FSB, either due to a merger or 
otherwise. 

Until the adoption ofthe Basel III Capital Rules, the Company was not subject to specific capital requireraents. The Basel III 
Capital Rules generally will subject to the Corapany to the sarae capital requireraents that apply to other depository institution holding 
corapanies. 

Quantitative raeasures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain amounts and ratios 
(set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and a 
leverage ratio of Tier 1 caphal (as defined) to average tangible assets (as defined). At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Bank had 
regulatory capital in excess of that required under each requirement and was classified as "well capitalized". 
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Actual capital amounts and ratios for the Bank are presented on the following tables (dollars in thousands): 

As of December 31,2013: 

Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio 

Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio 

Leverage Ratio 

As of December 31,2012: 

Total Risk-Based Capital Ratio 

Tier I Risk-Based Capital Ratio 

Leverage Ratio 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Actual 

Amount 

47,815 

46,964 

46,964 

30,128 

29,472 

29,472 

Ratio 

14.68% 

14.42% 

11.41% 

27.76% 

27.16% 

22.23% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

To Be Co 

Adequately 

Amount 

26,049 

13,025 

16,461 

8,681 

4,341 

5,303 

insidered 

Capitalized 

Ratio 

8.00% 

4.00% 

4.00% 

8.00% 

4.00% 

4.00% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

To Be Well 

Capitalized Under 

Prompt Corrective 

Action Provisions 

Amount Ratio 

32,562 10.00% 

19,537 6.00% 

20,577 5.00% 

10,852 10.00% 

6,511 6.00% 

6,629 : 5.00% 

Banking regulations also limh the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval by an FSB's regulatory 
agencies. In addhion to these regulations, the Bank agreed in the Operating Agreement that it would not declare or pay any dividends 
or otherwise reduce its capital unless h is in compliance with the Operating Agreeraent, including the minimum capital requirements. 
Due to these restrictions and the Bank's desire to preserve capital to fund its growth, the Company currently does not anticipate paying 
a dividend for the foreseeable future. In addition to these regulatory resttictions, h should be noted that the declaration of dividends is 
at the discretion ofthe Company's Board ofDirectors and will depend, in part, on the Company's eamings and future capital needs. 
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that dividends will be declared in any future period. 

The Bank is required to maintain reserves against certain deposit liabilities which was satisfied with vault cash and balances 
on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond during the reserve maintenance periods that included December 31,2013 and 
2012. 

Under current Federal Reserve regulations, the Bank is limited in the amount h may lend to the parent company and hs 
nonbank subsidiaries. Loans to a single afflliate may not exceed 10%), and loans to all affiliates may not exceed 20%o ofthe Bank's 
capital stock, surplus, and undivided profits, plus the allowance for loan and lease losses. Loans from the Bank to nonbank affihates, 
including the parent company, are also required to be collateralized according to regulatory guidelines. At December 31,2013, there 
were no loans from the Bank to any nonbank afflliate, including the parent company. 
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NOTE 19 - CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY 

The condensed financial statements for Bay Bancorp, Inc. (Parent only) are presented below: 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securides available for sale, at fair value 
Investment in subsidiary 
Other assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accmed expenses and other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common stock 
Additional paid-in capital 
Retained eamings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Total Stockholders' Equity 
Total Liabilities and Stocldioiders' Equity 

$ 

$ 

$ 

December 31, 
2013 

197,976 
119,665 

54,506,900 
33,764 

54,858,305 

304,037 
304,037 

9,379,753 
36,357,001 

7,703,597 
1,113,917 

54,554,268 
54,858405 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2012 

2,510,596 
-

29,905,951 
45,288 

32,461,835 

637,419 
637,419 

26,250 
27,075,611 
4,462,463 

260,092 
31,824,416 
32,461,835 

Years Ended December 31, 

Income: 
Interest and dividends on deposits and mvestment securities 
Bargain purchase gain 

Total Income 

Expenses: 
Merger related expenses 
Other noninterest expenses 

Total Expenses 

Loss before income taxes and equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary 
Income tax benefit 
Loss before equity in undisttibuted net income of subsidiary 
Equity in undisttibuted net income of subsidiary 
Net income 

2013 

$ 3,795 
(110,015) 
(106,220) 

148,285 
318,701 
466,986 

(573,206) 
(123,646) 
(449,560) 

3,690,694 
$ 3,241,134 

2012 

$ 4,841 
-

4,841 

123,095 
49,266 

172,361 

(167,520) 
(10,763) 

(156,757) 
214,310 

$ 57,553 
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Years Ended December 31, 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities: 
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary 
Bargain purchase gain 
Deferred income taxes 
Net decrease in accmed interest receivable and other assets 
Net (decrease) increase in intercompany accounts payable 
Net (decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Acquisition, net of cash acquired 
Additional equity investment in subsidiary 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from flnancing activities: 
Proceeds from issuance ofcommon stock 
Proceeds from Issuance ofcommon stock on stock option exercise 
Repurchase and retirement ofcommon stock 

Net cash provided by fmancing activities 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

$ 

$ 

2013 

3,241,134 $ 

(3,690,694) 
110,015 
(51,190) 
90,828 

(1,048,445) 
(234,270) 

(1,582,622) 

(6,769,988) 
(5,000,000) 

(11,769,988) 

11,000,000 
39,990 

-

11,039,990 

(2,312,620) 
2,510,596 

197,976 $ 

2012 

57,553 

(214,310) 
-
-

3,747 
632,039 

14,018 
493,047 

_ 

-
-

59,900 
40,000 

(48,640) 
51,260 

544,307 
1,966,289 
2,510,596 

NOTE 20 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS (UNAUDITED) 

Year Ended December 31,2013 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

Net imerest income 

Provision for loan losses 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 

Bargain purchase gain (1) 

Other noninterest income 

Total noninterest income 

Noninterest expenses 

Income (loss) before income taxes 

Income taxes (benefit) 

Net Income (loss) 

Net income (loss) per share - basic 

Net income (loss) per share - diluted 

First Quarter 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,230,680 

145,697 

2,084,983 

29,381 

2,055,602 

-

47,623 

47,623 

1,893,426 

209,799 

88,519 

121,280 

0.02 

0.02 

Second Quarter 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

4,947,012 

357,599 

4,589,413 

153,875 

4,435,538 

2,860,199 

2,100,526 

4,960,725 

7,547,504 

1,848,759 

569,571 

1,279,188 

0.15 

0.15 

Tiiird Quarter 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

6,203,860 

397,159 

5,806,701 

350,365 

5,456,336 

-

1,763,047 

1,763,047 

6,718,869 

500,514 

(422,279) 

922,793 

0.11 

0.11 

Fourth Quarter 

S 

$ 

$ 

$ 

5,637,991 

361,514 

5,276,477 

308,586 

4,967,891 

-

2,173,583 

2,173,583 

5,955,322 

1,186,152 

268,279 

917,873 

0.11 

0.11 

(I) The bargain purchase gain for the second quarter was retroactively restated downward for measurement period adjustments of $338,598 in the third quarter 
and $2,157,102 in the fourth quarter. Details ofthe fourth quarter adjustments are presented in NOTE 2 - Merger. 
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Year Ended December 31,2012 

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 

Imerest income $ 2,710,713 $ 2,366,562 $ 2,461,178 $ 2,287,076 

Interest expense 147,700 137,685 138,407 148,335 

Net interest income 2,563,013 2,228,877 2,322,771 2,138,741 

Provision for loan losses 149,955 241,669 14,928 327,265 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 2,413,058 1,987,208 2,307,843 1,811,476 

Othernoninterest income 265,071 (34,556) 146,073 36,094 

Noninterest expenses 1,996,030 2,133,275 1,993,509 2,106,450 

Income (loss) before income taxes • 682,099 (180,623) 460,407 (258,880) 

Income taxes (benefit) 293,985 (66,271) 226,634 191,102 

Net Income (loss) $ 388,114 $ (114,352) $ 233,773 $ (449,982) 

(180,623) 

(66,271) 

$ 

$ 
$ 

(114,352) 

(0.02) 
(0.02) 

Net income (loss) per share - basic $ 0.07 _$ (0.02) $ 004 $ (0.08) 
Net income (loss) per share - diluted $ (107 $ (0.02) $ 0.04 $ (0.08) 

NOTE 21 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In January 2014, the Corapany announced the pending closure of three of hs underperforraing branches. The Salisbury, 
Hanover, and Millersville branches will be closed in April 2014. Deposits at the three branches to be closed represented 
approximately 8%o of total deposits at December 31,2013. Facility leases at these locations expire in late 2014. 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 
DISCLOSURE 

None 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

The Company maintains disclosure confrols and procedures that are designed to ensure that inforraation required to be 
disclosed in Bay Bancorp, Inc. reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as araended (the "Exchange Acf), with the 
SEC, such as this Annual Report on Form 10-K, is recorded, processed, sumraarized and reported within the tirae periods specified in 
those mles and forras, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including Bay's principal 
executive officer ("PEQ") and its principal accounting officer ("PAO"), as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding 
required disclosure. A control system, no raatter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, 
assurance that the objectives ofthe control system are met. Further, the design ofa control system must reflect the fact that there are 
resource consttaints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. These inherent hmitations include the 
realities that judgments in decision-raaking can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. 
Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by 
management override ofthe confrol. The design ofany system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the 
likelihood of future events, and there can be ho assurance that any design will succeed in achieving hs stated goals under all potential 
future conditions; over time, a conttol may becorae inadequate because of changes in conditions, orthe degree of corapliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

An evaluation ofthe effectiveness of these disclosure controls as of December 31, 2013 was carried out under the supervision 
and with the participation of management, including the PEO and the PAO. Based on that evaluation, management, including the 
PEO and the PAO, has concluded that the Corapany's disclosure conttols and procedures are, in fact, effective at the reasonable 
assurance level. 

During the year ended Deceraber 31, 2013, there were no changes in the Company's intemal controls over financial reporting 
that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's intemal confrols over financial reporting. 

As required by Section 404 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, raanageraent has perforraed an evaluation and testing ofthe 
Corapany's intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013. Management's report on the Company's intemal 
control over financial reporting is included on the following page. The Company is a "smaller reporting company" as defined by Rule 
12b-2 under the Exchange Act and, accordingly, hs independent registered public accounting firm is not required to attest to the 
foregoing raanagement report. 
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

The Board ofDirectors and Stockholders 
Bay Bancorp, Inc. 

Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over fmancial 
reporting. This intemal confrol system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to management and the Board ofDirectors as to 
the reliability of Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s financial reporting and the preparation and presentation of financial statements for extemal 
purposes in accordance with accoimting principles generally accepted in the United States, as well as to safeguard assets from 
unauthorized use or disposition. 

An intemal confrol system, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systeras determined 
to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation and may not 
prevent or detect misstatements in the financial statements or the unauthorized use or disposition of Bay Bancorp's assets. Also, 
projections ofany evaluation of effectiveness of intemal controls to fiiture periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures raay deteriorate. 

Management assessed the effectiveness of Bay Bancorp's intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, 
based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission (COSO) in Intemal 
Control-Integrated Framework (1992 Framework). Based on this assessment and on the foregoing criteria, management has 
concluded that, as of December 31,2013, Bay Bancorp, Inc.'s intemal conttol over financial reporting is effective. 

Dated: March 28.2014 

Isl Kevin B. Cashen 

Kevin B. Cashen 

President and ChiefExecutive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

/s/Lani/D.Pickett 

Larry D. Pickett 

Executive Vice President - ChiefFinancial Officer 

(Principal Accounting Officer) 
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 

PARTIH 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to all its directors, officers and a copy ofthe code of ethics will be 
provided to any person, without charge, upon written request directory to Bill Weller, Bay Bancorp, Inc., 2328 West Joppa Road, 
Suite 325, Lutherville, Maryland 21093. There have been no material changes in the procedures previously disclosed by which 
stockholders raay recommend nominees to Bay's Board ofDirectors. 

All other information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections of Bay Bancorp Inc.'s 
definitive Proxy Stateraent for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A (the 
"Proxy Statemenf) entitled "Information Regarding Directors and Director Nominees", "Executive Officers and Significant 
Eraployees", "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Corapliance" , and "Corporate Govemance" (underthe heading, "Audh 
Committee"). 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections ofthe Proxy Stateraent entitled 
"Director Compensation" and "Executive Corapensation". 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

At the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Corapany's stockholders approved the Carrollton Bancorp 2007 Equity 
Plan (the "Equity Plan"), which authorizes the grant ofstock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted performance 
stock, unrestticted stock, and performance units. In connection with the Merger, all stock options that were outstanding tmder 
Jefferson's 2010 Stock Option Plan (the "Jefferson Plan") at the effective time ofthe Merger were assumed by the Company and 
converted into options to purchase shares ofthe Corapany's common stock. The converted options have all ofthe same terms and 
condhions of such options immediately prior to the Merger (including vesting restrictions), except that (i) the number of shares ofthe 
Corapany's common stock subject to each option was adjusted so that it is equal to the product ofthe nuraber of shares of Jefferson's 
comraon stock subject to the original option and the exchange ratio for the Merger (fractional shares resulting from such adjustraent 
were rounded down to the nearest whole share) and (ii) the exercise price per share of each option was adjusted so that it is equal to 
the exercise price per share of Jefferson's coraraon stock under the original option divided by the exchange ratio for the Merger 
(rounded up to the nearest whole cent). No addhional grants will be raade under the Jefferson Plan. The following table contains 
inforraation about the Equity Plan as of Deceraber 31, 2013: 

Plan Categorv 

Number of securities to be 
issued upon exercise of 
outstanding options, 
warrants, and rights 

(a) 
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 
Equity compensation plans not approved by security 
holders 
Total 

Weighted-average 
exercise price of 

outstanding options, 
warrants, and rights 

(b) 

118,120 5.24 

118,120 $ 5.24 

Number of securities 
remaining available for future 

issuance under equity 
compensation plans 

(excluding securities reflected 
in columnl 

(a) 

348,392 

348,392 

(1) In addition to stock options and stock appreciation rights, the Equity Plan permits the grant of stock awards of various types and 
performance units. As of December 31, 2013, restricted stock awards relating to 15,488 shares were outstanding that are not 
included in the number shown in column (a). Shares ofcommon stock subject to restticted stock or unrestricted stock awards may 
not exceed 50% ofthe total number of shares available under the Equity Plan. Subject to the anti-dilution provisions ofthe Equity 
Plan, (i) the maximum number of shares of common stock for which stock options and stock appreciation rights may be granted to 
any participant in any fiscal year shall not exceed 500,000 shares, and (ii) the maximum aggregate dollar amount of, and the 
maximum number of shares ofcommon stock subject to, restricted stock and performance unit awards to any employee with 
respect to a restriction period or performance period may not exceed $500,000 and 500,000 shares, respectively. 

All other inforraation required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections ofthe Proxy Statement entitled 
"Security Ownership of Management and Certain Security Holders" and "Change in Control". 
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections ofthe Proxy Stateraent entitled 
"Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and "Corporate Govemance" (under the heading, "Director Independence"). 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 

The information required by this Itera is incorporated herein by reference to the section ofthe Proxy Stateraent enthled 
"Audit Fees and Services". 

PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

The following financial statements are included in this report: 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at Deceraber 31,2013 and 2012 
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
Consolidated Stateraent of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended Deceraber 31, 2013 and 2012 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateraents 

All financial stateraent schedules have been omitted as the required information is either inapplicable or included in the 
consolidated financial stateraents or related notes. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requireraents ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registtant has duly caused this report to be signed 
on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 

Date: March 28,2014 

Bay Bancorp, Inc. 

By: Isl Kevin B. Cashen 

Kevin B. Cashen 
President and ChiefExecutive Officer 

Pursuant to the requireraents ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and dates indicated. 

Name 

Isl Joseph J. Thomas 

Joseph J. Thomas 

Isl Kevin B Cashen 

Kevin B. Cashen 

Isl Larry D. Pickett 

Lany D. Pickett 

Isl Robert J. Aumiller 
Robert J. Aumiller 

Isl Steven K. Breeden 
Steven K. Breeden 

Isl Kevin G. Bymes 
Kevin G. Bymes 

Isl Mark M. Caplan 
Mark M. Caplan 

Isl Howard I. Hackerman 
Howard I. Hackerman 

Isl Eric D. Hovde 
Eric D. Hovde 

Isl Charles L. Maskell 

Capacities Date 

Chainnan ofthe Board 

President and ChiefExecutive Officer 

Executive Vice President - ChiefFinancial Officer 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

March 28,2014 

March 28, 2014 

March 28,2014 

March 28,2014 

March 28,2014 

March 28,2014 

March 28,2014 

March 28,2014 

March 28,2014 

March 28,2014 

Charles L. Maskell 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

Exhibit No. Description 

2.1 Agreeraent and Plan ofMerger, dated as ofApril 8, 2012, by and araong Carrollton Bancorp, Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. 
and Financial Services Partners Fund I, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 2.1 to the Registrant's Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed on AprU 10, 2012) 

2.2 First Araendraent to Agreement and Plan ofMerger, dated as of May 7, 2012, by and among Carrollton Bancorp, 
Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. and Financial Services Partners Fund I, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 2.1 to the 
Registrant's Curtent Report on Form 8-K filed on May 7, 2012) 

2.3 Letter Agreement, dated Deceraber 20, 2012, by and among Cartollton Bancorp, Jefferson Bancorp, Inc., and 
Financial Service Partners Fund I, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 10.1 to the Registtant's Ciurent Report 
on Form 8-K filed on Deceraber 21,2012) 

2.4 Second Amendment to Agreement and Plan ofMerger, dated as of Febraary 28, 2013, by and among Carrollton 
Bancorp, Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. and Financial Services Partners Fund I, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 
2.1 to the Registtant's Current Report on Forra 8-K filed on March 4, 2013) 

3.1 Articles of Araendraent and Restateraent filed with SDAT on April 19, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 
3.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2013) 

3.3 Articles of Araendraent filed with SDAT on Septeraber 3, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 3.2 to the 
Registtant's Curtent Report on Form 8-K filed on November 1, 2013) 

3.4 Articles of Araendraent filed with SDAT on October 29, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 3.1 to the 
Regisfrant's Curtent Report on Form 8-K filed on November 1, 2013) 

3.5 Articles Supplementary filed with SDAT on Febraary II , 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 4.1 to the 
Registrant's Curtent Report on Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2009) 

3.6 Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 3.3 to the Registtant's Current Report on Form 
8-K filed on Noveraber 1, 2013) 

4.1 Forra of Stock Certificate for Fixed Rate Curaulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibh 4.3 to the Registrant's Cunent Report on Forra 8-K filed on Febraary 17, 2009) 

4.2 Warrant to Purchase 205,379 Shares of Coraraon Stock of Carrollton Bancorp (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 
4.4 to the Registrant's Current Report on Forra 8-K filed on Febraary 17, 2009) 

4.3 Registration Rights Agreeraent, dated as ofApril 19, 2013, by and between Carrollton Bancorp and Financial 
Services Partners Fund I, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibh 4.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 
8-K filed on April 25, 2013) 

10.1 Letter Agreement and related Securhies Purchase Agreeraent - Standard Terras, dated as of Febraaty 13, 2009, by 
and between Caffollton Bancorp and United States Department ofthe Treasury (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.1 to the Registtant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Febraary 17, 2009) 

10.2 Preferted Stock Repurchase Agreeraent, dated April 19, 2013, by and between Carrollton Bancorp and the United 
States Department ofthe Treasury (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2013) 

10.3 Wartant Repurchase Agreeraent, dated April 19, 2013, by and between Carrollton Bancorp and the United States 
Departraent ofthe Treasury (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Cunent Report on Form 8-
K filed on April 25, 2013) 

10.4 Voting Agreement, dated as ofApril 8, 2012, among Financial Services Partners Fund I, LLC, Jefferson Bancorp, 
Inc. and certain stockholders of Carrollton Bancorp (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 10, 2012) 

10.5 Eraployment Agreement, dated June 30, 2010, by and between Bay Bank, F.S.B. and Kevin B. Cashen (incorporated 
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by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2013) 

10.6 Employraent Agreeraent, dated as of January 3, 2013, by and between Bay Bank, F.S.B. and David E. Borowy 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2013) 

10.7 First Araendraent to Employraent Agreement, dated October 29, 2013, by and between Bay Bank, F.S.B. and David 
E. Borowy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Regisfrant's Curtent Report on Form 8-K filed on 
Noveraber 1,2013) 

10.8 Eraployraent Agreeraent, dated as ofNovember 23, 2013, by and between Bay Bank, F.S.B. and Gary M. Jewell 
(filed herewith) 

10.9 Eraployment Agreement, dated as of May 22, 2013, by and between Bay Bank, F.S.B. and Edward J. Schneider 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibh 10.1 to the Registrant's Curtent Report on Form 8-K filed on May 24, 2013) 

10.10 Cartollton Bancorp 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan (incoiporated by reference to Appendix A to the Regisfrant's 
definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 16, 1998) 

10.11 Canollton Bancorp 2007 Equity Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Regisfrant's definitive proxy 
statement on Schedule 14A filed on April 5, 2007) 

10.12 Forra of Restticted Stock Award Agreeraent under the Carrollton Bancorp 2007 Equity Plan (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibh lO.l to the Registtant's Curtent Report on Form 8-K filed on July 1, 2013) 

10.13 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the Carrollton Bancorp 2007 Equity Plan (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibh 10.2 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 1, 2013) 

10.14 Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. 2010 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed on AprU 25, 2013) 

10.15 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Jefferson Bancorp, Inc. 2010 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibh 10.6 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2013) 

10.16 RetentionBonus Agreement, dated as ofMarch 5, 2013, by and ̂ between Carrollton Bank and Robert A. Altieri 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 11, 2013) 

10.17 Description of employment arrangement with Mark A. Semanie (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the 
Registrant's Annual Report on Forra 10-K for the year ended Deceraber 31, 2012 filed on March 14, 2013) 

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (filed herewith) 

31.1 Rule 13 a-14(a) Certification by the Principal Executive Officer (filed herewith) 

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification by the Principal Financial Officer (filed herewith) 

32.1 Certification by the Principal Executive Officer ofthe periodic financial reports, required by Section 906 ofthe 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (fumished herewith) 

32.2 Certification by the Principal Financial Officer ofthe periodic financial reports, required by Section 906 ofthe 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (fumished herewith) 

101 Interactive Data Files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (filed herewith) 
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS: 

2328 West Joppa Road, Suite 325 

Lutherville, Maryland 21093 

Phone: (410) 494-2580 

Internet: www.baybankmd.com 

INVESTMENT SUBSIDIARY: 

Bay Financial Services, Inc. 

2328 West Joppa Road, Suite 325 

Lutherville, Maryland 21093 

Phone: (410) 494-2580 

Internet: www.baybankmd.com 

MORTGAGE DIVISION: 

Carrollton Mortgage Services, Inc. 

Timonium Corporate Center 

9515 Deereco Road, Suite 400 

Timonium, Maryland 21093 

Phone: (410)561-8477 

ANNUAL MEETING NOTICE: 

The annual meeting of shareholders of Bay Bancorp will 

be held on Wednesday, May 14, 2014 at 10 a.m. at the 

Operations Center, 7151 Columbia Gateway Drive, Suite A, 

Columbia, Maryland 21046 

STOCK LISTING: 

The common stock of Bay Bancorp, Inc. trades on the 

NASDAQ National Market tier of The NASDAQ Stock Market 

under the symbol "BYBK," There were 306 record holders 

of stock at December 31, 2013. 

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR: 

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company 

59 Maiden Lane 

New York, New York 10038 

Phone: (800) 937-5449 

(212)936-5100 

Internet: www.amstock.com 

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM: 

McGladrey LLP 

5291 Corporate Drive, Suite 100 

Frederick, Maryland 21703 

During 2013 and 2012, there were no disagreements with 

the Company's accountants on accounting matters or 

financial disclosure. 

ELECTRONIC ACCESS TO FUTURE DOCUMENTS: 

If you would like to receive future shareholder communications 

over the Internet exclusively, and no longer receive any 

material by mail, please visit http://www.amstock.com. Click 

on shareholder account access to enroll. Please enter your 

account number and tax identification number to log in, 

then select receive company mailings via email and provide 

your email address. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

The Company files an annual report with the Securities 

and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K. Any shareholder 

may obtain a copy, without charge, upon request to the 

Company's Corporate Secretary. 

Analysts, investors, and others seeking financial information 

about the Company are invited to contact: 

Larry D. Pickett 

Chief Financial Officer 

Bay Bancorp, Inc. 

2328 West Joppa Road, Suite 325 

Lutherville, Maryland 21093 

Email: lpickett@baybankmd.com 

Annual Report Design by Curran & Connors, Inc, / www.curran-conno 

http://www.baybankmd.com
http://www.baybankmd.com
http://www.amstock.com
http://www.amstock.com
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Q BayBank 
LOCATIONS 

ANNE ARUNDEL COUNTY 

GLEN BURNIE 

427 Crairn Highway, NE 

Glen Burnie, MD 21061 

(410) 761-0968 

BALTIMORE CITY 

DOWNTOWN 

344 N. Charles Street 

Baltimore, MD 21201 

(410) 536-7386 

HIGHLANDTOWN/CANTON 

531 South Conkling Street 

Baltimore, MD 21224 

(410) 675-4622 

BALTIMORE COUNTY 

ARBUTUS 

Arbutus Shopping Plaza 

1070 Maiden Choice Lane 

Arbutus, MD 21229 

(410) 247-9393 

COCKEYSVILLE 

10301 York Road 

Cockeysville, MD 21030 

(410) 628-1330 

LUTHERVILLE 

2328 West Joppa Road 

Lutherville, MD 21093 

(410) 427-3758 

PERRY HALL 

4040 Schroeder Avenue 

Perry Hall, MD 21128 

(410) 248-0012 

TOWSON EAST 

1740 East Joppa Road 

Baltimore, MD 21234 

(410) 668-7863 

HARFORD COUNTY 

HICKORY/NORTH BEL AIR 

602 Hoagie Drive 

Bel Air, MD 21014 

(410) 776-4100 

COCKEYSVILLE 

LUTHERVILLE 

Bay Bancorp, Inc. • 2328 West Joppa Road, Suite 325, Lutherville, MD 21093 

Phone: 1-410-494-2580 • Fax: 1-410-625-0355 • www.baybankmd.com 

http://www.baybankmd.com

